

## Final Integrated Development Plan 2020/2021 4th Review Implementation 2021/2022

#### A Destination of Choice Where People Comes First



# LAINGSBURG MUNICIPALITY



### Vision

## A destination of choice where people comes first

## "'n Bestemming van keuse waar mense eerstekom"

### Mission

To function as a community-focused and sustainable municipality by:

- Rendering effective basic services
- Promoting local economic development
- Consulting communities in the processes of Council
- Creating a safe social environment where people can thrive

#### Values

Our leadership and employees will ascribe to and promote the following six values:

- Transparency
- Accountability
- Excellence
- Accessibility
- Responsiveness
- Integrity

## **Table of Contents**

LI:	ST OF	ACRONYMS	8
FC	)REW	ORD OF THE MAYOR	. 10
A	CKNO'	WLEDGEMENT OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER	. 11
E>	(ECUT	IVE SUMMARY	. 12
1		STRATEGIC PLAN	. 14
	1.1	Introduction	. 14
	1.2	Project Prioritisation Model	. 16
	1.3	Focus Area 1: Environmental & Spatial Development	. 17
	1.4	Focus Area 2: Local Economic Development	. 19
	1.5	Focus Area 3: Basic Service Delivery	. 22
	1.6	Focus Area 4: Social and Community Development	. 29
	1.7 F	ocus Area 5: Institutional Transformation	. 34
	1.8	Focus Area 6: Financial Viability	. 38
2		Laingsburg Spatial Development Framework	40
	2.1	Proposed Long Term Vision for the Municipality:	. 40
	2.2	Conclusion	. 42
3		Legislative Framework	43
	3.1	Applicable Legislation	. 44
	3.2	Development and Implementation of the IDP	. 46
4		Process Plan	. 47
	4.1	Legal Requirements with regard to preparation of the IDP Process	. 47
	4.2	Background and context of the 4 <sup>th</sup> Annual Review of 2017/22 IDP	. 48
	4.3	Phases of the Integrated Development Plan	. 49
	4.4	Annual revision and amendment of the IDP	. 49
	4.5	Purpose of a review	. 50
	4.6	Review Clarification	. 51
	4.7	Amendment	. 51
	4.8	Key planning and Policy Directives	. 51
	4.8.1	International Policy Directives - Millennium Development Goals	. 51
	4.8.2	2 National, Provincial and District Development Planning and Policy Directives	. 52
	4.8.3	B Horizontal Alignment of Key Strategies	. 56
	4.9	Inter-Governmental Alignment	. 60

	Final Integrated Development Plan 4 <sup>th</sup> Review	
4.10	Time Schedule	61
5	Municipal Profile	70
5.1	Geographical positioning	70
5.2	Population and households	71
5.3	Settlement pattern	72
5.4	Settlement pattern	72
6	Situational Analysis	73
6.1 E	ducation	72
6.1.1	Education Outcome	74
6.2	Health	74
6.2.1	Emergency Medical Services	75
6.2.2	HIV/Aids	76
6.2.3	Child Care	76
6.2.4	Maternal Health	77
6.3	Safety and Security	80
6.4	Environmental & Spatial Analysis	80
6.4.1	Situational Analysis	81
6.4.2	Environmental Management	81
6.4.2	2.1. Analysis of the Natural Environment	81
6.4.2	2.2. Biodiversity and Conservation	82
6.4.2	2.3. Climate Change	84
6.4.2	2.4. Waste Management	87
6.4.2	2.5. Air Quality Management Tools	89
6.4.2	2.6 Environmental Governance and Management	90
6.4.2	2.7 Water Resource Management	92
6.4.2	2.8 Heritage	93
6.5	Economic Analysis	94
6.5.1	GDPR Performance	94
6.5.2	Agriculture	95
6.5.3	Agri-Tourism	95
6.5.4	Impact of Climate Change	95
6.5.5	Building Materials and Mining	96
6.5.6	5 Employment	96
6.5.7	'Labour	97
6.5.8	Property market patterns and growth pressures	99

	Final Integrated Development Plan 4 <sup>th</sup> Review	
6.5.9	Tourism	99
6.5.10	Regional Economic Development	99
6.6	Institutional and Service Delivery Analysis	99
6.6.1	Institutional Analysis	100
6.6.2	Political Environment	100
6.6.3	The Executive Mayoral Committee	100
6.6.4	Macro Administrative Structure	102
6.6.5	Municipal Administrative and Institutional Capacity	103
6.6.6	Income and Expenditure Pattern1	.04
6.6.7	Outstanding Rates and Services1	105
6.6.8	Liquidity ratio1	.05
6.7	Infrastructure Analysis 1	.06
6.7.1	Transportation1	.06
6.7.2	Solid Waste Management 1	08
6.7.3	Water	10
6.7.4	Waste Water Treatment (Sanitation)1	12
6.7.5	Energy1	13
6.7.6	Telecommunications	15
6.7.7	Stormwater1	15
6.7.8	Housing1	16

## Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

	11.0	Performance Report	138
	11.7 11.8	Mid-Year Assessment	
	11.6	Quarterly Reports	
	11.5	Performance Reporting	
	11.4	Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)	
	11.3	Individual Level	
	11.2	Organizational Level	
	11.1	Performance Management system	
11		Performance Management	
		Municipal Accounts	
		Transfers and grants	
	10.10		
	10.9	Expenditure Analysis	
	10.8	Municipal Budget	
	10.7	Cost Effectiveness Strategy	
	10.6	Operating Capital Financing Strategy	145
	10.5	Capital Projects Financing Strategy	145
	10.4	Asset Management Strategy	145
	10.3	Revenue Raising Strategy	145
	10.2	Non – financial strategies	144
	10.1	Financial strategies	144
10	)	ong Term Planning	143
	9.4	OneCape 2040 Vision	139
	9.3	Provincial Strategic Plan, 2019-2024	137
	9.2	External Sector Plans and Programs	134
	9.1	Internal Sector Plans	133
9	9	Sector Planning	133
	8.2	Community Priorities	129
	8.1	Project Prioritization	128
8	/	Action Planning	128
	7.2	Strategic focus areas and priorities	121
	7.1	SWOT Analysis	120
7	9	Strategy	119
	6.7.1	0Sports Facilities	118
	6.7.9	Cemeteries	118

11.	9 .	The IDP and the budget	158
11.	10 <sup>.</sup>	The Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan	159
11.	11 <sup>.</sup>	The municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP)	159
11.	12	Actual performance	159
11.	13	Key Performance indicators	160
12	Str	ategic Alignment	.162
13	Hig	sh Level Spatial Development Framework	.164
13.	1	Urban Settlements and Hierarchy	164
13.	2	Hierarchy and Role of the Settlements	164
13	.2.1 F	Public Open Space	165
13	.2.2 l	Jrban Restructuring	165
13	.2.3 F	Road improvements	166
13	.2.4 F	Focal points and gateways	166
13	.2.5 l	Jrban Edge	167
13	.2.6 l	Jrban expansion	167
13	.2.71	Heritage Area	167
13	.2.8 F	Public Open Space	167
13	.2.9 l	Jrban Restructuring	168
13	.2.10	Road Improvements	168
13	.2.11	Urban Edge	168
3.2	2.12F	Public Open Space	169
12	.2.13	Urban Restructuring	169
12	.2.14	Urban Edge	169
12	.2.15	Urban expansion	169
12	.2.16	6 Market Gardening/ Agriculture	170
13	Dis	aster Management	170
13.	1	Institutional Capacity	172
13.	2	DISASTER MANAGEMENT FOR THE YEAR 4 OF 5YEAR IDP	176
14	Re	ferences	178
15	An	nexures	179

## LIST OF ACRONYMS

ABBREVEATION	MEANING/INTEPRETATION
IDP	Integrated Development Plan
LED	Local Economic Development
DEDAT	Department Economic Development and Tourism
DEA	Department of Environment Affairs
MIG	Municipal Infrastructure Grant
DTPW	Department Transport and Public Works
CKDM	Central Karoo District Municipality
HSP	Human Settlements Plan
SDF	Spatial Development Plan
MFMA	Municipal Financial Management Act
SDBIP	Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
GDS	Growth Development Summit
SMME	Small Medium Micro Enterprises
DMP	Disaster Management Plan
DMA	District Municipal Area
EPWP	Extended Public Works Program
РРР	Public Private Partnership
СРР	Community Public Partnership
СРРР	Community Public Private Partnership
EDA	Economic Development Agency
ABET	Adult Basic Education and Training
DLG	Department of Local Government
DHS	Department of Human Settlement
DOH	Department of Health
ITDF	Integrated Tourism Development Framework
MTEF	Medium Term Expenditure Framework
MSIG	Municipal Systems Improvement Grant
MSA	Municipal Systems Act
PDI	Previous Disadvantaged Individuals
PCF	Premier's Coordinating Forum
CBP	Community Based Planning
PDO's	Pre-determine Objectives
РМР	Performance Management Plan
LCPS	Local Crime Prevention Strategy
mSCOA	Municipal Standard of Accounts
LLM	Local Laingsburg Municipality
SEPLG	Socio-Economic Profile of Local Government
MERO	
WERO	Municipal Economic Review and Outlook

## Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

PACA Participatory Appraisal of Competitive Advantage

## FOREWORD OF THE MAYOR



We acknowledge the five (5) year Integrated Development Plan (IDP) as our development direction instrument and implementation monitoring plan of our strategy.

We, therefore, take pride in our 4<sup>th</sup> Annually Reviewed Integrated Development Plan to reflect on our performance progress on all current and new priorities that has been submitted through community participation, ward-based engagements and Representative Forums.

Our focus will remain on the improvement of living standards of our community. Thus, we strive and also embrace our Municipal vision 'A Destination of Choice Where People Comes First'.

We are proud to state that the necessary alignments, internally and externally, of our Municipal Strategic Objectives are made to that of the Western Cape Provincial Strategic Plan and National Development Plan.

The Municipal Council and I would like to thank the municipal staff and the Laingsburg Community for your valuable inputs towards the Review of this report.

Clir RICARDO LOUW EXECUTIVE MAYOR

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER



This document and forewords refers to the 2020/2021 revision of the Fourth Term IDP of Laingsburg Municipality.

The IDP-review: 2020/2021 followed the processes of the process plan which complied with legal prescriptions regarding public participation in context with the COVID-19 Pandemic; and especially the lockdown regulations. This impacted significantly on the drafting of the IDP-review. Communities, role-players, sectors and various stakeholders partook meaningfully in the review process and the review reflects their sentiments and views.

Internally, the municipal Political and Corporate administrations developed the review according to legal prescriptions guiding the IDP review process.

The Fourth Term IDP is a master plan for holistic short and long term development in Laingsburg.

The IDP Review for 2020/2021 was done in terms of the Municipal Systems Act (2000) which states that "a council must annually review and may amend its Integrated Development Plan.

The IDP Review complies with the six key pillars of the National Development Plan: the development of common programs to fight poverty and inequality; the fostering of a spirit of unity; an active citizenry; a growing and inclusive economy; the building of capacities; and a capable and developmental state and responsible leadership. The NDP-compliance indicates good municipal governance and management.

As municipal manager I ensured administrative compliance with the legal requirements in regards to the planning, development and drafting of the IDP-review in line with the process plan: day-to-day implementation of the IDP process plan; involving stakeholders timely; day-to-day management of the drafting processes; response to comments on the draft IDP; keeping of IDP documentation; adjustment of the IDP in accordance with the comments of the MEC for local government; and ensure that the content of the IDP satisfy legal requirements.

Administratively the municipal Senior Managers and officials supported me in the provision of technical, sector and financial information to determine priority issues; technical expertise in the consideration and finalisation of strategies and the identification of projects; departmental, operational and capital budgetary information; and preparation of project proposals and integration of projects and sector programmes.

The IDP drafting process included the identification of ward priorities by ward committees.

This revision considered the migration reality, the state of communities, ageing infrastructure, bulk services and the gap between public expectations and institutional capacities and economic development.

This cycle of IDP is influenced by limited revenue, methods to increase the income trajectory, less government funding, the rendering of sustainable and quality services, the need for improved customer relations, the need for a stakeholder strategy, the limited ability of the budget to accommodate vast needs and the new normal and impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

The 2020/21-review resulted from hard and conscientious work by the municipal corporate and political administrations, the holistic communities and internal and external stakeholders.

As accounting officer, I convey a word of thanks to the Executive Mayor, Councillors and staff that attended and participated in all our public participation processes.

We now need all hands on deck to bring about meaningful change.

J BOOYSEN MUNICIPAL MANAGER

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

A destination of choice where people comes first "n Bestemming van keuse waar mense eerste kom"

#### Strategic Plan

The municipality is the major arena of development planning. It is at this level of government where people's needs and priorities and local conditions have to be linked, with national guidelines and sectorial considerations, to specific projects and programmes. The Laingsburg Municipality therefore developed a 5-year strategic plan.

#### Laingsburg Spatial Development Framework

The municipal SDF was reviewed along with the development of the municipal Integrated Development Plan, spatially indicate where projects in the IDP will be implemented.

#### **Legislative Mandate**

The **Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 Of 2000** requires municipalities to develop Integrated Development Plans which should be single, inclusive and strategic in nature. The IDP of a municipality will guide development within the council's area of jurisdiction, once adopted; an IDP should also be reviewed annually. In addition the Act also stipulates the IDP process and the components to be included. This is the first annual review of the 2017/22 Integrated Development Plan of Laingsburg Municipality as per Section 34 of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 of 2000.

#### **Municipal Profile**

In this chapter a Status Quo Report of the municipal area and the following focus areas were highlighted; demographics, education; health, crime, decay of social fabric, climate, topography, water resources, biodiversity, heritage, flooding, land ownership, local economic development, agriculture, employment, income, land reform, tourism, political environment, micro administrative structure, institutional capacity, systems and policies, income & expenditure patterns, outstanding rates & services, liquidity ratio, infrastructure, transportation, solid waste management, water, waste water treatment, energy, telecommunications, storm water, housing, cemeteries and sports facilities.

#### **Situational Analysis**

A municipal situational analysis was focusing on Education, Health, Crime, Environmental and Spatial,

Regional Economic Development, Institutional, Financial and Infrastructure. This assessment informs the municipal strategic agenda and project planning.

#### Strategic Agenda

The council in a strategic planning session set a strategic agenda that informed this IDP, budgeting and Performance Management.

#### Action Planning for 2020/21 Financial Year

An Action Plan in the form of a log frame for every program and project is developed and enclosed within this chapter of the document. The Projects and programs are used to inform the Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) as well as performance of municipal officials and the municipal manager to ensure service delivery and the realisation of the municipal vision

#### **Internal & External Sector Plans and Programmes**

The IDP is not just a local government tool but it is for the whole of government and sector departments plans and programmes are included in this chapter so that all stakeholders are aware of what is being done within the municipal area.

#### Long-term Financial Planning

A long term financial Plan indicating municipal revenue, expenditure and capital planning. A 4 year forecasting was included in this document.

#### **Performance Management**

This Chapter deals with the implementation and monitoring of the IDP projects and programmes aimed at achieving the vision and objectives of the municipality as set out in this document. The IDP and Budget are implemented through a Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP). The Top Layer SDBIP is used as a scorecard to measure, monitor, evaluate and report on institutional performance (monthly, quarterly, bi-annual and annual basis). The Departmental SDBIP measures the performance of the departments and performance agreements and plans are used to measure the performance of employees.

#### High Level Spatial Development Framework

Outlining the development path the municipality will follow the next 5 years and how the municipality will steer development spatially.

#### **Disaster Management**

The municipality conducted a risk assessment and how it will affect the implementation of the IDP, institutional Arrangements and what projects will be implemented to promote community resilience.

## **1** STRATEGIC PLAN

#### 1.1 Introduction

Laingsburg Municipality is a Category B Municipality in the Central Karoo District. It is the smallest municipality in the Western Cape Province and in South Africa. The municipality covers an area of more than 8781, 44 square kilometre(Population density about 1 person per square km) and straddled by the N1 national road. It accessible from all the major cities of the Western Cape as well as Northern Cape, Eastern Cape, Free State and Gauteng Province. (LLM, 5<sup>th</sup> Generation IDP)

Generally Laingsburg is a one town Municipality. Laingsburg town has a population of 6495 people (69%), whereas the rest of the population 2287 resides in the Non Rural (NU) which include the settlement Matjiesfontein and Vleiland and scattered farming community. The population of Matjiesfontein, the second largest community, has about 691 people.

The population growth of the municipality is recorded at 1.41 which higher than the 0.89 of the region (CKDM). The municipality has a gender breakdown of 49.7% male and 50.3% female, which is a 99 Sex Ratio (Number of males per 100 females).

The number of households for the area are recorded as 2 862, which is an increase since 2011 (2408), and the average household size is 3.1.

In terms of sanitation the survey reports that there is a 0.10% buckets needs to be address as it is below the minimum standards but there is also a 0.28% of households that does not have any form of sanitation. The municipality will have to identify these households so that the service can be renders as it is a basic right for humanity. The community responded positively with regards to services rendered by the municipality but the services of the local police services needs to be revised. Unemployment and drug abuse has been highlighted by the 35.4% of households during the community survey, which needs to be addressed.

## Laingsburg: At a Glance

Demographics	Population Estimates 2019: Actual Households 2020								
<b>9 4</b>	Households 2862								
Education	20	)19		Poverty			2019		
Matric Pass Rate Learner-Teacher Ratio Retention Rate		80.0% 27.4% 40.0%	7.4% Human Development Index				0.55 0.81		
Health					2018	3/19			
	mary Health re Facilities	Immunisa Rate	tion	Maternal Mortality Ratio (per 100 000 live births		Teenage Prea to woman U/	gnancies – Delivery rate /18		
U	3	78.5%		0.0%		11.9%			
Safety and Security		Actual numbers as reported cases in 2019/20							
Resident Burglarie		DUI		Drug-related	Crimes	Murder	Sexual Offences		
64	125	125		107		3	12		
Access to Basic Service Deliver	y		Percenta	ge of households	with access to	basic services, 2	2019/2020		
Water	Refuse Re	emoval	E	lectricity	Sanit	ation	Housing		
98.7%	60.3	3% []		79.3%	84.0%		96.4%		
Road Safety 2017		Labou	ur 2017			Socio-econor	mic Risks		
Fatal Crashes12Road User Fatalities23	Unemploym 17%	ent Rate				School Drop Ou age Pregnancy cance abuse	ts		
Largest 3 Sectors				Co	ntribution to (	GDP, 2018			
Agriculture, forestry and	fishing	Ge	neral Gove	ernment	Wholesale and Retail trade, catering and accommodation				
22.4%		-	19.6	5%		13.7%			

Table 1: Laingsburg Socio Economic Profile (Source SEPLEG; 2019/20)

The municipality aligned itself with the Key Performance Areas of National Government but included Environmental and Social Development as it is crucial for the sustainability of the municipality.

The municipal strategic focus areas are the priority areas of the municipality which the following priorities.

i. Environmental and Spatial Development;

- ii. Local Economic Development;
- iii. Basic Service Delivery;
- iv. Social and Community Development;
- v. Institutional Transformation; and
- vi. Financial Viability.

The municipality wants to create an inclusive society by working together as all stakeholders to achieve economic freedom to the inhabitants of Laingsburg. It will require a shift from service delivery driven to the increase of opportunities for economic growth, therefore the public participatory process which run concurrently with the development of this document aiming to achieve community ownership and the creation of public value.

These focus areas will be monitored in terms of the municipal strategic objectives, aligned key performance indicators, programs and projects. At the same time it will assist the municipality to report on progress with regards to initiatives implemented to achieve national and provincial set targets.

The following programs / projects are aligned with the new mSCOA segments which will be implemented for the remainder of the 5 year cycle. The projects are aligned to the municipal strategic objectives and will assist the municipality to achieve its vision of becoming a destination of choice where people come first.

The projects are aligned to the municipal budget and clearly steer how performance management will be done during the period. Key actions with targets and milestones are aligned to ensure that each one of the seven Strategic Objectives of the municipality is implemented during the 2017 – 2022 IDP period.

#### 1.2 **Project Prioritisation Model**

The municipality identified the need for a project prioritisation model and implemented a model that can be summarised as follows:

- Project prioritisation is required in order to guide project implementation and the allocation of funding to each project. The project prioritisation model is applied to projects and programmes funded from municipality's own funding.
- Projects funded by external service providers (e.g. MIG) do not require prioritisation by the Laingsburg Municipality for funding and implementation.

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Criteria	Description	Score (yes = 1, No = 0)
Legal Requirement	Is the project legally required by legislation?	
Contractually committed	Has the project already commenced and were appointments done to date	
Safety / Basic Need	Will the postponement of the project create a safety risk to the community and is the project addressing a basic need	
Maintenance Cost	Will the maintenance cost for the project be affordable in the future	
Total		

Table 1.2: Project prioritization model

## 1.3 Focus Area 1: Environmental & Spatial Development

This Priority Focus Area focus on the creation of a safe municipal area, the conservation of the town's heritage and creating a clean green oasis in the Karoo. It also seeks to restore dignity in rural areas. The following defined Pre-Determined Objective (PDO) will speak directly to the focus area.

Strategic	Dev	eloping	a safe, clean, healthy and sustainable environment for						
Objective 1			communities						
Outcome	Pleasant living environment, Safer roads in the municipal area, Available Sport facilities, Conserved Environment, Clean and Health aware Town								
Key Performance Indicators	approved greening and cleaning initiatives by community awareness days as per the programed approved in the IDP e provincial traffic departments public safe initiatives as approved in the IDP								
Municipal Function         Technical Services, Strategic Services & Administration									
Alignment with Dist	rict, National	and Prov	vincial Strategies						
Sphere		Ref	Description						
National KPA		NKPA	Basic Service Delivery						
National Outcome		NO	All people in south Africa protected and feel safe						
National Development (2030)	t Plan	NDP	Building safer communities						
Provincial Strategic Pla	an	SG4	Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment						
Provincial Strategic Objective		PSO	<ul> <li>Sustain ecological and agricultural resource-base</li> <li>Improve Climate Change Response</li> </ul>						
District Strategic CKDM Objective IDP			<ul> <li>SG 1: Promote Safe, Healthy and Socially stable communities through the provision of a sustainable environmental health service</li> <li>SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public safety in the region</li> </ul>						

Table 1.1: Municipal PDO 1

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programmes and projects will be implemented. During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints and the Recovery Plan which are in implementation phase. The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 21/22 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

Project: Rural Development							IDI	IDP No. 0001				
Key Performance Area	ENVI	ENVIRONMENTAL & SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT										
Objective: SO1	-			Strateg	y:		Baseli	ne:				
Develop a safe, clean, healthy and sustainab	le enviro	nment for	all	Eradica	te bucket sys	tems	Bucke	t systems in	Rural Area	5		
Indicator: Provide free basic sanitat	ion to i	ndigent	households i	n terms	of the equ	uitable	share	requirem	nents			
Project Output		Item				Region						
Farmworkers provided with a VIP toilets		Expendi	ture			Wards 2						
Main Activities	Functi	on			2017/18	2018/19		2019/20	2020/2	1 2021/22		
Needs Identification, Purchasing of units Distribution and Training	Techni	cal Service	S		80 000		)	0	0	0		
Cost	2017	/18	2018/19	1	2019/20	2020/	21	2021	/22	Fund		
R 80 000.00 R 80 000			R 0	RO		RO		RO		CRR		
Comments	Project was 'nt implemented due to Cash Flow Problems											

Logframe1.1 Rural Development: VIP Toilets

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

Project: Cleaning & Greening Campaig	n	IDP No. 0002							
Key Performance Area	ENVIRONM	ENTAL & SPAT	TIAL DEVELO	PMENT					
Objective: SO1	Strategy:		Baseline:						
Develop a safe, clean, healthy and	Revival of Town	ship nodes and	Municipal Ar	ea is dry and e	rosion t	ake pla	ce		
sustainable environment for all	urban conserva	tion							
Indicator: Provide free basic sanitation	n to indigent h	ouseholds in t	erms of the	equitable s	share	requi	rements		
Project Output	ltem		Region						
Clean, Green Town & Proudly Laingsburg Community	Expenditure		Whole Munic	cipal Area					
Main Activities	Function		2017/18	2018/19	2019	9/20	2020/21	L 2021/22	
Garden Competition			5 300	0		0	0	0	
Tree Planting (Acacia Park)	_		5 000	0		0	0	0	
Laingsburg Cleaning & Storm water	Technical Services	5	500 000	440 000	693	3 000	457 000	452 000	
Buffelsriver Cleaning	Development Serv	vices	35 000	0		0	0	C	
Laingsburg Landfill site Cleaning & Recycling			67 140	60 000	60	000	185 000	131 000	
Matjiesfontein Landfill site Cleaning							95 000		
Infrastructure Maintenance & Resource Management			89 190	0	0		0		
Dustbin Programme				0	0		0		
Expansion of Landfill site				0	0		0		
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/	/21	20	21/22	Fund	
R 1 201 630.00	R 701 630	R 500 000	R 753 000	R 737 00	00	R 583	3 000	EPWP	
Comments				Projects couldbe ue to Cash Flow Pro	oblems				

Logframe 1.2 Cleaning and Greening

#### 1.4 Focus Area 2: Local Economic Development

Priority 2 focus on creating opportunities to ensure that the Laingsburg municipal economic growth positively. The municipality will mainly focus on the creation of enabling environment which will attract investment to the area. The municipality will also implement infrastructure projects which will have an impact on the economy as well. The municipality will also develop internally an incentive scheme which will draw investment to the area. The Local Economic Development (LED) strategy did a Participatory Appraisal Competitive Advantages which will be built on to achieve real economic growth. Small Medium Micro Enterprise Developments (SMME's) is also a focus area to grow the informal sector as it shows growth potential. The Local Economic Development Strategy is currently under review.

The municipality identified catalyst projects which are captured under the community priorities.

These initiatives will grow the municipality and contributes to the sustainability of the municipality.

The following defined Pre-Determined Objective (PDO) will speak directly to the focus area.

Strategic									
Objective 2		Promote local economic development							
Outcome	Outcome Enhanced job creation								
Key Performance	lost Events a	sses with business and CIDB registration s identified in the IDP in support of LED within the Municipal Area portunities through EPWP and infrastructure projects							
Municipal C Function	trategic Serv ommunity S ofrastructure and Provir	Services e Services							
Sphere	Ref	Description							
National KPA	ΝΚΡΑ	Local Economic Development							
National Outcome	NO	Decent employment through inclusive economic growth							
National Development Plan (2030)	NDP	An economy that will creates more jobs Inclusive rural economy							
Provincial Strategic Plan (2040)	SG1	Creating opportunities for growth and jobs							
Provincial Strategic Objectiv	e SGO	Project Khulisa ("to grow") <ul> <li>Renewables</li> <li>Tourism</li> <li>Oil &amp; Gas</li> <li>BPO</li> <li>Film</li> <li>Agri-processing</li> </ul>							
District Strategic Objectives	CKDM IDP	G7: Promote regional economic development, tourism and growth opportunities							

Table 1.2: Municipal PDO 2

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programs and projects will be implemented. During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints and the Recovery Plan which was implemented. The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 21/22 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

Project: Tourism Deve	roject: Tourism Development										
Key Performance A	rea		C DEVELO	OPME	NT						
Objective: SO2	Strategy:		Baseline:								
Promote Local Economic Development	Laingsburg To	ngsburg Tourism Development Visitors drive through Laingsburg without stopping									
Indicator: Host Events as identified in the IDP in support of LED within the Municipal Area											
Project Output				Item				Region			
Laingsburg a Tourism Destina	ation and more v	visitors stay over		Expenditure				Whole Municipal Area			
Main Activities	Function		2017/	18	2018/19	2019	/20	2020/2	L 2021/22		
Tourism & Development	Development	t Services	R109 400		4 000	4 000		0	0		
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/1	20	2020/21		2021	/22	Fund		
R 125 400.00	R109 400	R 4 000	R 4 000	)	RO		R 0		OPER		
Comments	Project was succe Implemented	essfully									

Logframe 1.3 Tourism Development

Projec	ct: SMME's Development					IDP No. (	0004	
Кеу	Performance Area	LOCAL ECONC	MIC DEVELO	PMENT				
Objec	tive: SO2		Strategy:		Baseline:			
Promot	e Local Economic Development		Promotion of SI	MME's	Lack of Fund	s available to	new entrep	reneurs
Indicato	or: Assist businesses with business and	CIDB registration						
Projec	ct Output		ltem		Region			
New Bu	sinesses and unemployment decrease	d	Expenditure		Whole Muni	icipal Area		
Main	Activities	Function	1	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Busines	s / CIDB Registration			30 000	0	0	0	0
LED We	ek	Development Serv	ices	10 000	0	0	0	0
Door M	anufacturing	Finance and Corpo	orate Services	0	0	0	0	0
SMME's	s FINAID (Boosterfund)			о	0	2 593 148	1 110 00	0 0
DENC P	roject	Laingsburg Munici	pality and CKDM					
Cost		2017/18	2018/19	2019/120	2020/21	2021/22	. F	und
R 2 63	33 148	R 40 000	R O	R 2593 148	R 1 110 000	R 0		CRR / DEDEAT

Logframe 1.4 SMME's Development

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

Project: LED CULTURAL	. EVENTS						IDP No.	0005				
Key Performance Area			LO	CAL ECON	IOM		OPMENT					
Objective: SO2	Strategy:			Baseline	:							
Promote Local Economic Development	Marketing and Ir	Marketing and Investing				Events						
Indicator: Host Events as identified in the IDP in support of LED within the Municipal Area												
Project Output	ltem	Region										
More people visit area	Expenditure	Expenditure			Whole Municipal Area							
and invest in Local												
Markets												
Main Activities	Function			2017/18	;	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22			
Farm Market	Development Se	rvices										
	Finance and Corp	oorate Services		1	000		1 000	0	0			
	Community Serv	ices Infrastructure										
	Services											
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	20	019/120	20	20/21	2021/22	Fund				
R 1 000.00	R 1 000	RO	R	0	R	0	R 0	CRR				

#### Logframe 1.5 Cultural Events

The municipality made provision to contribute to the events, but due to financial constraints, the municipality had to revise their budget. The community however got together and hosted the events successfully, which is a good story to tell as public value was created. The community co-created the events and managed to get sponsorships.

#### 1.5 **Focus Area 3: Basic Service Delivery**

Households are steady during the period of 2018 to 2021 at 2862 in the municipality. The municipality is dependent on ground water of which the biggest portion has access to piped water inside the dwelling or within the yard. The biggest portion of households has access to Eskom electricity utilising it for lighting and cooking. Alternative energy is also being used within the municipality. All households has access to electricity. The majority of households are connected to a sewerage system or chemical toilets but 2.1% of households make use of other sources of sanitation. Refuse removal are on done on a weekly basis. 96 Percent of houses in Laingsburg are formal dwellings whilst 2.5% of households fall within the informal category.

This priority area focus on service delivery improvements but at the same time speaks to the provision of infrastructure that will promote Local Economic development.

The following Pre-determined Objectives clearly defines what will be achieved when implemented;

Strategic Objective 4	Provisio	residents and business										
Outcome	Maintained r	nunicipal roads, Improved waste management, Improved provision for storm										
	water, Enhar	nced service delivery, Improved electricity service, Improved sanitation										
	service, Impr	service, Improved water provision & Improved Integrated Transport										
Key Performance Indicators	80% of appro	oved capital budget spend										
	Number of fo	Number of formal residential properties connected to the municipal services (Water,										
	electricity, sa	electricity, sanitation and refuse removal										
Municipal Function	Infrastructur	Infrastructure Services & Finance and Corporate Services										
Alignment with National and	Provincial Stra	tegies										
Sphere	Ref	of Description										
National KPA												
	NKPA	Basic Service Delivery										
National Outcome												
	NO	An effective, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network										
National Development Plan	NDP	Improved infrastructure										
(2030)		Economic Infrastructure										
Provincial Strategic Plan	PSG 4	Sustainable and integrated urban and rural settlements										
(2040)	PSG 5	Create better living conditions for households especially low income and poor										
	F30 3	households										
		Sustain ecological and agricultural resource-base										
Provincial Strategic Objective												
	PSO	Integrating service delivery for maximum impact										
		Increasing access to safe and efficient transport										
District Strategic Objective	CKDM	SG 3: Improve and maintain district roads and promote safe road transport SG 4:										
	IDP	Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve										
		public safety in the region										

Table 1.3 Municipal PDO 3

Table1. 4 Municipal PDO 7

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programmes and projects will be implemented. During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the

Strategic Objective 7	Effective Maintenance and management of municipal assets and natural resources
Outcome	Climate Change adaptation, Water Conservation, Biodiversity Conservation, Improved Disaster Management, Heritage Conservation, Management of Energy & Improved Land management
Key Performance Indicators	70% of the approved maintenance budget spent Limit the % of electricity unaccounted for to less than 20% Maintain the quality of waste water discharge as per SANS 241-2006 Limit the % of water unaccounted for to less than 40% Maintain the water quality as per the SANA 241-1:2001 criteria
Municipal Function	Strategic Services Technical Services Financial Services Administration Community Services

#### Alignment with National, Provincial & District Strategies

Sphere	Ref	Description
National KPA		Basic Service Delivery
	NKPA	
National Outcome		All people in south Africa protected and feel safe
	NO	
National Development	NDP	Environmental Sustainability and resilience
Plan (2030)		
Provincial Strategic Plan	PSG4	Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment
(2040)	PSG5	Embedded good governance and integrated service delivery through partnerships and spatial
		alignment
Provincial Strategic Objective	PSO	Sustainable ecological and agricultural resource
		based Improved Climate Change Response
		Improve Better living conditions for Households, especially low income and poor households
		Sustainable and Integrated urban and rural settlements
		Integrated Management
		Inclusive society
District Strategic	CKDM	SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public safety in the
Objective	IDP	region

projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints . The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 21/22 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

Programme: Electricity Provisio	n				10	OP No. 0013	3		
Key Performance Area	Infrastruct	ure Develop	ment						
Objective: SO4	Strategy:	· · ·	Baseline:						
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved service to all residents and business	Infrastructure De	evelopment	Urgent need for upgrading of electrical network						
Indicator: 70% of the approved capital bu	dget spent								
Project Output	Item		Region						
Upgraded electrical network	CS Expenditure		Laingsburg						
Projects	Function		2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22		
National Electrification Programme			2 000 000	2 000 000	2 372 000	0	3 000 000		
Solar Heaters	-					0	0		
Acacia Park – New High Mast Lightning	Infrastructure	Comisso			2 000 000	0	0		
Improvement of Street lightning		Services					0		
Electrification of 56 Houses	-						0		
Electricity Master Plan	-		223 000						
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	Fu	nd		
R 12 595 000.00	R 2 223000	R 2 000 000	R 4 372 000	R O	R 3 000 000		DE		
Comments	Adjusted the Budget								

#### Logframe 1.6 Electricity Provision

Programme: Water Provision							IDP No. 00	14
Key Performance Area	Infrastructure Developmer	nt						
Objective: SO4	I			St	rategy:	Baseline:		
Effective Maintenance and management of	municipal assets and natural resourc	es		Bu	lk water pipeline	Need for wa	ater infrastructure	upgrading
Indicator: 70% of the approved ca	pital budget spent					1		
Project Output	Item	Regi	on					
Upgraded Water network	CS Expenditure	Laing	sburg					
Projects	Function		2017/18		2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Goldnerville Rising water main				0	0	0	0	4 973 54
Soutkloof Main water Pipeline			5 571 00	0	4 187 934	0	0	C
Goldnerville New Pipe Line			0		0	200 000	1 758 554	C
Elec And Equip Borehole	Infrastructure Services		0	)	585 000	0	0	
Laingsburg New 2ML Reservoir					200 000	3 660 950	4 519 996	
Additional Funding for 2ml reservoir						2 600 000	562 425.41	
Matjiesfontein New 250kl Reservoir New Water Purification System						500 000	162 912.08	
Goldnerville watersupply pipeline					1556 336	957 452		
Bergsig Reservoir			(	)	0	0		

	Final Integrated Developn	nent Plan 4 <sup>t</sup>	<sup>h</sup> Review			
Water Treatment Projects		0	2 000 000	0	0	0
Generators for Boreholes			500 000			
Replacement of Watermeters and water investigations			1 500 000	2 5 00 000		
New Bulk Water supply (Golnerville 180 houses)					528 000	
New Water supply system (Goldnerville Elevated tank)					610 000	

Data Loggers					1 000 000					
Soutkloof Rehabilitation				1 955 000						
Matjiesfontein Pipeline				2 185 000						
Pipeline from Soutkloof				4 140 000						
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	Fund				
R 52 396 481.00	R 5 571 000	R 18 538 600	R 11 418 402	R 8 141 887.49	R 4 973 545	MIG & DLG & OWN REVENUE				
Comments		Adjusted the Budget								

Logframe 1. 7 Water Provision

Programme : Waste Water Mar	nagement					IDP No. 0015				
Key Performance Area	Infrastruct	ture Develo	oment							
Objective: SO4	Strategy:		Baseline:							
Effective Maintenance and management of municipal assets and natural resources	Provision of sar	itation services	Wastewater infrastructure upgrade							
Indicator: 70% of the approved capital bu	idget spent									
Project Output	Item		Region							
Upgraded Sewerage system	CS Expenditure		Laingsburg							
Projects	Function		2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22			
Purchase of sewerage Pump			0	0	0	0	0			
Rehabilitation of sewerage works/ sludge	Infrastruct	ure Services		2 000 000	2 000 000					
Expansion of Matjiesfontein sewerage system			0	0	0	0	0			
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	F	und			
R 0.00	R 0	R 2 000 000	R 2 000 000	R 0	R O	CRR				
Comments			Adj	usted the Bud	get					

Logframe 1.8 Waste Water Management

Programme : Roads and Storm	water						10	P No. 001	6
Key Performance Area	Infrastruct	ure Developi	ment						
Objective: SO4			Strat	egy:				Baseline:	
Provision of Infrastructure to deliver			Provis	ion of r	oads, st	reets and si	de walks	Need road	infrastructure
improved services to all residents and busines	s								
Indicator: 70% of the approved capital b	udget spent								
Project Output	ltem			Regi	on				
Roads, streets and Sidewalks in place	CS Expenditure	CS Expenditure Whole Municipality							
Projects	Function			2017,	/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Paving of Hugo Street					0	0	0	0	0
Matjiesfontein Bus Route					0	0	0	0	0
Paving of Matjiesfontein streets							1 045 000	0	0
Speed Bumps					0	0	0	0	0
New sidewalks & public open space (Goldnerville 180 houses)								138530	
Göldnerville New stormwater channel	Infras	tructure Services					0	0	0
Göldnerville Stormwater Bridge Crossings							1 000 000	0	1 448 455
Goldnerville Additional Access Road						0	0	0	0
Upgrade of Storm water						0	0	0	0
Upgrade of Kambro street						0	0	0	0
Upgrade of Bridges						0	0	0	0
Upgrades of Side Walks						0	0	0	0
Resealing of Roads						0	0	0	0
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		2020	/21	2021/22	Fund	
R 0.00	R 0	R O	R 2 045	000	R 1	.38530	R 1 448 455	455 MIG, CRR	
Comments			Prio	ritisa <u>ti</u>	on of t	he Budget			

Logframe 1.9 Roads and Storm Water

Programme : Community Faciliti	es							IDP No. 0	017
Key Performance Area	Infrastruc	ture Develop	oment						
Objective: SO4				Stra	itegy:		Basel	ine:	
Provision of Infrastructure to deliver improved s	ervices to all resider	nts and business	s and business Provision of facilities Need of exp.						facilities
Indicator: 70% of the approved capital buc	get spent								
Project Output		Item	Region	1					
Sufficient facilities         CS Expenditure         Whole Municipality									
Projects		Function	2017/1	B	2018/19	2019/2	0	2020/21	2021/22
Upgrade of Bergsig Hall					0		0	0	0
Upgrade of JJ Ellis Sport facilities								717 500	
Play Grounds (Acacia Park, Nuwe Dorp & Baviaa	nsway)		0		0		0	0	0
Upgrade Mandela Park		Infrastructure	Infrastructure		0		0	0	0
Bergsig Sports Facility		Services			0		0	0	0
Public Toilets			0		0		0	0	0
Youth Café, Bergsig & Vleiland Computer center					0		0	0	0
Computer Equipment & Vleiland (Bergsig / Yout	n Centre)				0		0	0	0
Old Age Facility					0		0	0	0
Matjiesfontein Sports Facility					108 000				
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		2020/21	2021/2	2	F	und
R108 000.00	R 0	R 108 000	R 0		R 717 500	R 0			& CRR & SPOR EATION
Comments				Bu	dget Ajustmen	t			
			Complete	d					

Logframe 1. 10 Community Facilities

Project : Repair Flood Dan	nage		ІС	PP No. 0019
Key Performance Area	Infrastructure Deve	lopment		
Objective: SO4			Strategy:	Baseline:
Effective Maintenance & manager	ment of municipal assets and n	atural resources	Disaster Management Strategy	Flood damages
Indicator: 70% of the approved ca	pital budget spent			
Project Output	Item	Region		
Repair Flood Damage	CS Expenditure	Ward 3		

	Final Int	tegrated Deve	elopment Plan	4 <sup>th</sup> Review	/		
Main Activities	Function		2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Flood repairs	Infrastructure	Services	0	О	0	0	0
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	F	und
R 0.00	R O	R O	R 0	R 0	R 0		FG
	Loafram	e 1 11 Renair Flood	Damage				

Logframe 1.11 Repair Flood Damage

Project : Housing								IDP No. 0020			
Key Performance Area	Infrastruc	ture Developm	ent								
Objective: SO4	re: SO4 Strategy: Baseline:										
Effective Maintenance & manage resources	ment of municipal a	lanagement		Nee	ed for land Ga	p Housing					
Indicator: 70% of the approved ca	pital budget spent										
Project Output	ltem		Regi	on							
Provision of land for Gap Housing	CS Expenditu	ire	All w	ards							
Main Activities	Function		201	7/18	2018/19	2019/20	)	2020/21	2021/22		
Provision of serviced land for Housing	Infrastructure	Infrastructure Services 0 0 0						0	0		
Cost	2017/18	2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 F							und		
R 0.00	RO	RO RO RO RO RO MIG,									

Logframe 1.12 Housing

#### 1.6 Focus Area 4: Social and Community Development

The people of Laingsburg is very important, therefore the municipality wants to its bit to create a caring community, not just the municipality caring for its people but also people care about each other.

The municipality wants to make sure that Laingsburgers are feeling safe and that the municipality, including, provincial and national government is for them and they are the middle point of development and service delivery. Promoting equal accessibility to available opportunities for all, especially the poor and the youth. Moral regeneration as the social fabric of society is declining though awareness programs, skills development and training and the provision of free basic services.

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Strategic Objective 3	Improve the living environment of all people in Laingsburg
Outcome	Improved Morals and values of the community, Increased Skills levels, illiteracy reduced , Decrease in Crime, Healthier
	Communities, Education in Teenage Pregnancies, Reduction in new HIV/Aids infections, Reduction in Social grant Dependencies, Increased Housing Opportunities & Enhance access to Free Basic Services
Key Performance	Provide financial assistance to council approved tertiary students
Indicators	Provide public safety awareness days as per the programed approved in the IDP
	Participate in the provincial traffic departments Public Safety initiatives as approved in the IDP
	80% of approved capital budget spent
	Provide free basic services to indigent households (Water, electricity, sanitation and refuse Removal)
Municipal	
Function	Strategic Services, Financial Services, Technical Services & Public Safety

Alignment with National and Provincial Strategies

Sphere	Ref	Description
National KPA	NKPA	
National Outcome	NO	Increasing social cohesion
National Development Plan (2030)	NDP	Social Protection
Provincial Strategic Plan	PSG1	Improve Education outcomes and opportunities for youth development
(2040)	PSG3	Increase wellness, safety and tackle social ills
	PSG4	Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment
Provincial Strategic Objective	PSO's	Improve the Levels of language and math's
		Increase the number and quality of passes in the NSC
		Increase the quality of education provision in poorer communities
		Provide more social and economic opportunities for our youth
		Improve family support to children and youth and facilitate development
		Healthy Communities, Families, youth and children
		Create better living conditions for households especially low income and poor households
		Sustainable and integrated Ural and rural settlements
District Strategic	CKDM	SG 1: Promote Safe, Healthy and Socially stable communities through the provision of a
Objective	IDP	sustainable environmental health service
		SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities
		SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public safety in the region
		G6: Facilitate Good Governance principles and effective stakeholder participation

Table 1.5 Municipal PDO 5

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programs and projects will be implemented. During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints and the Recovery Plan which was implemented. The Thusong Service Centre at Laingsburg needs upgrades and possible satellite Thusong establishments for the Vleiland and Matjiesfontein farming areas

The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 21/22 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

Project: Community De	evelopment						IDP No	o. 0006		
Key Performance Area	SOCIAL AN	D COMMUNIT	Y DE'	VELOPM	ENT	r				
Objective: SO3						Strategy	:	Baseline:		
Improve the standards of livin	ng of all people in	n Laingsburg				Moral Rege	neration	Low morals o	f the people	
Indicator: Host communities a	awareness days a	as per programmes	appro	oved in the	IDP	1				
Project Outpu	ut	lt	em				R	egion		
Restored values of the pe	eoples	Expe	nditur	e			Whole N	lunicipality		
Main Activities	F	unction		2017/1	18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	
Disability Development (Staff Assistance)					0	0	0	56 500	56 500	
Cancer Awareness					0	0	2 000	0		
Old Age Development	Strategic Servio Service Centre Services	•				0	3 000	0		
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	20	19/20	2	2020/21	2021/22	F	UND	
R 0.00	0	R 0	R	5000	F	R 56 500	R 56 500		CRR	
Comments	-	Committees was a mens day, Mandela	•		for S	ocial Events 20	021/2022			

Logframe 1.13 Community Development

Project: Crime Prevention						IDP No	o. 0007					
Key Performance Area	SOCIAL ANI		Y DEVE	LOPN	IENT							
Objective: SO3 Strategy: Baseline:												
Improve the standards of living of	all people in Lair	ngsburg		Crim	e Prevention Stra	tegy	High Drug Related	d Crimes				
Indicator: Host communities awar	eness days as pe	r programmes app	proved in	the IDP								
Project Output				Iten	n		Region					
Educated Community, Re Aftercare Programme is p	habilitated lace	abuses &		Expe	nditure		Whole Municipal	ity				
Main Activities	Function		20	17/18	2018/19	2019/2	0 2020/21	2021/22				
Crime Prevention Programmes	Strategic Servic Service Centre		53	300	0	0	0	0				
LADAAG	Services		20	000	0	5 000	3 000	5 000				
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019	/20	2020/21	2021/2	2 Fund					
R 25 300.00	R 25 300	R 0	R 5 00	0	R 3 000	R 5000		CRR				
Comments	Reprioritisat	ion of Budget										

Logframe 1.14 Crime Prevention

	ng & Skills Develo	spinent				IDP No. 0						
Key Performance Area	SOCIAL AND	SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT										
Objective: SO3		Strateg	gy:		Base	line:						
Improve the standards of living of			n of Functio	nal Literacy	Low sk Studie		ck of fundi	ng for Tertiary				
Indicator: Provide Financial assista	nce to Council approve	ed tertiary st										
Project Output				Item		Re	gion					
Employable workforce and studen	ts enrolled in Tertiary I	Institutions		Expenditure		Who	ole Municip	pality				
Main Activities	Function		2017/18 2018/19		201	9/20 20	020/21	2021/22				
Student Bursary	Development Se	ervice	32 000	0		0	300 000	0				
Community Training & Skills	Thusong Service	e Centre										
Development	Finance & Corp	orate	30 000	0		0	0	0				
Laingsburg Literacy Project	Services		200 000	0		0	0	0				
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/2	2020	/21	2021/22	Fund					
R 262 000.00	R 262 000	R 0	R 0	R 300 00	D	RO		CRR				
Comment	Budget Repric											

Logframe 1.15 Training & Skills Development

Project: Early Chi	ldhood Developm	nent	IDP No. 0009									
Key Performance Are	a	SOCIAL	L AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT									
Objective: SO3			Strate	egy:		Bas	seline:					
Improve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg				nildhood Develo	pment	Dap	permuis &	Care b	ears still in reg	istration phase		
Indicator: Host communitie	es awareness days as p	per programm	es appr	oved in the IDP								
Project Output			Iten	n				Reg	ion			
Dappermuis & Car bears ECD Centre in full op			Expenditure Ward 1 & War					d 1 & Ward 2				
Main Activities	Function			2017/18	2018/	19	2019/2	20	2020/21	2021/22		
Provide Support Provide Financial Aid					0		0		0			
Cost	2018/19		2019/20	2020/2	1	2021	/22	Fu	und			
R 10 000.00		R O	R 0		R 0		C	RR				

Logframe 1.16 ECD

Project: Community Safety	Programme						IDP	IDP No. 0011		
Key Performance Area	5	SOCIAL AND	COMMUNIT	Y DEV	ELOPN	VIENT & LED				
Objective: SO3	I				Strat	tegy:	Bas	eline:		
Improve the standards of living of all p sustainable environment for communi		irg Develop a safe	fe, clean, healthy and EPWP				High	Crime I	_evels	
Indicator: Indicator: Create job op	portunities throu	gh LED								
Project Output			ltem				Reg	gion		
Safer Laingsburg			CS Expenditure	е			Who	ole muni	cipality	
Main Activities	Function		2017/18	2018/	19	2019/20	2020/2	1	2021/22	
Neighborhood Watch	Commu	nity Services	348 360	305 (	000	335 000	219 600		330 000	
Law Enforcement Programme		158 400		0	60 000	110 400		0		
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	20	20/21	202	1/22	Fun	d	
R 911 660.00	R 506 760	0 R 305 000	R 395 000	R 330	000	R 330 000		EPW	P	

Logframe 1.17 Community Safety

Project: Community Dev	velopment Wor	kers				IDP	IDP No. 0012					
Key Performance Area	Key Performance Area SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & LED											
Objective: SO3	e: SO3 Strategy:											
healthy and sustainable environmer	ve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg Develop a safe, clean, EPWP and sustainable environment for communities tor: Indicator: Create job opportunities through LED											
Project Output	ltem		Region									
Developed Communities	Expenditure		Whole munic	ipality								
Main Activities	Function		2017/18	2018/1	.9 201	9/20	2020/2	1 2021/22				
Advertisement	Community Serv	ices										
Recruitment	-		193 000	195 00		90 000	185 000	185 000				
Induction & Training												
Cost	2017/18	017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Fu										
R 388 000.00	R 193 000	195 000	90 000	185	000	185	000	EPWP				

Logframe 1.18 Municipal CDW's

### 1.7 Focus Area 5: Institutional Transformation

This priority is based on the municipal mission that was identified to achieve the municipal vision of becoming **a destination of choice where people come first**. Leaders, management and employees ascribing to integrity, transparency, accountability, service excellence, being responsive and make sure that all have access to the same quality of service. This will harness inclusiveness and give everyone a sense of belonging, internally and externally.

This focus area is based on good governance, the promotion of organisational excellence and the utilisation resources in an effective, efficient and economical way. The utilisation of the ward participatory system, audit committee and the Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) to prevent corruption but also monitor performance in line with the IDP, Budget and Implementation plans.

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Strategic	To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional services to its
Objective <b>5</b>	clientele guided by municipal values
Outcome	Less than 10 % vacancies at any time, Sound HR practices, Skilled workforce, & Reaching of employment equity targets
Key Performance Indicators	<ul> <li>Limit vacancy rate to less than 10% of budgeted posts</li> <li>1% of the operating budget spent on training</li> <li>Develop a Risk Based Audit Plan and summit it to the audit committee for consideration</li> <li>Employ people from the employment equity target groups in the three highest levels of management in compliance with the municipal approved employment equityplan</li> <li>Achieve a ungualified audit opinion</li> </ul>
Municipal Function	Finance and Corporate Services

#### Alignment with National and Provincial Strategies

Sphere	Ref	Description							
National KPA	NKPA	Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development							
National Outcome	NO	A skilled and capable workforce to support inclusive growth							
National Development Plan (2030)	NDP	Improving the quality of education, training and innovation Reforming the public service							
Provincial Strategic PlanPSG3(2040)PSG5		Increase wellness, safety and tackle social ills Embedded good governance and integrated service delivery through partnerships and spatial alignment							
Provincial Strategic Objective	PSO	Healthy Workforce Enhance Governance Inclusive Society Integrated Management							
District Strategic Objective	CKDM IDP	SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities SG 5: Deliver a sound and effective administrative and financial to achieve sustainability and viability in the region.							

Table 1.5: Municipal PDO 5

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programmes and projects will be implemented. During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints and the Recovery Plan which was implemented. The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 20/21 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

## Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review

Programme: Administrative Support									IDP No	. 0021			
Key Performance Area INSTIT				AL TAN	NSFC								
Objective:				Strategy: Baseline					:				
To create an institution with skilled employees to p a professional service to its clientele guided by the municipal values				Institutional support Lac				ack of equipment and systems					
Indicator: 70% of the app	roved capital b	udget spent											
Project Output				Item				Region					
Department equipped to render a professional service					CS Expenditure				Whole L	Whole Laingsburg			
Projects Fun			unction			2017/18	2018/19		2019/20	2020/21	2021/22		
Plant & Equipment SC			CM &HOD's			0	0		0	0	0		
Office Furniture					0	0		0	0	0			
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	202	0/21	2012,	/22		FUND				
R 0.00	R O	0	0		0	0		CRR					
Comments	Reprioritisation of projects due to budgte constraints												

#### Logframe 1.19 Administrative Support

Project: Policies and Plans									IDP No	. 0022	
Key Performance Area	INSTITUTIONAL TRANSFORMATION										
Objective:						Strategy:		Baseli	line:		
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by the municipal values						nstitutional sup	port	Lack of equipment and systems			
Indicator: 70% of the approved capital bu	udget spent										
Project Output	ltem		Region								
Department equipped to render a	Expenditure			hole Laingsb							
professional service											
Projects	Function	Function			7/18 2018/19		2019/20		2020/21	2021/22	
Review of Policies and Plans	All Functions	All Functions		000 000 0		)	0		0	0	
Vehicles: Refuse Removal	Infrastructure						350 000		350 000	500 000	
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		2020/21		2012/22		FUND		
R 1 000 000.00	R 1 000 000	R O	R 350 0		100 R350 00		R 500	000	MSIG, MFG , WCSO CRR, WCMIG		
Comments	Reprioritised Project										
# Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review Logframe 1.20 Policies and Plans

Project: Ward Committee System						IDP No. 00	23	
Key Performance Area	INSTITUTIO	ONAL TRANS	FORMATIO	N				
Objective:	Strategy:			Baseline:				
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by the municipal values	Institutional support			Weakness in ward committee system				
Indicator: Effective ward committee	ee system							
Project Output		Item				Region		
4 Effective ward committees	Expenditure			Whole Laingsburg				
Projects		Function		2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Ward committees	Development Serv	vices		320 000	320 000	320 000	340 000	385 200
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/2	1 2012/22		FUND	
R 1600 000.00	R 320 000	R 320 000	R 320 000	R 340 000	R 385 200		quitable Sha )wn Revenue	

Logframe 1.21 Ward Committee System

### 1.8 Focus Area 6: Financial Viability

Priority 6 is crucial in the sustainability of the municipality, a long term financial plan will be developed focusing on revenue enhancement, sound financial planning and ensuring that there is sufficient leadership and internal control. Supply Chain Management improvement in securing goods and services. The implementation of new mSCOA financial system, the continuous monitoring, evaluation and improving on an annual basis.

Strategic					
Objective 6	To achieve residents	e financial	viability in order to render affordable services to		
Outcome	Financial Vial	bility & Clean	Audit Report		
Key Performance Indicators	<ul> <li>Financial viability measured in terms of the municipality's ability to meet its service debt obligations</li> <li>Financial viability measured in terms of the outstanding service debtors</li> <li>Financial viability measured in terms of the available cash to cover fixed operating expenditure</li> <li>Achieve a debtors payment % of 60%</li> </ul>				
Municipal Function	Finance				
Alignment with Nat	ional, Provincio	al and Distric	t Strategies		
Sphere		Ref	Description		
National KPA		ΝΚΡΑ	Municipal Financial Viability and Management		
National Outcome		NO	A responsive and, accountable, effective and efficient local government system		
National Developme (2030)	ent Plan	NDP	Transforming Human Settlements		
Provincial Developn Plan (2040)	nent	PSG5	Embedded good governance and integrated service delivery through partnerships and spatial alignment		
Provincial Strategic Objective		PSO	Integrated Management Enhanced Governance		
District Strategic Objective		CKDM IDP	SG 5: Deliver a sound and effective administrative and financial to achieve sustainability and viability in the region.		

Table 1.6: Municipal PDO 6

In order for Laingsburg to achieve this strategic objective, programs and projects

will be implemented.

During 2020/21 financial year, the municipality implemented the projects which was highlighted green, the projects that was highlight red was not implemented due to financial constraints and the Recovery Plan which was implemented. The underneath table also outline the planned projects for the 21/22 financial years as well as the rest of the years of this IDP cycle;

### **Project: Financial Sustainability**

#### IDP No. 0024

Key Performance Area		FINANCIAL VIABILITY						
Objective:	Strategy:	trategy: Baseline:						
To achieve financial viability in	Long Term Financia	l Plan		Low Revenue base	e and insufficient	debt collection		
order to render affordable								
services to residents								
Indicator: Financial viability mease	ured in terms of th	e available cas	h to cover fixe	d operating exp	penditure			
Project Output	ltem			Region				
Financial Viability	Expenditure			Whole Lain	gsburg			
Projects	Function			2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22
Implementation mSCOA	All Functions			330 000	330 000	330 000	0	
Data Cleansing (revue enhancement and asset verification)							1 000 000	
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22		FUND	
R 330 000.00	R 330 000	R 330 000	<b>R 330 000</b>	R 1000 0	R 0	WCSG ,	MFG & CRR	
		Loaframe	1.22 Financial	Sustainahility				

2 Financial Sustainability

Project: System Improvement									IDP	No. 0025	
Key Performance Area	FINANCIA	L VIABILITY	,								
Objective:	Strategy:		Ba	aselin	e:						
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Municipal Supp	Municipal Support Low Revenue base and insufficient debt collection									
Indicator: Financial viability measured in	terms of the mun	icipality's abili	ty to mee	t its s	ervice de	bt obl	igations				
Project Output	ltem			Reg	gion						
Financial Viability	Expenditure			Wh	ole Laing	sburg					
Projects	Function			20	17/18	201	8/19	201	9/20	2020/21	2021/22
SDBIP & PMS Improvement Programme	All Functions			200	000	C	)	60	000	200 000	0
IDP Planning				50 0	000	0		(	D	80 000	0
Finance Improvement Programme				132	0 000	0		200	000	0	0
Cost	2017/18	2018/19	2019/	20	2020/21	1	2012,	/22	FUND		
R 1 570 000.00	R 1 570 000	RO	R260 (	000	R 280	000	R 0	)	v	NCSG , MFG	& CRR

Logframe 1.23 System Improvement

# 2 Laingsburg Spatial Development Framework

The municipality will continue to invest in infrastructure to ensure that the municipality has the capacity to support development.

Laingsburg will have to be expanded, planned light industries and people need to be supported by adequate services, from electricity, water and other amenities to additional services that aid modern development beyond the basics, such as a broadband network and public transport networks. The Laingsburg SDF was already amended in 2017 and no current review or update is in progress however one may follow in the 2021/22 financial year based on MISA's assistance.

### 2.1 Proposed Long Term Vision for the Municipality:

"That Laingsburg Municipality is and will continue to improve as a desirable place to live, invest and visit based on its potential as the Oasis Gateway to the Great Karoo, Moordenaars Karoo and Klein Swartberg, so that all of its residents may enjoy a sustainable way of life."

Goals:

- i. To improve the quality and knowledge of the tourism attractions in the municipality;
- To integrate the municipality's settlements through appropriate rural and urban development;
- iii. To conserve and extend the municipality's agricultural resources and promote wider access to them; and,
- iv. To strengthen Laingsburg town's role as a transport support, refreshment and emergency service centre straddling on the national Cape Town Gauteng transport corridor.

The above mentioned programmes, projects and initiatives to the value of R 145 233 829.00 (due to the COVID Pandemic not all programmes was implemented) will be implemented over the 5 year cycle. The following map give a spatial reflection how funding will be spend within the 6 priority areas of the municipality, Basic Service Delivery has the biggest portion of the funding but will be spread over all 4 wards within the municipality.

By continuously investing in infrastructure, we will be encouraging and, indeed, leading growth by always ensuring the physical supporting capacity for people to build opportunities. Over the next five years, the municipality will be investing in a number of major infrastructure projects. These include the following:



### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

### **Proposed Infrastructure Projects**

- Upgrade of the Electricity Network;
- $\circ \quad \mbox{Provision of new water infrastructure;} \\$
- Replacement of aging infrastructure;
- Upgrading of water infrastructure;
- $\circ$   $\quad$  Upgrading and provision of new of road network;
- Upgrading of sewerage system;
- Upgrading of community facilities;
- Upgrading of waste water;
- Promotion of Local Economic Development



Map 2:1: Spatial Reflection of IDP Programmes and Projects

#### Local Government MTEF Allocations: 2020/2021 – 2022/23 (R Thousands)

National Allocations / Municipality	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	Grand Total
Equitable share	18,461	19,470	19,496	57,427
Special Support for Councilllor Remuneration and Ward Committees	1,679	1,731	1,798	5,208
Expanded Public Works Programme Integrated Grant for Municipalities	1,098		0	1,098
Integrated National Electrification Programme (ESKOM) Grant	0	0	0	0
Integrated National Electrification Programme (Municipal) Grant	0	3,000	4,000	7,000
Local Government Financial Management Grant	1,750	1,750	1,800	5,300
Municipal Infrastructure Grant	6,719	6,900	6,969	20,588
Western Cape Municipal Intervention Grants	500	0	0	500
Municipal Systems Improvement Grant	0	0		0
Water Services Infrastructure Grant	7,496	12,000	8,721	28 217

WCG Departments and funding	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	Gran d Total
Development of sport and recreation facilities	717	0		717
Library services replacement funding for most vulnerable B3 municipalities	1,564	1,591	1,618	4,773
Human Settlements	0	0	0	0
Human Settlements Development grant (Beneficiaries)	0	0	0	0
Local Government graduate internship grant	0	0	0	0
Municipal Drought support grant	0	0	0	0
Thusong service centres grant (Sustainability: Operational support grant)	0	0	0	0
Community Development Worker Operational Support Grant	94	94	94	282
Western Cape Financial Management Capacity Building Grant	250	0	0	250
Western Cape Financial Management Support Grant	0	0	0	0
Financial assistance to municipalities for maintenance and construction of transport infrastructure	50	50	50	150

Table 2.2 National Allocations (Source WCG: PT, Budget Estimates of Provincial Revenue and Expenditure



Map 2.2: Spatial Reflection of Sector IDP Programs and Projects

### 2.2 Conclusion

Laingsburg Local Municipality (LLM) strategic agenda for this IDP cycle embrace these twin realities and maximise growth, while providing services to a growing population. The municipality is forced to make a shift for economic growth shifts, innovative and dynamic policies will assist us in achieving our goal of sustainability. The plans articulated in this IDP will go some way towards helping us position ourselves for the opportunities of the future, and will guide us as we move forward in the global community.

# 3 Legislative Framework

Integrated development planning (IDP) is a process by which Laingsburg Municipality prepared it strategic development plan for the 2017 – 2022 financial years. Integrated development planning as an instrument lies at the center of the new system of developmental local government in South Africa and represents the driving force for making municipalities more strategic, inclusive, responsive and performance driven in character.

The IDP seeks to integrate and balance the economic, ecological and social pillars of sustainability within the Laingsburg municipal area without compromising the institutional capacity required to implement and coordinate the efforts needed across sectors and relevant spheres of government. The IDP is therefore the principle strategic planning instrument which guides and informs all planning, budgeting and all development in the Laingsburg municipal area.





The IDP is also the strategic planning tool of the municipality and is prepared within the first year after the newly elected Council has been appointed and will be reviewed annually during the Council's term of office. The objectives and actions identified in this IDP will inform the structure of the municipality, the service delivery standards, all financial planning and budgeting as well as performance reporting by the municipality.

The 4<sup>th</sup>generation IDP's set a structure for socio, economic, infrastructure and institutional development

for the 2017-2022 financial years. This credible IDP should be the consolidated long term developmental strategy of all the other strategic documents that exists on municipal level, such as the sector plans, ward based plans and the various master plans; include plans per local municipality to address their needs and seeks for targeted investment in government and other resources to address inequalities and the needs of the community; serve as a framework for the municipality to prioritise its actions around meeting urgent needs, while maintaining the overall economic, municipal and social infrastructure already in place; and a vital tool to ensure the integration of the municipality's activities with other spheres of development planning at provincial, national and international levels, by serving as a basis for communication and interaction.

### 3.1 Applicable Legislation

The mandate of the municipality is provided for in section 152 of the Constitution of South Africa that stipulates the objectives for developmental local government, namely:

- To provide democratic and accountable government for local communities;
- To ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;
- To promote social and economic development;
- To promote a safe and healthy environment; and
- To encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in matters of local government.

The **Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 Of 2000** requires the municipality to develop Integrated Development Plans which should be single, inclusive and strategic in nature. The IDP of Laingsburg municipality guide development within the council's area of jurisdiction since it was adopted and the IDP should also be reviewed annually. In addition the Act also stipulates the IDP process and the components to be included.

The mandate of the municipality is provided for in section 152 of the Constitution of South Africa that stipulates the objectives for developmental local government, namely:

- To provide democratic and accountable government for local communities;
- To ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;
- To promote social and economic development;
- To promote a safe and healthy environment; and
- To encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in matters of local

government.

The Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 of 2000, Section 34 states that; a municipal council must review its integrated development plan;

- annually in accordance with an assessment of its performance measurements in terms of section
   4i; and
- ii. to the extent that changing circumstances so demand; and
- iii. may amend its integrated development plan in accordance with a prescribed process.

**The Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations of 2001** set out the following minimum requirements for an Integrated Development Plan and states that the municipality's IDP must at least identify:

- the institutional framework, which must include an organogram required for the implementation of the Integrated Development Plan and addressing the internal transformation;
- any investment initiatives in the municipality;
- any development initiatives in the municipality, including infrastructure, physical, social and institutional development;
- all known projects, plans and programs to be implemented within the municipality by any organ of the state; and
- the key performance indicators set by the municipality.

Regulation 2 (3) sets out matters/issues that must be reflected in the financial plan that must form part of the integrated development plan.

Regulation 2 (4) states that a spatial development framework reflected in the municipality's integrated development plan must:

#### Section 21(2) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) (MFMA) states that, when

preparing the annual budget, the mayor of a municipality must:

- take into account the municipality's Integrated Development Plan;
- take all reasonable steps to ensure that the municipality revises the integrated development plan in terms of section 34 of the MSA, taking into account realistic revenue and expenditure projections for future years;
- take into account the national budget, the relevant provincial budget, the national government's fiscal and macroeconomic policy, the annual Division of Revenue Act and any agreements reached

in the Budget Forum;

- consult the relevant district municipality and all other local municipalities within the area of the district municipality, if the municipality is a local municipality; all local municipalities within its area, if the municipality is a district; the relevant provincial treasury, and when requested, the National Treasury; and any national or provincial organs of state, as may be prescribed; and
- provide, on request, any information relating to the budget to the National Treasury; and subject to any limitations that may be prescribed, to the national departments responsible for water, sanitation, electricity and any other service as may be prescribed; any other national and provincial organ of states, as may be prescribed; and another municipality affected by the budget.

The IDP has been compiled in terms of Chapter 5 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act 32 of 2000).

### 3.2 Development and Implementation of the IDP

The IDP was developed in terms of an IDP process plan developed to ensure that the IDP process complies with certain minimum quality standards, to ensure that proper coordination between and within the spheres of government is established and engaged during the preparation of the IDP. The process plan is in effect a "plan to plan". Council approved the process plan for 2021-2022 on 25 Augustus 2020 that set out the methods and approached according to which the IDP planning process to be conducted.

A series of engagements were held to solicit inputs and comments on the IDP/Budget process plan. Upon approval the process plan were disseminated to provincial departments, IDP

Representative Forum, and key stakeholders to engage meaningfully with the process and also to allow proper planning to be carried out for the disbursement of the resources necessary to conduct the process.

The IDP was compiled based on the inputs received from municipal stakeholders, national and provincial policy directives, the current status of service delivery, various strategic plans completed and resources available. The municipal budget was prepared based on the municipal strategic objectives, the requirements applicable to the municipality in the IDP and hereby attaches resources to the IDP requirements. These strategies, actions and financial resources are linked with each other in the iMAP attached to the IDP as Annexure A hereby ensuring alignment of the municipal budget with the IDP.

The iMAP will be used to annually formulate the service delivery budget implementation plan (SDBIP) and performance indicators for the Municipality, which will be used to monitor the implementation of the municipal strategies (IDP) and budget. The performance of the municipality will then be assessed and reported on quarterly as well as annually in the municipality's annual report.

# 4 Process Plan

This Process Plan sets the tone and purpose of the activities required for the successful completion, as required by law. It also sets the extent and nature of the Schedule activities in the Municipality will engage in (for the next seven months, until August 2021) in order to review its 5-year IDP (Single Strategic Plan). The Process Plan should fulfil the function of an operational plan for the IDP process. It should say in a simple and transparent manner what has to happen when, by whom and where and it should include a cost estimate. Accordingly it should be a highly standardized document which provides an easy overview through formats.

Integrated development planning is the key tool for local government to cope with its role and function in terms of the SA Constitution and other applicable legislation. In contrast to the role municipal strategic planning has played in the past, integrated development planning is now seen as a function of municipal management, as part of an integrated system of planning and delivery. The IDP process is meant to arrive at decisions on issues such as municipal budget priorities, land management, social and economic development and institutional transformation in a consultative, systematic and strategic manner.

The integrated development planning process has to provide a forum for identifying, discussing and resolving the real issues in a municipality (which may be over-arching issues for the whole municipality, as well as issues of specific communities or stakeholder groups) to a level of detail which is required for realistic costing and which helps manage the implementation process without much delay.

The Process Plan fulfils the function of an operational framework for the IDP process. It says in a simple and transparent manner what has to happen when, by whom, with whom, and where, and it includes a budget.

The IDP will be applicable to the Laingsburg Local Municipal Area which includes the following towns and settlements: Laingsburg, Matjiesfontein and Farming communities within the Laingsburg Municipal Area. The geographic size of the municipal area is approximately 8 781, 44 square kilometers.

### 4.1 Legal Requirements with regard to preparation of the IDP Process

In order to ensure certain minimum quality standards of the IDP process and a proper co- ordination between and within the spheres of government, the preparation of the planning process has been regulated in the **Municipal Systems Act, 2000.** The Act requires the following regarding the process: **SECTION 28:** (1) Each municipal council, within a prescribed period after the start of its elected term, must adopt a process set out in writing to guide the planning, drafting, adoption and review of its integrated development plan. (2) The municipality must through appropriate mechanisms, processes and procedures established in terms of Chapter 4, consult the local community before adopting the process.

(3) A municipality must give notice to the local community of particulars of the process it intends to follow.

SECTION 29(1): The process must -

- a) be in accordance with a predetermined program specifying timeframes for the different steps;
- b) through appropriate mechanisms, processes and procedures established in terms of Chapter 4, allow for
  - i. the local community to be consulted on its development needs and priorities;
  - ii. the local community to participate in the drafting of the integrated development plan; and
  - iii. organs of state, including traditional authorities, and other role players to be identified and consulted on the drafting of the integrated development plan;
- c) provide for the identification of all plans and planning requirements binding on the municipality in terms of national and provincial legislation; and
- d) be consistent with any other matters that may be prescribed by regulation.

In terms of the Municipal Systems Act of 2000, the Executive Mayor is responsible for the preparation of the Integrated Development plan (IDP). The co-ordination of this responsibility was assigned to the Municipal Manager, who reports directly to the Executive Mayor. This IDP process and the drafting of outputs will be co-coordinated internally and mechanisms will be put in place to ensure that all stakeholders contribute to decision-making process.

### 4.2 Background and context of the 4<sup>th</sup> Annual Review of 2017/22 IDP

The Laingsburg Municipal IDP for the 2017-2022 financial years was compiled for the 5 years. The approved 4<sup>th</sup> Generation IDP formed the basis for the IDP and will assist with the verification of data and statistics. The compilation of this IDP's is continuation of processes which commenced during the formulation of the first Five year IDP as well as the long term Growth and Development Strategy 2007-2022 for the municipality.

The report focuses on the key strategic development priorities, Outcome 10 and projects that will be addressed within this IDP cycle (2017/22) and the total budget which will be linked to the refined strategic development priorities.

The approach therefore focused on the evaluation of the performance of the municipality in achieving its objectives, strategies and outputs chosen to address the various priority needs of the community. The

approach adopted for the compilation was therefore much more introspective in order to identify the institutional gaps within implementation where after a more participative approach was followed in order to update and where necessary review in total, the objectives, strategies and outputs chosen by the organisation to address the priority needs. In addition, feedback on priority needs within local communities was also established throughout the Spatial Development Framework Analysis phase which was conducted throughout the municipal Area in 2017.

#### 4.3 Phases of the Integrated Development Plan

IDP Phase	Activity	Mechanisms
Analysis	Spatial and Environment	Sector Plans
	Social	Spatial Development Framework
	Local Economic Development	Ward Plans
	Service Delivery	MSCOA Guidelines
	Institutional and Transformation	
	Financial Viability	
Strategy	Council and Management discuss strategic issues such as	Strategy workshops
	vision and mission, future directions, strategic goals and	Stakeholder discussions
	objectives.	In-house exercise by Management Team
Project & Action Planning	Community Based Planning, Ward Committee, IDP	Strategy workshops
	Representative Forum and Project / Programme	Stakeholder discussions
	Prioritisation, and the setting of key performance	In-house exercise by Management Team
	indicators and targets for each strategic objective.	
Integration	Align with National and Provincial Policies and	Desk top study by Manager Planning and
	communicated implementation	Development
Approval of Draft IDP and	Finalise and approve draft IDP and draft annual	In-house preparation of the relevant
Budget	budget	documentation and submission to Council
Consultation and refinement	Make public the draft IDP and draft annual budget for	In-house exercise by HOD's and Manager
	comments and submissions.	Planning and Development
	Submit the draft annual budget to National and Provincial	Public meetings & workshops
	Treasury, prescribed national or provincial organs of state	Ward Committee Engagements
	and to other municipalities affected by the budget.	IDP Budget Roadshow
	Consult the Central Karoo District Municipality on the	
	draft IDP.	
	Consult the local community and other stakeholders	
Final Approval	Council approves the final IDP and final annual budget	In-house preparation of the relevant
		documentation and submission to Council

The IDP will be developed in accordance of the following table;

Table 4.1 IDP Phases of the IDP

### 4.4 Annual revision and amendment of the IDP

This IDP must be reviewed on an annual basis and when the need arise it must be revised. The purpose of the review will be to monitor and evaluate implementation. An amendment must be done, if the

municipality want to change the strategic agenda. The following section of legislation is applicable in this regard;

MSA Section 34: Annual review and amendment of integrated development plan municipal council-

- a) must review its integrated development plan
  - i. annually in accordance with an assessment of its performance measurements in terms of section 41; and
  - ii. to the extent that changing circumstances so demand; and
- b) may amend its integrated development plan in accordance with a prescribed process.

### 4.5 Purpose of a review

The IDP has to be reviewed annually in order to:

- Ensure its relevance as the municipality's strategic plan;
- inform other components of the municipal business process including institutional and financial planning and budgeting; and
- inform the cyclical inter-governmental planning and budgeting cycle.

For the IDP to remain relevant the municipality must assess implementation performance and the achievement of its targets and strategic objectives. In the light of this assessment the IDP is reviewed to reflect the impact of successes as well as corrective measures to address problems. The IDP is also reviewed in the light of changing internal and external circumstances that impact on the priority issues, outcomes and outputs of the IDP.

The annual review must inform the municipality's financial and institutional planning and most importantly, the drafting of the annual budget. It must be completed in time to properly inform the latter.

The purpose of this annual review is therefore to -

- reflect and report on progress made with respect to the strategy in the 5 year IDP;
- make adjustments to the strategy if necessitated by changing internal and external circumstances that impact on the appropriateness of the IDP;
- determine annual targets and activities for the next financial year in line with the 5 year strategy; and
- inform the municipality's financial and institutional planning and most importantly, the drafting of the annual budget.

#### 4.6 Review Clarification

The Review is not a replacement of the 5 year IDP. The Review is not meant to interfere with the longterm strategic orientation of the municipality to accommodate new whims and additional demands.

#### 4.7 Amendment

An amendment is when the municipality make changes to the 5Year IDP's Strategic Agenda, e.g. Vision, Mission and Strategic Objectives

### 4.8 Key planning and Policy Directives

This section will identify the relationship between the Laingsburg Municipality Integrated Development Plan and the other key planning and policy instruments from the national, provincial and the district government levels. The instruments aligned to the IDP are those perceived to be key, they also have a cross cutting effect at the other levels of government. They currently occupy the centre stage at their respective spheres of government and they have an overarching role. One of the key objectives of IDP is to ensure alignment between national and provincial priorities, policies and strategies (as listed below):

- Millennium Development Goals
- National Development Plan Priorities (2030 Vision)
- National Spatial Development Perspective
- National Key Performance Areas & Local Government Turn Around Strategy
- National Outcomes
- Provincial Strategic Plan
- Central Karoo District Municipal IDP

### 4.8.1 International Policy Directives - Millennium Development Goals

In September 2000, 189 countries, including the Republic of South Africa, committed to the Millennium Declaration. This declaration sets out clear targets which are intended to be met by the year 2015. Laingsburg municipality's IDP should be responsive to the programmes and actions identified for each Millennium Development goals. The municipality is committed to the goals and will plan in accordance, in terms of significantly addressing the plight of poor people and broader development objectives.

Development goals	Programs & Actions
Eradicate extreme poverty and	Reduce by half the proportion of people living on less than one U.S. dollar a day.
hunger	Reduce by half the proportion of people who suffer from hunger.
Achieve universal primary	Ensure that all boys and girls complete a full course of primary schooling.
Education	
Promote gender equity and	Eliminate gender disparity in primary and secondary education at all levels.
empower women	
Reduce child mortality	Reduce by two thirds the mortality rate among children under five.
Improve maternal health	Reduce by three quarters the maternal mortality rate.
Combat HIV/AIDS, malaria, and	Halt and begin to reverse the spread of HIV/AIDS.
other diseases	Halt and begin to reverse the incidence of malaria and other major diseases.
Ensure environmental	Integrate the principles of sustainable development into country policies and programs,
sustainability	and reverse the loss of environmental resources.
	Reduce by half the proportion of people without sustainable access to safe drinking
	water.
	Achieve significant improvement in lives of at least 100 million slum dwellers by 2020.
Develop a global partnership for	Develop an open trading and financial system that is rule-based, predictable and non-
development	discriminatory.
	Address the least developed countries' special needs that include tariff- and quota-free
	access for exports, enhanced debt relief, cancellation of debt and more generous
	development assistance.
	Address the special needs of landlocked and small island developing countries.
	Deal comprehensively with developing countries' debt problems through national and
	international measures to make debt sustainable in the long term.
	In cooperation with the developing countries, develop decent and productive work for
	the youth.
	In cooperation with pharmaceutical companies, provide access to affordable essential
	drugs in developing countries.

Table 4.2 Millennium Goals

#### 4.8.2 National, Provincial and District Development Planning and Policy Directives

Chapter 5 of the MSA, in particular, provides instruction on co-operative governance, encouraging municipalities to develop their strategies in line with other organs of state so as to give effect to the fiveyear strategic plan. It goes further to inform that the IDP must link, integrate and co-ordinate development plans for the municipality. Resources and capacity must align with the implementation of the plan, forming the foundation on which the annual budget must be based. The plan must be compatible with national development plans and planning requirements binding on the municipality in terms of legislation.

The state has introduced a three-tiered system of integrated planning aimed at ensuring intergovernmental priority setting, resource allocation, implementation, and monitoring and evaluation to achieve sustainable development and service delivery. The key instruments which constitute this system include at national level the National Development Plan (*Vision for 2030*), the Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) and the National Spatial Development Perspective (NSDP) as indicative and normative planning instruments; at provincial level the Provincial Strategic Plan (PSP) supported by Provincial Spatial Development Framework (PSDF); and at local level the municipal Integrated Development Plan (IDP), which include Spatial Development Framework (SDF). Improvements in spatial analysis has allowed for a clearer basis for spatial priorities to be laid out in the PSDF. The PSDF guides the focusing of infrastructure investment in certain spatial areas.

- *The National Development Plan:* Is a step in the process of charting a new path for the country. The broad goal is to eliminate poverty and reduce inequality by 2030.
- Medium-Term Strategic Framework: The MTSF base document is meant to guide planning and resource allocation across all the spheres of government. National and provincial departments in have to develop their five-year strategic plans and budget requirements taking into account the medium-term imperatives. Municipalities are expected to adapt their Integrated Development Plans in line with the national medium- term priorities. Each of the priorities contained in the MTSF should be attended to. Critically, account has to be taken of the strategic focus of the framework as a whole: this relates in particular the understanding that economic growth and development, including the creation of decent work on a large scale and investment in quality education and skills development, are at the centre of the government'sapproach.
- National Spatial Development Perspective (2003): The NSDP puts forward the following national spatial vision: "South Africa will become a nation in which investment in infrastructure and development programmes support government's growth and development objectives." The guidelines put forward by the NSDP are: (1) prioritises investment and development spending in line with governments objectives, invest and spend should maximise and achieve a sustainable outcomes. (2) Spatial forms and arrangements must be conducive to achievement social and economic inclusion and strengthen nation building.
- *Provincial Strategic Plan (PSP):* The Provincial Administration of the Western Cape commenced with the development of the Provincial Strategic Plan (PSP) during 2009. The plan sets out overarching objectives and clear outcomes to be achieved in the medium term. This strategic plan was finalised during 2010 and states the following vision: *"An open, opportunity society for all"* in the Western Cape. The strategic plan seeks to achieve 5 strategic goals;
  - I. SG1: create opportunities for growth and jobs;

- II. SG2: improve education outcomes and opportunities for youth development;
- III. SG3: increase wellness, safety and tackle social ills;
- IV. SG4: enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment; and
- V. SG5: embed good governance and integrated service delivery through partnership and spatial alignment.

Under the 5 strategic goals twenty four (24) strategic objectives set out the determine policy direction and key interventions required to achieve the objectives. The objectives reflect the needs and priorities of the provincial government and will be used to drive integrated and improved performance of the public sector in the Western Cape. Provincial departments are custodians and champions for the attainment of the listed provincial strategic objectives. The strategic plan takes into account the powers and function of the provincial government but a critical theme that links all objectives is the inclusive approach to address the challenges. Strengthened intergovernmental relations and strategic partnerships with all spheres of government, none governmental organization and the private sector are critical for the successful implementation of the plan. The following highlights the 24 strategic objectives:

	STRATEGI	IC O	BJECTIVES
• Provide support to incre	ease the gross value add and	0	Improve family support to children and youth,
employment levels of st	rategically selected		and development programs.
economic sectors;		0	Build inclusive, safe and healthy communities;
-	isan and technical skills and	0	Nurture resilient and healthy families;
influence an improved l		0	Ensure safe and healthy children (0 – 14 years
	environment to enhance		of age);
the ease of doing busine		0	Promote engaged and healthy youth (15–25
• Nurture innovation thro	oughout the economy;		years of age).
• Optimise land use;		0	Facilitate improvements in Western Cape
<ul> <li>Improve Broadband roll</li> </ul>			settlement development and functionality.
	vater and energy forgrowth;	0	Improve management and maintenance of the
	of the region's transport		ecological and agricultural resource- base.
system		0	Improve climate change response.
-	guage and mathematics in	0	Enhanced corporate governance maturity in
all schools.			the Western Cape Government and
	d quality of passes in the		municipalities (Enhanced Governance).
national senior certifica	te and equivalent	0	Significantly improved stakeholder satisfaction
qualifications.			with Western Cape Government services
	education provision in our		(Inclusive Society).
poorer communities.		0	Integrated management of the PSP and the
• Provide access to more			Game Changers in the Western Cape
opportunities for our yo	uth.		(Integrated Management).

• Spatial Development Frameworks (Provincial and Municipal): Through the Provincial Spatial Development Framework (PSDF), the Provincial Government hopes to strike a sound balance between progressive community growth and the environmental

preservation of the communities. The Laingsburg Spatial Development Framework (SBSDF) which is an overarching document in the municipal IDP, must be a mirrored expression of the development intentions of the Municipality as expressed in the IDP. The Western Cape Spatial Development Framework must serve as a guide to the Municipal IDP and equally the SBSDF must be aligned with the PSDF.



Figure 4.1: Spatial alignment

The Province and the Municipality need the SDF particularly for purposes of ensuring sustainable environment for enhanced absorptive capacity of future human development needs, strategic response to topographical issues and historic issues, accompanying socio economic manifestations and determination of spatial and other issues.

This definitely reaffirms a relationship between the PSDF and the Laingsburg SDF. Whilst the Western Cape Spatial Development Framework is a provincial wide strategy, the municipal SDF is a municipal wide response to spatial development issues. In pursuit of its strategic intentions the Western Cape Spatial Development Framework includes the following strategic objectives which could find a direct expression in municipal Spatial Development Framework and the IDP.

*District Integrated Development Plan:* Section 29(2) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 of 2000 clearly states that district municipalities must:

- Plan integrated development for the area of the district municipality as a whole but in close cooperation with the local municipalities in the area;
- Align its integrated development plan with the framework adopted; and
- Draft its integrated development plan, taking into account the integrated development processes

and proposals submitted to it by the local municipalities in that area.

#### 4.8.3 Horizontal Alignment of Key Strategies

Horizontal alignment is pursued through inter-governmental planning and consultation, co- ordination and ensured through aligning the respective vision, mission and strategic objectives of the respective municipalities in the region. The alignment of key national, provincial and regional strategies is illustrated in the table below:

Millennium Development Goals	Vision for 2030	Medium Term Strategic Framework	National Outcomes	Provincial Strategic Objectives	District Municipality Strategic Objectives
Eradicate extreme poverty and hunger	An economy that will create more jobs	Speed up economic growth and transform the economy to create decent work and sustainable livelihoods	Decent employment through inclusive economic growth	Provide support to increase the gross value add and employment levels of strategically selected economic sector	G7: Promote regional economic
	An inclusive and integrated rural economy	Comprehensive rural development strategy linked to land and agrarian reform and food security	Vibrant, equitable and sustainable rural communities and food security	Improve the level of artisan and technical skills and influence an improved labour environment Provide economic opportunities youth Improve the regulatory environment to enhance the ease of doing business	development, tourism and growth opportunities
	Improving Infrastructur e	Massive programmes to build economic and social infrastructure	An effective, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network	Optimise land use Improve broadband rollout for the economy Improve the efficiency of the regions transport system	SG 3: Improve and maintain district roads and promote safe road transport
	Transition to a low-carbon economy			Nurture innovation throughout the economy Help ensure sufficient water and energy for growth	SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public safety in the region
Ensure environmental sustainability	Reversing the spatial effects of apartheid	Build cohesive, caring and sustainable communities Sustainable resource management and use	Sustainable human settlements and improved quality of household life Protection and enhancement of environmental assets and natural resources	Facilitate improvement in Western Cape settlement and functionality Improve Climate Change Response Improve management and maintenance of the ecological and agricultural resource-base	G7: Promote regional economic development, tourism and growth opportunities

Millennium Development Goals	Vision for 2030	Medium Term Strategic Framework	National Outcomes	Provincial Strategic Objectives	District Municipality Strategic Objectives
Achieve universal primary education	Improving the quality of education, training and innovation	Strengthen the skills and human resource base	Improve the quality of basic education A skilled and capable	Improve the level language and mathematics in all schools Increase the number and quality of passes in the national senior	SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities
			workforce to support inclusive growth	certificate and equivalent qualifications Increase the quality of education provision in our poorer communities.	
Reduce child mortality Improve maternal health Combat HIV/AIDS, malaria, and other diseases	Quality health care for all	Improve the health profile of society	Improve health and life expectancy	Build inclusive, safe and healthy communities Ensure safe and healthy children (0-14 years of age) Promote engaged and healthy youth (15 – 25 years of age)	SG 1: Promote Safe, Healthy and Socially stable communities through the provision of a
	Social protecti on			Improve family support to children and youth, and development programmes Integrated management of	sustainable environmental health service.
	Fighting corrupti on			the PSP and the Game Changers in the Western Cape	SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible
	Building safer communitie s	Intensify the fight against crime and corruption	All people in south Africa protected and feel safe	Build inclusive, safe and healthy communities	disasters and improve public safety in the region
	Reforming the public service	Build a developmental state including improvement of public services and strengthening democratic institutions	A development- orientated public service and inclusive citizenship A responsive and, accountable, effective and efficient local government system	Integrated management of the PSP and the Game Changers in the Western Cape Enhance corporate governance maturity in the Western Cape government and municipalities	G7: Promote regional economic development, tourism and growth
Promote gender equity and empower women Develop a global partnership for development	Transformi ng society and uniting the country	Pursue regional development, African advancement and enhanced international co- operation	A better South Africa, a better Africa and world	Significantly improve stakeholder satisfaction with Western Cape Government Services	opportunities

Table 4.2: Strategy alignment table

#### 4.8.9 Municipal Reporting & Roles and responsibilities

The following diagram outlines the municipal Reporting which is in line with the Role and Responsibilities of all relevant stakeholders. It also illustrates the Municipal Forum, participants and levels of institutional reporting between structures.



Role Players	Roles & Responsibilities	Objectives	Objectives for all Role players
Executive Mayor (process "owner", accountable)	<ul> <li>Decide on planning process: nominate persons in charge</li> <li>Monitor planning process</li> <li>Responsible for the overall management, co-ordination and monitoring of the process and drafting of the IDP (to make sure that all relevant actors are involved)</li> <li>Consider and Adopts the Process Plan and the final IDP. Undertake</li> </ul>		
Municipal Council	<ul> <li>the overall management and coordination of the planning process, which includes ensuring that:</li> <li>all relevant actors are appropriately involved;</li> <li>appropriate mechanisms and procedures for public consultation and participation are applied;</li> <li>ensure the establishment of ward committees and IDP forum;</li> <li>the planning events are undertaken according to time schedule;</li> <li>planning process is related to the real burning issues in the municipality;</li> <li>the sector planning requirements are satisfied;</li> <li>adopt and approve the IDP;</li> <li>adjust the IDP in accordance with the MEC for local government's proposal;</li> <li>ensure that the annual business plans, budget and land use management decisions are linked to and based on the IDP; and ensures that development and management of municipalaffairs are in the ambits of the law.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Increased ownership and accountability</li> <li>More appreciation of the merit of the process/ plan</li> <li>More openness to new / different ideas</li> <li>Greater commitment to the process / plan</li> <li>Be more accessible to the public</li> <li>Get buy-in from the community</li> <li>Improved communication to manage expectations</li> <li>Communicate limited resources</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Greater participation / involvement</li> <li>High quality</li> </ul>
Proportional councillors, ward councillors, ward committee members	<ul> <li>Link integrated development planning process to their constituencies/wards</li> <li>Organise public participation</li> </ul>		<ul> <li>dialogue</li> <li>As simple and easy as possible to</li> </ul>
IDP / MSCOA Steering Committee	<ul> <li>Provides terms of reference for the various planning activities.</li> <li>Commissions research studies.</li> <li>Considers and comments on:         <ul> <li>Inputs from sub-committees, study teams and consultants.</li> <li>Inputs from provincial sector departments and support providers</li> </ul> </li> <li>Processes summarises and documents outputs</li> <li>Makes content recommendations</li> <li>Prepares, facilitates and documents meetings.</li> <li>Heads project task teams.</li> </ul>		participate / contribute
Municipal Manager and Management Team	<ul> <li>Provide technical/sector expertise and information</li> <li>Provide inputs related to the various planning steps</li> <li>Summarise / digest / process inputs from the participation process</li> <li>Discuss / comment on inputs from specialists</li> </ul>		
Development Services Office (Process facilitator)	Day-to-day management of the drafting process on behalf of the Municipal Manager (to ensure a properly managed and organised planning process)	More productive and efficient process management	
IDP Representative Form / Ward Committees and Strategic Partners     Public sector	<ul> <li>Represent interests and contributing knowledge and ideas</li> <li>Represents the interest of their constituencies (local municipality) in the IDP process</li> <li>Provides an organisational mechanism for discussions, negotiation, and decision making between the municipal</li> </ul>		

Table 4.3 Roles and Responsibilities

#### 4.9 Inter-Governmental Alignment

The IDP requires alignment with other spheres of government at different stages during the process. Before starting with the IDP process municipalities need to understand where alignment should take place and through which mechanism this can best be achieved. Alignment is the instrument to synchronize and integrate the IDP process between different spheres of government. The alignment process must reveal how National and Provincial Government and the District Municipality could tangibly assist this Municipality in achieving its developmental objectives. The alignment process is coordinated by the Central Karoo District Municipality. Alignment meetings take place on district level, but with the involvement of all local municipalities.

# 4.10 Time Schedule

The municipality approved the a Time Schedule within which this IDP had to be completed; the following table outline the practical within which the municipality will completed the process of compilation and approval.

Laingsburg Municipality Time schedule 2020 / 2021

# 1. INTERGRATED TIME SCHEDULE FOR REVIEW OF THE IDP AND BUDGET FOR THE 2020/21 FINANCIAL YEAR:

		LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
<ul> <li>Preparation of the draft IDP &amp; Budget Time Schedule</li> <li>Engagement with Budget office and PMS for alignment purposes</li> <li>Review participatory forums and mechanisms</li> </ul>	IDP	Accounting officer and senior officials begin planning for next three-year budget: MFMA Section 68, 77. Accounting officer and senior managers
<ul> <li>Approve and announce new budget schedules and set up committees / forums</li> <li>Consultation on Performance and changing needs</li> </ul>	Budget / IDP	review options and contracts for service delivery MSA Section 76-81
Q1 District Public Participation and     Communication Forum Virtual Meeting	IDP / Public Participation	
<ul> <li>Roll out of the SDBIP prepare section reports (Annual Performance report)</li> <li>Prepare / Review departmental sector plans for next financial year</li> <li>Preparing of Annual Performance Report</li> </ul>	PMS (IDP)	
<ul> <li>(Section 46)</li> <li>Prepare and Submit Performance Agreements of Municipal Manager and senior Managers to the MEC and Municipal Websites</li> <li>Compile and submit Quarterly Performance Report for Q4 to Council</li> </ul>		Copies of such performance agreements must be submitted to the council and the MEC for local government in the province. MFMA Section 53(3)(b)
	Schedule         Engagement with Budget office and PMS for alignment purposes         Review participatory forums and mechanisms         Approve and announce new budget schedules and set up committees / forums         Consultation on Performance and changing needs         Q1 District Public Participation and Communication Forum Virtual Meeting         Roll out of the SDBIP prepare section reports (Annual Performance report)         Prepare / Review departmental sector plans for next financial year         Preparing of Annual Performance Report (Section 46)         Prepare and Submit Performance Agreements of Municipal Manager and senior Managers to the MEC and Municipal Websites         Compile and submit Quarterly Performance	Schedule         • Engagement with Budget office and PMS for alignment purposes         • Review participatory forums and mechanisms         • Approve and announce new budget schedules and set up committees / forums         • Consultation on Performance and changing needs         • Q1 District Public Participation and Communication Forum Virtual Meeting         • Roll out of the SDBIP prepare section reports (Annual Performance report)         • Prepare / Review departmental sector plans for next financial year         • Preparing of Annual Performance Report (Section 46)         • Prepare and Submit Performance Agreements of Municipal Manager and senior Managers to the MEC and Municipal Websites         • Compile and submit Quarterly Performance

AUCUST 2020			
AUGUST 2020			
	Follow up Q - 1 District Public Participation and Communication forum meeting	IDP/PP	-
	IDP Steering Committee Meeting	IDP/CFO	
	District IDP Managers Forum Meeting (Virtual)	IDP Managers	-
	Consult and Review performance and financial position	Budget / CFO	
	<ul> <li>Table draft Annual Financial Statements to Audit committee for Compliance i.t.o Section 166 of the MFMA</li> <li>Submit to AG for auditing</li> </ul>	CFO	
	<ul> <li>Submission of Annual Performance Report (Section 46) prepared in terms of legislation to council</li> <li>Submit to AG for auditing</li> </ul>	PMS/CO/DCS	Section 34 of MSA
	<ul> <li>Executive Mayor tables draft Time Schedule to Council for approval</li> <li>Advertise and submit approved Time schedule to DLG and Provincial Treasury</li> </ul>	Executive Mayor / MM/ IDP	

September 2020	Q - 1 District coordinating Technical Forum meeting	ММ	
	Auditor General (AG) audit of performance measures	PMS/CO	Budget office of the municipality determines revenue projections and proposed rates. Draft
	Q - 1 Provincial IDP Managers Forum Meeting	IDP	initial allocations for functions and departments for the next financial year after taking into account strategic objectives
	Q - 1 District Coordinating Forum Meeting	MM / Executive Mayor	
	District CFO Forum	All CFOs within the district	
	Provincial CFO Forum	All CFO's across the province	
	Internal IDP & Budget Steering Committee     (Analysis)	All Internal Departments	Engages with Provincial and National sector departments on sector specific programmes for alignment with municipal plans (schools, libraries, clinics, water, electricity,
	IDP Representative Forum (Analysis)	Sectoral / External Departments	roads, ect.)
	• Review and update of the IDP Vision, Mission And Strategic Objectives and Values (If any change Public Participation to follow)	IDP/MM/Mayor	
	Integrate information from adopted sector plans     for review	IDP/Internal Departments	
	Determine revenue projections and update     policies and objectives	MM / CFO / Senior Managers & IDP	
	Final Evaluation of MM and Senior Managers	PMS	
	Launch of Laingsburg Community Safety Forum	Community Services	

ctober 2020	Wardforum (15 October2020))	IDP/PP	
	Determine Revenue projections and policies	CFO	Develop objectives for priority issues and
		CFO	determine programmes to achieve strategic intent including the development of the
	Q2 - CKDM IDP Managers (Virtual)	IDP	strategic scorecard
	IDP Steering Committee (Feedback on situational analysis)	IDP/CFO	
	Integration of information from adopted sector     plans into IDP Review	IDP	
	Internal engagements to prioritise needs for     assistance from sector departments	IDP / All internal departments	
	Send priorities to sector departments	IDP	
	Draft initial allocations to functions	CFO	
	Compile and submit Quarterly Performance     Report for Q1 to Council	PMS /CO/ CFO	
	Provide Community Needs/Priorities To HOD's for Comments	IDP/PP/All HOD's	
ovember 2020	Public Participation Engagements	IDP/PP	
	IDP Representative forum meeting	IDP/Mayor	
	Consolidation of budget and plans	CFO	
	Q - 2 District coordinating Technical Forum meeting	мм	Accounting Officer reviews and draft
	Table of draft Annual report to Audit committee	PMS	———initial draft changes to IDP MSA Section 34
	Q - 2 District Public Participation & Communication Forum Meeting	IDP / PP	
	Q - 2 District Coordinating forum meeting	MM /Executive Mayor	
	Q -2- Provincial Public Participation Forum     Meeting	IDP	
	Strategic engagements (SIME) with municipalities on planning priorities and service delivery challenges, and DCF District Mayors present strategic and planning priorities & service delivery challenges	DLG	
	Finalise Audit Report for the financial year	IDP/MM/CFO	Auditor General return audit report (Due by 30 November 2020) MFMA 126(4)

			Accounting officer and senior officials
DECEMBER 2020	Internal IDP Steering Committee Comment on reviewed Municipal Strategies (Prioritize projects & programmes)	IDP/MM/CFO	consolidate and prepare proposed budget and plans for next financial year taking into account previous year's performance as per divid financial taking methods.
	Q3 - Provincial IDP Managers Forum Meeting	IDP	audited financial statements.
	Executive determines strategic choices for next three years and finalise tariff policies	MM, CFO & Senior Managers	
	Outline / Review municipal Strategic     Objectives, KPAs, KPIs and Targets	IDP / PMS /CO	
JANUARY 2021	Prepare detailed budget and plans for next	CFO	MFMA Section 36
	three years		Accounting officer finalises and submits to
	Q - 3 District Coordinating Technical Forum Meeting	ММ	Mayor proposed IDP and Budget for the next three year.
	Q - 3 District Coordinating Forum Meeting	MM / Executive Mayor	
	Compile and submit Quarterly Performance     Report for Q2 to Council	PMS / CO/CFO	
	Mid-term / Midyear Report submitted to Mayor in terms of Section 72 of MFMA	ММ	
	Midterm / midyear Report is published in the local newspaper and Mun. Website	IDP/PMS/CO	
	Table Draft Annual Report to Council	Executive Mayor	

FEBRUARY 2021	Continuous Review of Municipal Strategic     Objectives, KPAs, KPIs and Targets	IDP/PMS/CFO	
	Quarterly project implementation Report (for second quarter and Council to consider and adopt an Oversight report (Due 31 March)	IDP/PMS/CFO/Internal Audit	
	Q - 3 District Public Participation & Communication Forum Meeting	IDP / PP	Accounting officer finalizes and submits to Mayor proposed IDP and Budget for next three years
	<ul> <li>Council adopts Adjustment budget and SDBIP. Performance agreements to be adjusted and signed off by section 57 managers and MM and placed on municipal website</li> </ul>	MM/ IDP/PMS/CO/HR	Within 10 working days after the municipal council has approved an adjustments budget, the municipal manager must make public the approved adjustments budget and supporting documentation, as well as the
	IDP Representative Forum Meeting	External and Sector Departments	resolutions referred to in regulation 25(3). MBRR Regulation 26(1):
	Advertise Adjustment Budget and Mid-year     Section 72 assessment in local newspapers	PMS/CO/CFO	
	Internal IDP Steering Committee (Alignment)	IDP/MM	
	Integration of Projects & Programmes (IDP INDABA 2)	DLG	
	Q3 - District IDP Managers and IDP     Representative forum meeting/s	IDP/MM/Mayor	
	District Coordinating Technical Forum Meeting	мм	
	Conclusion of Sector Plans for the next financial year	IDP/ Senior Managers	
	Make public Annual Report and invite     community inputs into report	DCS/ MM	

MARCH 2021	Q - 4 Provincial IDP Managers Forum Meeting	IDP	
	District Coordinating Forum Meeting	MM/MAYOR	
	Workshop draft IDP & Budget with IDP/Budget     Committee/Council	IDP/CFO/ Executive Mayor/MM	
	IDP & Budget Steering committee for Finalization of IDP	IDP / CFO	Accounting Officer publish budget and revisions to the IDP for public input
	Draft SDBIP for incorporation into draft IDP	PMS / IDP	Submit to NT and PT (MFMA Section 22 &37) MSA Chapter 4
	Draft IDP and Budget approved by Council	Executive Mayor / MM	
	Section 57 Managers formal quarterly assessment	MM / Council	
APRIL 2021	<ul> <li>Send and advertise approved Draft IDP and Budget documents to Minister, PT and NT, the public for inputs and comments</li> </ul>	Municipal Manager/ IDP	Accounting officer assists the Mayor in revising budget
	Public Participation meetings on the Draft     IDP/Budget Documents (Roadshow)	IDP/CFO	documentation in accordance with consultative processes and taking into account the result from third quarterly review of the current year
	• Q - 4 District Public Participation & communication Forum Meeting	CKDM/IDP/PP	
	Q - 4 District Coordinating Technical Forum Meeting	MM	
	Prepare Quarterly Performance Report (Section 52) for Q3 and submit to council	PMS/CO/CFO	
	Conclusion of Sector plans for inclusion in IDP	Internal departments	
	Q4 - District IDP Managers and IDP	IDP/MAYOR/MM	

MAY 2021	Review written comments in respect of the draft     (advertised) IDP	IDP/MM/Steering Committee/Council	Accounting officer assist the Mayor in preparing the
	Q - 4 District Coordinating Forum Meeting	MM / Legal Services / Executive Mayor	final budget documentation for consideration for approval at least 30days before the start of the budget year taking into account consultative processes and any
	Q-4 District IDP Managers forum and IDP     Representative forum meeting	IDP / MM	other new information of a material nature.
	Community inputs into organization KPIs and     Target	PMS / IDP / Strategic Support	
	Final Adoption of IDP & Budget by Municipal Council	MM/IDP/CFO	
JUNE 2021	Approval of Top Layer SDBIP	Executive Mayor	
	Submit copies of the IDP/Budget to the DLG and Advertise the IDP and Budget documents in the local newspaper	IDP and CFO	Accounting officer submit to the mayor no later than 14days after approval of the budget a draft of the SDBIP and annual performance agreements required by Section
	Q - 4 Provincial IDP Managers Forum meeting	IDP	57 of the MSA
	<ul> <li>Signing of performance agreements between MM and Section 57 Managers</li> <li>Submit copies of Performance Agreements to MEC</li> <li>Make public the performance agreements of the MM and Senior Manager (Municipal Website)</li> </ul>	MM/HR/PMS/IDP	Section 57 (1)(b) MFMA Section 53 MSA Section 38-45
	Submit copies of SDBIP to National and     Provincial Treasury	DCS/MM	
JULY 2021	Prepare IDP & Budget Time Schedule & submit to district for the year 2021 / 2022	IDP	
	Performance Agreement signing of MM and Senior Managers	PMS	
	District IDP Managers & DLG pre- planning on alignment of IDP/Budget time schedules	IDP	

	<ul> <li>District alignment workshop - IDP / PP / COMMUNICATION</li> <li>Submit copies of the performance agreements of MM and Senior Managers to MEC and make public on municipal website</li> <li>Compile and submit Quarterly Performance</li> </ul>	IDP PMS / MM/HR PMS / IDP	
	Report for Q4 to Council		
AUGUST 2021	District Public Participation and Communication forum meeting	CKDM IDP / PP	
	<ul> <li>IDP steering committee meeting, to discuss draft time schedule and identify gaps in the IDP Process</li> </ul>	IDP	
	Table draft Time schedule to MAYCO for comments and recommendation	IDP	Submit to Auditor General (AG) in terms of MFMA S126(1)(a) due by 31 August
	Consult and Review performance and financial position	CFO	
	Submit Q4 SDBIP reports for last quarter of financial year	PMS	-
	Submission of Annual Performance Report     prepared in terms of legislation	PMS	
	Q1 - District IDP Managers and IDP Representative forums	IDP/MM/MAYOR	
	Executive Mayor tables draft Time Schedule to Council for approval	MM / MAYOR	
	• Submit annual financial statements and annual performance report to the Auditor- General for auditing	CFO	The accounting officer of a municipality must prepare the annual financial statements of the municipality and, within two months after the end of the financial year to
	Advertise Time schedule	IDP	which those statements relate, submit the statements to the Auditor-General for auditing. MSA Section 126(1)(a):

# 5 Municipal Profile

The aim of this profile is to create a platform for informed decision-making regarding planning, budgeting and implementation, i.e. integrated development planning. This profile does not include the use of exhaustive lists of data but instead considered the most pertinent and up- to-date data available. The components analysed includes the following:

### 5.1 Geographical positioning

Laingsburg is the entry point to Central Karoo District if driving from Cape Town along N1 to Johannesburg. The municipality boarder's two Western Cape districts, the Cape Winelands District and the Eden District. The municipality also borders the Northern Cape Province on the northern side of the municipality connecting the municipality to Sutherland.

- Distance from Cape Town 276 Km
- Distance from Johannesburg 1300Km
- Distance from Beaufort West 199Km
- Distance from Ladysmith (Eden District) 110km
- Distance from Touwsriver (Cape Winelands District) 85Km
- Distance from Sutherland (Northern Cape Province) 137Km

The municipality of Laingsburg as per the Demarcation Board covers the following areas:

- Laingsburg, Matjiesfontein, Vleiland, and 250 Farms (refer detail below)
- The population of the municipal area is 9 473 and has a total number of 2862 households that live in the municipal area.
- The biggest part of the population falls within the age group of 15-35 and is mostly unemployed or works on a seasonal basis



The municipal area is divided into 4 wards and consists of three main areas:

Area	Neighbourhoods and Settlements
Laingsburg	Bergsig, Goldnerville, Bodorp, Onderdorp, Nuwedorp and Moordenaars Karoo Farms
Matjiesfontein	The Village, Konstable and the Witteberge farms
Vleiland	Vleiland and Klein Swartberg areas

Table 5. 1: Municipal Area

# 5.2 **Population and households**

Population	(2001)	6821
	(2006)	7320
	(2010)	7989
	(2015)	8661
	(2016)	8895
	(2017)	9002
	(2018)	9253
	(2020)	9473
Households:	2862	Density: 1.01 p/km <sup>2</sup>
Household Size	4	
	Population growth rate (average annual)	
	2011 - 2018	1.41%

Table 5.2: STATS SA, Community Survey 2016 and Projections

LAINGSBURG MUNICIPALITY	TOTAL	RURAL	URBAN	BACKLOG
Total number of Households	2 862	1063	1 802	
Access to basic services				
HH with access to water	2144	342	1 802	460
HH with access to sanitation	1815	13	1 802	789
HH with access to electricity	1980	178	1 802	624
HH with access to refuse removal	2282	480	1 802	322

Table 5.3: Basic Services per area (Source: WC DoA, 2016 & Farm Worker Study)

Table 5.3 indicate that basic service delivery in the rural areas needs intervention and the municipality in line with their property rates process engage with farm owners in providing basic services to farmworkers as a human right in line with the rebate program provided to Farmers. The sanitation background is taken into consideration in the municipal budget to provide VIP Toilets to the backlog.

**STATS SA through its 2016 Community Survey** identified that 0.38% of households are below the sanitation standards, 82.67% of households are connected to a public sewerage system and 15.2% are connected to a septic tank or conservancy tank.

In terms of water for drinking purposes, 56.46% has taps within their house, 31.59% has access to water in their yards, 9.92% households has boreholes in their yard, 0.94% has a borehole outside the yard, 1.01% gets water from a spring and 0.01% has other drinking water options. The results of the survey reports that 97.97% of households have acceptable standards but the 3.3% needs assistance to improve access to potable water. The municipality renders a service in their service area, removing 81% of refuse, 17% has their own refuse dump and 2% do illegal dumping in the municipal area.

### 5.3 Settlement pattern

Generally Laingsburg is a one town Municipality. Laingsburg town has a population of 7602 people (80%) followed by Matjiesfontein, the second largest community, which has about 731 people. The rest of the population (1140 people) is scattered in the some farms all over the Local Municipality.

#### 5.4 Wards

The municipality is divided into 4 wards by the Demarcation board. The biggest ward in population numbers is ward 4, consisting of Goldnerville and Acacia Park. The second biggest ward is ward 1, which consisting of Bergsig (RDP Residential Area) and the "Nuwe Dorp" residential area. The 3<sup>rd</sup> biggest ward is ward 2, consisting of Matjiesfontein, Vleiland and the whole agricultural community but this ward is the biggest with regards to size. The smallest ward is ward 3 which mainly consisting out of Central Business Area, Bo Dorp and Onderdorp as well as a few farms along the urban edge of the municipality.
# 6 Situational Analysis

#### 6.1 Education

The education facilities include a distribution of primary, secondary and private schools of the Municipality.

There are 4 primary schools, one in Vleiland, one Matjiesfontein and two in Laingsburg. There is only secondary school in Laingsburg and have to serve all the primary schools. One of primary schools is a private school, children from this school leaves after grade 7 and complete their schooling in other schools outside the municipal area. Laingsburg High School's finance is under severe pressure because it is situated in town and is classified as fee-paying school. The scholars attending are this unable to pay school fess as they are all from previously disadvantaged areas. Because there is no income, the school is

unable to contribute to the school subsidy. This leads to lack of teachers and the inability to pay school accounts. Due to this fact, scholars and teachers has to do without the necessary services. The abovementioned map also shows that the area north of the N1 Freeway is not serviced with education facilities and that the schools are generally distributed along the major road networks in the Municipality.



#### Map 6.1 Educational facilities

The LSEP stated that Laingsburg High School as a fee-paying school reported that parents are unable to pay and it leads to an increase in drop-out and suggest that the WCED must declared the school to become a no-fee school.

There are no Further Education and Training (FET) colleges in Laingsburg with the closest one being located in Worcester, which falls outside the Central Karoo District. Further away is Beaufort West, Oudtshoorn, Paarl, Stellenbosch, George and Mosselbay. Laingsburg Municipality recorded a 70% literacy rate (successful completion of a minimum of 7 years formal education for 14 years and older) in 2011, lower than Central Karoo District, the Western Cape and the rest of South Africa. Indicating that 30% of people within Laingsburg is illiterate.

## 6.1.1 Education Outcome

Education remains one of the key driven to improve the local economy, and there is an increase requirement for matriculants for employment and youth empowerments programs.

The matric pass rate within Laingsburg dropped from 90.3 per cent in 2016 to 80.6 per cent in 2018.

Despite this, the 2018 pass rate in Laingsburg is the highest compared to other municipalities in the CKD.

Better results could improve access to learners to higher education to broaden their employment opportunities.

## 6.2 Health

In terms of healthcare facilities, in 2019/2020, the Laingsburg municipal area had 1 fixed and 2 non-fixed primary health clinics. In addition, there are also 1 district hospital, as well as 1 ART and 2 TB treatment clinics/sites.

	РНС С	linics	Community	Community	Hos	pitals	Treatment Sites	
Area	Fixed	Non- fixed	Health Centres	Day Centres	Distric t	Regional	ART Clinics	TB Clinics
Laingsburg	1	2	0	0	1	0	1	2
Central Karoo District	8	10	0	1	4	0	12	22



Graph 6.2 Laingsburg Primary Health Facilities (Source LSEP; 2018)

(Source LSP; 2018)

There are no health facilities north of the N1 Freeway, and none in the other rural areas. The rural areas are served by mobile clinic routes. Discussion with the Provincial health practitioners indicated that there are 17 mobile clinic routes in the Municipality. At least one route is covered per day, sometimes even two. If there are medical emergencies, then the farmers bring the patients in either to Matjiesfontein or Laingsburg.

### 6.2.1 Emergency Medical Services



Access to emergency medical services is critical for rural citizens due to rural distances between towns and health facilities being much greater than in the urban areas. Combined with the relatively lower population per square kilometre in rural areas, ambulance coverage is greater in rural areas in order to maintain adequate coverage for rural communities.

Provision of more operational ambulances can provide greater coverage of emergency medical services. Laingsburg, has 0,3 ambulances per 10 000 inhabitants which is slightly below the District's average of 0,5 ambulances per 10 000 people.

Table 6.3: Emergency Medical Services (Source: LSEP, 2019/20)

# 6.2.2 HIV/Aids

Area		nain with treatment h end	Number of new	ART patients
	2018 2019		2018	2019
Laingsburg	200	214	11	10
Central Karoo District	2 022	2 050	207	164

Patient receiving antiretroviral treatment increased by 14 percent between 2018 (200) and 2019 (214). The 214 patients receiving antiretroviral treatment are treated at 1 clinic / treatment site. A total of 2050 registered patients received antiretroviral treatment in the Central Karoo District in 2019 up from 2022 from 2018.



The number of TB patients within the Laingsburg Municipal area has gradually decreased from 2017 (57) to 48 in 2018 and increased to 77 in 2019.

LSEP 2019/20)

## 6.2.3 Child Care

The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals aims by 2030 to end preventable deaths of new-borns and children under 5 years of age, with all countries aiming to reduce neonatal mortality to at least as low as 12 per 1 000 live births and under-5 mortality to at least as low as 25 per 1 000 live births (Source: UN SDG's).

Area	Immunisa	ation Rate	n Rate Malnutri		Neonatal Morta Rate		Low birth weight	
	2018	2019	2018	2019	2018	2019	2017/18	2018/19
Laingsburg	56.6	78.5	0.0	2.7	0.0	0.0	25.7	26.6
Central Karoo District	73.1	83.1	3.7	3.4	12.1	9.5	21.9	23.4

Table 6. 5 Laingsburg Child Health (Source: LSEP, 2019/2020)

The **immunisation rate** in the Laingsburg area have increased from 56.6 percent in 2018 to 78.5% in 2019. The Central Karoo average for 2019 was 83.1%

The number of **malnourished children** under five years (per 100 000 people) in Laingsburg in 2018 was 0% which decreased to 2.7% in 2019. The district number decreased from 3.7 to 3.4 over the same period.

**Neonatal mortality rate** (NMR) (deaths per 1 000 live births) in the Laingsburg area remained 0 deaths in 2018 and 2019. A fall in the NMR may indicate improvement in new-born health outcomes, or it may potentially reflect reporting constraints.

### 6.2.4 Maternal Health

Area	Maternal Mortality Rate			Rate to ler 20 years	Termination of Pregnancy Rate	
	2018	2019	2018	2019	2018	2019
Laingsburg	0.0	0.0	15.8	11.9	0.0	0.0
Central Karoo District	201.6	0	17.7	15.4	0.0	0.0

Table 6. 5 Laingsburg Maternal Health (Source: LSEP, 2019/20)

The **maternal mortality rate** in the Laingsburg area has remained at zero deaths per 100 000 live births in 2018 and 2019, while the Central Karoo District rate decreased substantially from 201.6 in 2018 to zero in 2019

The **delivery rate to women under 19 years** has decreased from 15.8 per cent in 2018 to 11.9 in 2019 in Laingsburg and Central Karoo decreased slightly from 17.7 to 15.4 over the same period.

The **termination of pregnancy rate** remained steady at zero per cent in Laingsburg and the Central Karoo District over the 2018 and 2019 period.

# 6.3 Safety and Security

There is only one police station located in Laingsburg town that services the entire 8781km<sup>2</sup> of the Municipality.

Crime Category	2019/2020
Murder	3
Sexual crimes - Total	12
Burglary at residential premises	64
Drug-related crime	107
Driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs	125
Road user fatalities	23

Table 6.6. SEPLG 2019/2020

The most commonly occurring crimes are driving under the influences of alcohol or drugs and drug related crimes.

According LLM (2019) Laingsburg Municipality recognises the broad nature of community safety. The focus thereof would be the reduction of safety challenges in terms of pro-active and re-active initiatives towards socio-economic challenges as a way to prevent these challenges within communities. These initiatives should also be able to improve the quality of life of the community through physical and social environmental changes.

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Municipal Safety Plan Key Strategic Objectives

- i. Reinventing the economy from an old to a modern generation
- ii. Renew our communities from low to high quality of life
- iii. Revive the environment from waste dumps to a green region
- iv. Reintegrate with Western Cape Province and our neighbours to move from an edge to a frontier region
- v. Release human potential from low to high skills
- vi. Deepens democracy through stakeholder engagement and public participation in policies and procedures of Council.
- vii. Ensure good governance through sound financial management, functional and effective Council.

A holistic approach is critical to ensure effective and efficient implementation

of community safety programs. It is thus; essential to ensure that the

under-mentioned objectives are met in support of the National Outcome 03.

- i. Promote and sustain a safe and secure environment for communities and visitors of Laingsburg
- ii. Maximize societal participation in community safety intervention programs and projects
- iii. Build and sustain strategic partnerships and networks
- Manage and improve society's perception on levels of crime and roles of law enforcement services
- v. Intensify focus towards the elimination of gender based violence and trio crimes in the region
- vi. Build investor confidence and provide enabling environment for the promotion of tourism in the region

This combination of factors can either initiate criminal behaviour or perpetuate

it. The under-mentioned factors are often regarded as socio-economic

contributes towards criminality within various communities:

- i. Poverty
- ii. Unemployment and/or lack of employment opportunities
- iii. Inadequate or inaccessible policing (Often a perception that the police are not visible enough)
- iv. Alcohol and drug abuse Low levels of vigilance and taking precautions against criminality (Often Police perceptions towards community members)

- v. Lack of sporting and recreational facilities
- vi. Lack of incoming generating skills and low self-esteem
- vii. Moral degeneration and break-down of family structures and values
- viii. Rapid and uncontrolled urbanisation

The following are just some of causal factors generating to high levels of crime within the communities:

- Profusion of taverns, shebeens and unlicensed liquor outlets within residential areas: These places are frequented by community members who are prone to influences of criminal and delinquent nature.
- ii. Lack of street lighting: A tendency that prevails is that this challenge is often only addressed when there is a high profile delegates visiting the area, and the municipality poses to impress the visitors.
- iii. Poorly maintained roads in rural areas: Bad roads are hampering Law Enforcement and Emergency Medical Services' mandates. These services often cannot promptly respond to reported incidents due to the conditions of some of the routes that need to be used.
- iv. Unfenced / Broken fenced school premises can provide and expose learners to criminal vulnerability. This space can be exploited by drug dealers to access school children, including easy access to even commit crimes such as rape and theft at the school premises.

The following Priorities were identified to address crime and community safety challenges:

Priority 01: Inter-Governmental Relations

Priority 02: Promotion of Schools Safety

Priority 03: Advocacy for Social Crime Prevention

Priority 04: Support Community Corrections Programs

#### 6.3 Decay of social fabric

Laingsburg is heavily affected by moral degeneration and the associated socio-economic issues. High teenage pregnancy rates as per table 4.5 have been sited before and cases of sexual crime are on the increase within the communities. The break of linkages and respect between the youth and old or people have increased the generational gap which is amongst.

the constraints observed in society. Young girls also don't mind to have relationships with older, married men who can entertain them and support them financially. These are caused once again by aspects related to poverty and low levels of education and hence employable skills. Prostitution, drugs and alcohol abuse especially amongst, under age children is also high.

# 6.4 Environmental & Spatial Analysis

The National Department of Environmental Affairs appointed a Youth Coordinator which will coordinate environmental education, awareness and clean up campaigns, she also updated the chapter.

# **Chapter 6.4.1: Situational Analysis**

The purpose of the situational analysis is to provide an overview of the existing situation by focusing on the relevant aspects of the situation which will enable the management of the municipality to make appropriate management decisions. The Municipal Systems Act requires an assessment of the existing level of development in the municipal area, including an identification of communities which do not have access to the basic municipal services.

This prescription should however be seen in the broader context of what information should be at the disposal of the municipality to enable its management to make decisions which are both strategic and practical in terms of their implementation.

## 6.4.2 Environmental Management

This section provides an overview of the Laingsburg Local Municipality natural environment and environmental management as a continuous process that ensures that environmental Impacts are avoided or mitigated throughout the development cycle of the Municipality from planning to design, implementation and operation. A brief description of the natural environment, Environmental Management Programmes, environmental issues & challenges, and Integrated Environmental Management (IEM) tools are discussed as information portal for decision makers to use to meet development and planning agendas for the Laingsburg Municipality.

# 6.4.2.1 Analysis of the Natural Environment

Laingsburg Local Municipality lies within the 'Karoo' macro biogeographical region that includes the arid interior and arid coastal plains of the northern West Coast and the plains of the 'Great Karoo'. This area stretches far beyond the boundaries of the Western Cape Province.

Laingsburg consists of a slightly undulating to hilly landscape, slopes and broad ridges of low mountains and escarpments. The underlying geology comprises clayey soils of Fc and Ib land types located on the mudstones and sandstones of the Adelaide Subgroup of the Beaufort Group, with smaller areas of arenite shale in the southern region. The northern and western area of the municipality comprise sandstone, shale and mudstone of the Permian Waterford Formation of the Ecca Group and lithified sedimentary rock of the Dwyka Group of Fc and Ib land types. The Beaufort, Ecca Group and Dwyka Groups are all of the Karoo Supergroup. The majority of the landscape in the municipality comprises Lithosols, shallow soils with minimal development on hard or weathering rock, with or without intermittent diverse soils. Lime is generally present in parts or most of the landscape. Laingsburg area is a geological hotspot.

The major river in Laingsburg municipality is the Buffels River flows into the Floriskraal Dam south-east of Laingsburg. The Laingsburg Municipality is located in a semi-dessert region with hot and dry summers of temperatures, commonly reaching temperatures higher than 30°C. The winter season experience much lower temperatures with occasional snow occurring in the surrounding area. Laingsburg Municipality receives an average annual rainfall of about 175mm. Frost occurs during the winter months, from June to August.

Laingsburg Local municipality falls within the Fynbos Biome of the Shale Renosterveld Group of the Karoo Renosterveld Bioregion and the Succulent Karoo Biome, of the Rain-shadow Valley Karoo Bioregion (Mucina and Rutherford, 2006).

## 6.4.2.2 Biodiversity and Conservation

Biodiversity richness is one of South Africa's important natural assets as it provides goods and services which are vital for human well-being. The Laingsburg Municipality is mandated by Section 24 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act 10 of 2004 (NEMBA, Act 10 of 2004) and Municipal System Act 32 of 2000, to ensure the equitable and sustainable use, conservation, management and, where necessary, the restoration of this resource base as well as to mitigate threats to them as a basis for sustainable and inclusive socio-economic development.

## **Critical Biodiversity Areas**

Laingsburg Municipality has the greatest percentage covered of the succulent Karoo biome as well as the fynbos biome compared with other Municipalities in the Central Karoo District. The present biomes in the municipal area are namely: the succulent Karoo; the fynbos; the Nama-karoo; the Azonal vegetation; and the Albany thicket.

The Nama-Karoo has high species diversity but it is generally of low to medium grazing quality with a carrying capacity of 41 - 80 hectares per animal unit per annum. It is mainly suitable for livestock farming with conservation of the indigenous plant species. (Laingsburg 2007 Status Quo Report). The fynbos has high species diversity and is generally of low grazing quality and has a carrying capacity of 18 - 30 hectares per animal large stock unit (LSU) per annum. (Laingsburg 2007 Status Quo Report).

SANBI's classification of the vegetation status of the entire Municipality as not Threatened suggests there is little that threatens the ecosystem's integrity. However, the poor status of the rivers, most of which are Critically Endangered suggest there are problems in the catchments. The greatest threat to eco-system integrity is crop farming but there is very little potential. The next threat is inappropriate grazing. Appropriate grazing systems should be put in place so that veld is restored. This will improve both its biodiversity and stock carrying capacity.

The critical biodiversity areas in the Laingsburg Municipality includes areas that are formally protected areas, conservation areas, i.e. informally protected; critical biodiversity areas, ecological support areas and areas where there are no natural areas remaining. The municipalities critical biodiversity areas cover 47%; 28% as ecological support areas; 18% as other; and, 7% is under formal protection. The Anysberg Nature Reserve and the Towerkop Nature Reserve Area Type 1 nature reserves, i.e. a national park / provincial nature reserve. The area south of Rouxpos, the Buffelspoort Nature Reserve is a mountain catchment area or a DWS forest area. This is a Type 2 nature reserve. The Gamkaspoort and the Klein Swartberg catchment and nature reserve areas are located along the eastern and the south-eastern boundaries of the site.

Out of 126 threatened plant species 76 are found in the Laingsburg Municipality, one species is extinct, one species is presumed extinct, seven species are critically endangered, 20 are endangered and 47 are vulnerable. The SANBI biodiversity assessment for vegetation types shows that the majority of the area is Least Threatened. the land cover and the status in hectares and percentage of the land cover. This shows that 96% of the land in the Laingsburg Municipality is in a natural state. This is the highest percentage for any of the Municipalities in the Central Karoo District. Only 2% of the land in the Central Karoo District.

The major river through the area is the Buffels River flows into the Floriskraal Dam south-east of Laingsburg. All the rivers in the municipality are dry because of drought. Due to low level of environmental protection of the area, the area became threatened. Vegetation and Ecological Areas are rapidly being compromised due to unsustainable land–use practises, overgrazing, alien vegetation, infestation, pollution and other environmental change

The municipality should apply for social-ecological projects implemented by government agencies such as Working for Water, this will assist in clearing of invasive alien species, research and environmental education. Environmental Management Plans are required to ensure appropriate protection. The municipality should develop an Alien Invasive Eradication Plan as it currently does not have one.

# 6.4.2.3 Climate Change

Climate change is broadly defined as the change in climate attributed directly or indirectly to human activity (the emission of greenhouse gases sourced from fossil fuel-based activities) which has altered the composition of the global atmosphere and which is in addition to natural climate variability observed over comparable time periods. As the rate of climate change accelerates. Laingsburg municipality predominant wind direction is easterly. This is followed by south-south-westerly, westerly and west-north-westerly directions. it is expected that Laingsburg will experience a change in temperature and rainfall regimes. These conditions will result in a reduction in vegetation. This can also affect agriculture negatively with a decline in productivity and crop, that can cause a negative impact on the economy of the municipality. It is therefore important that the Municipality contributes to the efforts to reduce the emission of greenhouse gasses and thereby delay the impact of climate change.

Laingsburg local municipal area economy predominantly dependent on agriculture as its economic base, the risks that climate change can potentially have on this agricultural production area is of great concern. The main expected features of climate change is the long term rise in temperature, variability in precipitation, changes in precipitation patterns, changes in the growing season etc. Therefore, the aforementioned variables definitely impact on the availability of water, for both rain fed and irrigated agricultural production. Water availability is the most important limiting factor for crop production in the Laingsburg area. Furthermore, animal production is also adversely affected in the light of dryer periods throughout the year. Given the extent of production in this area it could have implications in terms of food security. (Smart Agri, 2015)

New urban development needs to be planned with this in mind. The changes in the climate along with aspects such as the prevailing wind direction requires that new buildings, be it for offices, commercial or especially for residential use, be designed with a view to ameliorate these impacts. The appropriate local and natural materials need to be sourced and appropriate thermal treatment of the buildings applied to ensure it maximises the use of natural energy and minimises the use of electricity. Climate change resilience areas include:

- Kloofs, which provide important connectivity and provide both temperature and moisture refuges.
- South facing slopes, which similar to Kloofs, provide refuge habitats.
- Topographically diverse areas, which contain important altitudinal and climatic gradients which are important for climate change adaptation as well as ensuring a range of micro-climates are protected.
- Riverine corridors, which provide important connectivity in extensive arid environments.

The municipality need to track climate change issues and broadened awareness for climate change within the Municipality. There is a need to accelerate the process of relevant education, training, awareness and capacity building in municipality to speed up the implementation of Climate Change Response Strategy (CCRS/P). Human-induced climate change can be combated by two general approaches:

- Climate mitigation: action taken to reduce or eliminate the source of greenhouse gases or to enhance the absorption of greenhouse gases ("carbon sinks"), and;
- Climate adaptation: ability of a system or community to adjust to climate variability or extremes

The Laingsburg municipality should adopt the Central Karoo District Municipality Climate Change Response Strategy/Plan (CCRS/P) and the Provincial together with National plan in climate change as a way to manage climate related matter for the near future of the municipality.

# Table: Projection and example of possible impacts

Higher maximum temperatures more heat waves:	s, more hot days and	Higher minimum temperatures, fewer	cold days and frost days:	Shifts in Seasonality:
<ul> <li>Heat stress on humans and</li> <li>Increased incidence of heat- Increased incidence of dea particularly in older age grout</li> <li>Increased heat stress in lives</li> <li>Decreased crop yields and rational terms</li> <li>Extended range and active disease vectors;</li> <li>Increased threat to infrastrus specifications relating to terms</li> <li>Increased electric cooling pressure on already structure reliability;</li> <li>Exacerbation of urban heat in</li> </ul>	related illnesses; ath and serious illness, ups; stock and wildlife; angeland productivity; ity of some pests and ucture exceeding design emperature (e.g., traffic cal equipment, etc.); g demand increasing etched energy supply	<ul> <li>Decreased risk of damage to some others such as deciduous fruits thautumn;</li> <li>Reduced heating energy demand occur);</li> <li>Extended range and activity of some Reduced risk of cold-related deaths General drying trend in western part Decreased average runoff, stream fle Decreased water resources and poter resources;</li> <li>Decreased water quality;</li> <li>Decrease in shoulder season length fruit crops;</li> <li>Increased fire danger (drying factor);</li> <li>Impacts on rivers and wetland ecosy</li> </ul>	hat rely on cooling period in (although extremes may still pests and disease vectors; and illnesses. of the country ow; ential increases in cost of water threatening the Western Cape	<ul> <li>Shift in onset of the rainy season, causing planning challenges for agriculture.</li> <li>Intensification of rainfall events</li> <li>Increased flooding;</li> <li>Increased challenge to storm water systems in urban settlements;</li> <li>Increased soil erosion;</li> <li>Increased river bank erosion and demands for protection structures;</li> <li>Increased pressure of disaster relief systems;</li> <li>Increased risk to human lives and health;</li> <li>Negative impact on agriculture such as lower productivity levels and loss of harvest.</li> </ul>
The District and Municipal office be vulnerable to climate related		ing sectors as those that are likely to ponses:		d hazards for the Municipality were identified I impact on the region in the past, and are iture:
<ul> <li>Economic development</li> <li>Social Development</li> <li>Political sphere</li> <li>Planning</li> <li>Public safety</li> <li>Disaster management</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Agriculture</li> <li>Tourism</li> <li>Housing</li> <li>Infrastructure</li> <li>Transport</li> <li>Health</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Waste management</li> <li>Energy / electricity</li> <li>Biodiversity conservation</li> <li>Future mining</li> <li>Water management</li> </ul>	<ul><li>Fire</li><li>Drought</li><li>Floods</li><li>Snow</li></ul>	<ul> <li>Shift in Seasons</li> <li>Storm events (including lightening and wind)</li> <li>Increased number and extent of heat days</li> </ul>

## 6.4.2.4. Waste Management

Laingsburg Local Municipality experience waste challenges like any other municipality within the Central Karoo District. It is in this regard that the municipality should adopt waste management strategies that will help in reducing and managing waste that ends in landfill sites. Waste management is the basic service that the municipality should provide to its people and this mandate is explained in the Municipal System Act 32 of 2000 and National Environmental Management: Waste Act 59 of 2008. The municipality should consider developing or reviewing IWMP for effective and efficient waste management and to comply with NEMA Act on waste management.

Laingsburg Municipality household refuse collection occurs on a weekly basis. Domestic refuge includes refuse from gardens and building rubble. Commercial refuse removal is collected on a bi-weekly basis.

The refuse from Matjiesfontein is disposed of at a landfall site west of Laingsburg town. The waste generation for Laingsburg, obtained from the Integrated Waste Management Plan, prepared in 2005, is based on the 2001 population survey figures. The waste generated in Laingsburg is 1.2kg per person per day resulting in 5.4 tons per day. The waste for Matjiesfontein is 0.5kg per person per day resulting in 0.15 tons per day. Therefore, the waste generation in the Municipality is approximately 20.4 tons per week during the peak and 16.9 tons during off-peak periods.

Laingsburg has one landfill site that was permitted in 1997 with a classification of General Waste, Communal Landfill and no significant leachate produced (GCB). This site is approximately 5 hectares and does not have any groundwater monitoring. It receives garden refuse, building rubble and domestic waste and put it into trenches at the landfill site. Waste diversion methods like recycling should be applied to maintain the airspace of the landfill site. The is recycling infrastructure in the landfill site which was financed by DEFF; however, the infrastructure is not completed to commission with recycling purposes.

There is no weighbridge facility at the Laingsburg Landfill Site therefore the quantity of waste disposed off at the landfill site is not measured and the exact number of receptacles collected at each of the service points is not known. Therefore, it was not possible to distinguish between the different types of waste generated within the respective areas and the volume of waste generated was purely based on the available population figures. The method that is used to determine waste data is the gate controller sheet/ waste calculator provided by the provincial department.

An appropriate waste management system is needed. Opportunities for waste separation and recycling at the Laingsburg town landfill site should be implemented. That can assist with low skilled job creation and waste diversion from the landfill site. Providing receptacles for public place recycling is a requirement in terms of section 23(2) of NEMWA. The Municipality needs to provide containers for recycling in order to support current waste minimisation efforts. This service should be provided as a basic need.

#### Waste Management Awareness and Education

Littering and illegal dumping occur throughout the urban areas in the district with a prominent occurrence of illegal dumping in Laingsburg town. The illegal dumping of waste as well as the insufficient and irregular removal of waste within the residential areas are the biggest nuisances in the municipality, and limited resources to ensure that all areas prone to illegal dumping are cleaned is a challenge.

DEFF has deployed Youth Environmental Coordinator to assist the municipality with educating communities on issues of waste management and pollution control. Awareness campaigns aim to encourage communities to adopt more responsible attitudes towards waste and to deal with it in ways that are more sustainable. These campaigns focus on the problem of litter, promoting the avoidance and minimisation of waste and pollution, greening the environment of communities to enhance the aesthetic beauty of local areas and to build a culture of cleanliness in their communities. The campaigns also promote recovery and recycling at source. The Youth Environmental Coordinator (YEC) mostly use environmental calendar Weeks/Days for sharing of environmental information and community education programmes.

## Recommendation for effective waste management

The municipality should develop an IWMP to facilitate waste management efficiency and sustainability in the municipality area. The following aspect must be considered for effective waste management in the municipality:

- Integrated Waste Management Plan must be developed
- Review and update of bylaws to align with waste legislation
- Implementing a regional approach to waste management
- Improve levels of compliance, enforcement and performance at waste management facilities
- The municipality should put in place tariffs system for waste disposal at landfill site and promote recycling or waste diversion methods.
- Allocate enough budget for waste management services.
- Apply to use MIG to purchase compactors trucks and landfill site yellow fleet with the current date of submission of the technical assessment report to both Province and National being the 31<sup>st</sup> May 2021.

# 6.4.2.5. Air Quality Management tools

## Air Quality Management Legislations

Air Quality Management legislation comprises primary standards which protect human health and secondary standards which protect property, vegetation, climate and aesthetic values. The development of new industries that increase air pollution through the emission of gases in the atmosphere should be managed. Air Quality in Laingsburg municipality is considered good with no measure industries that can cause pollutant constituent. However, the proximity of the municipality to the N1 road does cause airborne pollution to the municipal areas as there are lot of vehicles movement that emit exhaust gases, dust from road works and other construction, emission from landfill site and household emission that are complemented by light and business activities in the area. The municipality depend on the District and DEA&DP to administer Atmospheric Emission Licences Authority (AELs).

## Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP)

Laingsburg Municipality currently do not have an Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP). Section 15 (2) of the National Environmental Management: Air Quality Act requires municipalities to develop Air Quality Management Plans (AQMP) and include it in their IDP in terms of Chapter 5 of the Municipal Systems Act. The plan aims to reduce emissions and pollutions impacts responsible for the loss of ambient air quality, acidification and global warming to improve the quality of life of the citizens.

## The AQMP is aimed to achieving the protection of ambient air quality

## Each of the 4 goals of the AQMP addresses different aspects of the vision which includes

- To ensure effective and consistent AQM. This goal aims to address the development and maintenance of the varied requirements for system, skills and capacity for AQM, and the establishment of necessary institutional arrangements;
- To ensure effective and consistent compliance monitoring and enforcement. This goal aims to improve compliance monitoring and enforcement in the District level and to ensure that ambient air quality standards for the protection of health are attained and continually met;
- To support climate change protection programmes, including promoting the reduction of greenhouse gas emission and;
- To raise awareness with respect to air quality. This goal aims to improve awareness of air pollution issues in the Municipality through awareness raising and education.

The roles and responsibilities of the Municipalities are outlined in the National Environmental Management Air Quality Act (Act 39 of 2004) These are:

- Designate a municipal AQO from its administration the municipality does not have an AQO in the current form with the role being administered at the District level by EHP section.
- Develop an AQMP for inclusion in its IDP in accordance with chapter 5 of the Municipal Systems act
- Prepare an annual report including progress regarding the implementation of the AQMP and compliance with the plan when developed.
- Establish Municipal standards for emissions from point, non-point and mobile sources if a municipality, in terms of its by law, identifies a substance or mixture of substances in ambient air which through ambient concentrations, bioaccumulation deposition or any way, presents a threat to health or well-being or the environment, or which the municipality reasonably believes presents such a threat.
- Require the appointment of an emission control offer in the municipality, thereby extending the powers of the authority by ensuring that the emission control officer is responsible for the municipality applying the correct measures to minimise emissions.
- Consider purchasing air emission equipment such as air quality monitoring stations.

## Potential air pollution sources in the district are:

- Industrial operations
- Agricultural activities
- Vehicle entrainment of dust from paved and unpaved roads
- Waste treatment and disposal (landfills fire burning)
- Vehicle tailpipe emission
- Biomass burning
- Domestic fuel burning (particularly, wood and paraffin)

# 6.4.2.6. Environmental Governance and Management

# **Environmental Governance**

Environmental governance is embodied in South Africa's environmental legislation. Hence, the South Africa Constitution, 1996 together with various other pieces of legislation places a responsibility on all municipalities to address environmental issues at local level. The Laingsburg Municipality should embrace environmental governance principle of fairness, accountability, responsibility and transparency as they are important ingredients for sustainable development. If municipalities are to realise the duty and objective of promoting a safe and healthy environment, they should start the process of generating environmental policies as a matter of urgency.

Such policies must take into account the provisions of the Constitution, 1996 to ensure that all sphere of government must co-operate with one another by co-ordinating their actions and legislation with one another (RSA 1996:19).

The Laingsburg municipality currently does not have an environmental related forum within its institutional structure; however, the municipality participate in the District Environmental Management Forum (just established at the district) and other district forum like DCF-Tech, provincial waste management forum (WMOF), EPWP Environment & Culture Forum (EAC), WCRAG).

Laingsburg municipality does not have a dedicated environmental unit/structure responsible for environmental management in general, but it does have a designated waste officer/manager and also it is being supported by Local Government Support programme from DEFF that deployed a Youth Environmental Coordinator (YEC – YCOP) and supported by Local Government Support (LGS) official (Control Environmental Officer) based in the Central Karoo District. It will be recommendable for the municipality to consider recruiting an environmental officer whom will be responsible for environmental function such as air quality management, biodiversity and conservation, environmental impact assessment (EIA) and address climate change management. The municipality must also build a positive working relationship with the district and other local municipalities within the district so as to coordinate environmental challenges and issues together as a token to share ideas, resources and skills.

Lack of capacity is another challenge that should be address as a matter of urgency. Municipal politicians and officials need training in environmental and sustainable development concepts and issues. Furthermore, environmental education and awareness activities within the municipality are limited in scope, generalised and undertaken with limited resources. An environmental education and awareness strategy is a significant tool to assist in this regard. Public participation in the municipality is conducted in ward committees where communities share ideas on expectations from the municipalities regarding issues pertaining to environmental challenges or issues like illegal dumping, litter and alien invasive species within their households and farming communities. Local newspapers, social media platforms such as Facebook, WhatsApp, and local radio are used to communicate or share important communication from the municipality to the people and vis versa.

#### Integrated Environmental Management Tools and Environmental Programmes

The Laingsburg municipality does not have a dedicated environmental management unit or official responsible for environmental impact assessment (EIA) and as a result this can be playing a role in delaying project development especially capital projects that might require such impact studies as required by EIA Regulation for compliance and enforcement objectives to management environmental impacts that can be detrimental to the environment and the safety & health of the people in the municipality. Currently the LGS official and YEC are assisting the municipality with environmental advice and analysis of capital projects during the planning and toward implementation process.

The municipality again lack environmental policies or sector plans that are vital instrument for environmental management. Most of the sector plans are outdated or due for review or were never developed. The municipality should consider developing sector plans such as IWMP, AQMP, Open Space Management Plan, Alien Invasive Eradicating Plan and By-laws.

## **Environmental Management Intervention from Sector Departments**

Sector department such as DEFF, DEA&DP, Public Works, Rural Development and Agriculture play a vital role in the municipality by providing environmental management programmes that assist the municipality in resolving their environmental issues and challenges. DEFF will be launching Greening and Cleaning in the municipality later this year (2021) with recruitment process of 60 participant underway, waste picker programme for DEFF another waste management programme to benefit waste pickers as a COVID-19 programmes to address challenges faced by waste pickers during the period of Covid-19 pandemic. DEA&DP also has environmental programmes in the municipality, whereby the waste section is assisting the municipality to develop Organic Waste Diversion Plan, Waste By-law and other waste management initiatives.

## Proposed Environmental programmes or projects

- 1. Fix and Save community-based water conservation leak repair project
- 2. Establish a small-scale community-based vegetable tunnel farming project at the Flood Museum
- 3. Compilation of an invasive alien plant monitoring, control and eradication report
- 4. Compilation of an Environmental Management Framework report
- 5. Compilation of an Integrated Water Strategy report
- 6. Compilation of an Integrated Municipal Property Management Strategy report.

# 6.4.2.7. Water Resource Management

There are three rivers which confluence at Laingsburg town, namely the Baviaans (Bobbejaans) which also flows through Matjiesfontein from the west, the Wilgehoutsriver and the Buffels from the north. The Witberg River also flows in a northern direction across the N1 and then the Wilgehoutsriver in a north- western direction into Hillandale. The municipality is currently experiencing a deep and prolonged drought of significantly below average rainfall and very low to empty dams, making ground water more important in the area.

Laingsburg Local Municipality is dependent on groundwater as the only source for water service delivery, the town reservoirs, Goldnerville reservoir, Soutkloof boreholes, Soutkoolf reservoir and Soutkloof pit. In Matjiesfontein there are boreholes and reservoirs. Climate change is leading to more frequent drought and a decline in groundwater availability within the municipal area. These ground water sources are the primary source for the supply of potable water to households and businesses in Laingsburg.

The municipality should have more stringent water conservation and demand management initiatives. Due to the scarce precipitation and subsequent surface run-off, ground water sources are the primary source for the supply of potable water. The region is currently experiencing a deep and prolonged drought of significantly below average rainfall and very low to empty dams, making ground water even more important in the region.

The prolonged drought being experienced in the Greater Karoo for the past 4 years has had a disastrous effect on agriculture and is also impacting severely on the water supply to towns and other communities. All of the Towns in the area rely, to a greater or lesser extent, on underground water extracted either via springs or some form of boreholes.

The aquifers are showing signs of stress as abstraction is exceeding aquafer recharge ayes due to the low rainfall in the area. As a result, many boreholes have "dried up" placing increased demands on the remaining boreholes to ensure that the towns can meet their demand.

To date none of the towns have run out of water, however several of the towns are water stressed leading to the following situations:

- Towns have very limited capacity to meet increased demand arising from such occurrences as increased tourism and through traffic during the holiday periods as they are unable to fill or keep their treated water dams full due to the lack of sufficient supply.
- Towns have insufficient supply to build up reserves to carry them through normal infrastructure failures and peak demand periods.
- The lack of reserve capacity leads to a fragile situation where any minor reduction of supply, either through natural causes, such as drying boreholes or infrastructure failure (pipe bursts, power outages, mechanical plant failure, planned maintenance etc.) will lead to partial water stoppages and consequent panic by consumers, opening up the opportunity for exploitation by the press and other parties.

## 6.4.2.8. Heritage

Laingsburg Municipality is rich in heritage precincts and holdings, except in the town where many historic buildings were destroyed in the 1981 flood. The national monuments and provincial conservation sites within the Laingsburg Municipality include the Anglo-Boer Blokhuis adjacent to the Geelbek River, the Anysberg Nature Reserve, Pieter Meintjiesfontein, Matjiesfontein and the Dutch Reform Church in Laingsburg. One of Matjiesfontein's best attributes is the well –preserved Victorian architecture that it displays. The Moordenaarskaroo is named as it used to be hideaway for murderers and robbers who fled to escape the law. The Thomas Bains scenic route through the Seweweekspoort was known as a smugglers route.

The Karoo is an ancient, fossil-rich land with the largest variety of succulents found anywhere on earth and is therefore considered a wonder of the scientific world and immensely valuable to national and international conservation scientists. The municipality must at all times protect conservation heritage and apply appropriate strategies to preserve such heritage status of its surround. This will play a role in preserving the tourism status of the town as many tourists will visit the town as a token to enjoy its conservation and heritage preserves.

## 6.5 Economic Analysis

The local economy of the Laingsburg municipal area is dominated by the agriculture, forestry and fishing sector (R 97.4 million; 24.2 per cent in 2016), followed by the general government (R76.8 million; 19.1 per cent), wholesale and retail trade, catering and accommodation (R52.6 million; 13.1 per cent) and electricity, gas and water (R47.7 million or 11.8 per cent). Combined, these top four sectors contributed R274.6 million (or 68.2 per cent) to the Laingsburg municipal economy, which was estimated be worth R402.6 million in 2016.

LSEPLG, 2019

#### 6.5.1 GDPR Performance

The primary sector contributed 24.2% to the GDPR of the municipality. Secondary contribute

21.0% of the GDPR and tertiary sector contribute 54.8% of the Laingsburg economy.

	Contribution to GDPR (%)	R million value	т	rend		Re	al GDPR	growth	rowth (%)		
Sector	2016	2016	2006 - 2016	2013 - 2017e	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017e	
Primary Sector	24.2	97.5	2.0	0.6	1.6	2.6	8.2	-3.4	-10.4	5.9	
Agriculture, forestry and fishing	24.2	97.4	2.0	0.6	1.6	2.6	8.2	-3.4	-10.4	5.9	
Mining and quarrying	0.0	0.1	-1.5	1.4	-1.1	1.2	4.6	-2.2	-1.1	4.5	
Secondary Sector	21.0	84.4	4.2	3.5	1.7	3.7	4.6	2.0	4.5	2.7	
Manufacturing	0.5	1.9	-1.6	-1.9	-3.7	-5.8	-1.4	-1.7	1.8	-2.6	
Electricity, gas and water	11.8	47.7	1.4	1.0	2.0	0.5	0.5	0.2	0.5	3.3	
Construction	8.6	34.8	9.7	7.2	1.8	9.3	10.6	4.4	9.4	2.5	
<b>Tertiary Sector</b>	54.8	220.7	3.4	2.3	4.0	4.0	2.9	1.7	1.8	1.2	
Wholesale and retail trade, catering and accommodation	13.1	52.6	2.3	0.5	4.1	1.9	-0.1	0.6	0.9	-0.6	
Transport, storage and communication	10.6	42.8	1.0	0.9	1.5	1.9	2.9	-1.1	-0.1	0.8	
Finance, insurance, real estate and business services	3.3	13.1	3.2	2.0	4.1	0.7	2.2	3.1	1.4	2.4	
General government	19.1	76.8	5.3	3.7	4.6	6.0	5.5	2.9	2.6	1.5	
Community, social and personal services	8.8	35.4	4.8	4.0	5.3	7.5	2.5	3.6	3.5	2.9	
Total Laingsburg	100	402.6	3.1	2.0	2.9	3.6	4.7	0.3	-1.3	2.7	

Table 6.13 Laingsburg GDPR Performance per sector Source: MERO, 2018

The 3 biggest contributors to the municipal economy are; Agriculture, forestry and fisheries

(24.2), whole and retail, catering and accommodation (13.1%) and general government

(19.1).

The LED study (2017) notes that Laingsburg Municipality has a number of elements that

give it a competitive advantage. These are:

• Well established agricultural sector predominantly made up of sheep, (merino and dorper) farming

for both meat and wool. It should be noted that these are historical elements that gave rise to the establishment of Laingsburg town. There is a small amount of crop farming occurring in the well-watered valleys.

- **Laingsburg town has tourism potential** arising from its location along the N1 Freeway and the railway both of which connect between Cape Town and Gauteng.
- The Municipality has a **primarily urban population**. More than 80% of the population is located in Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein, which are the urban centres within the municipality.
- Civil services infrastructure seems to be adequately sized for the current and modest future projections.
- **Good levels of access to services** are experienced in the area. Although the LED strategy notes competitive advantages there are a number of challenges that Laingsburg needs to deal with:
- It has a single dominant economic sector; agriculture. As noted previously, sheep farming is the largest component of the dominant sector which is agriculture. There is a need to develop a more diversified economy for the area.
- A lack of employment opportunities and low levels of self-esteem. There are not many employment opportunities in the area and very few have self- employment opportunities.
- The **shortage of skills** there are **high illiteracy levels** resulting in a poorly skilled population.
- **Poverty and substance abuse** there are high levels of substance abuse in the area.
- The impact of mining does not seem to have been considered.
- Spatial segregation Laingsburg town and Matjiesfontein depicts a similar pattern to most towns in South African towns where the legacy of apartheid planning is ingrained in the structure of settlements. Historically privileged groups are closer to town and marginalised groups are located further away from town. They are often separated by transport or river corridors. Both Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein have these patterns of residential segregation

This dilutes the economic resource of the town as so much time has to be spent walking to the CBD. This is particularly true of Bergsig in Laingsburg town which is across two river corridors and a transport corridor approximately 1.5 – 2kms (30 to 40mins walk) from the town centre.

The vision of the LED strategy is to create sustainable communities in the central Karoo through local economic development. A number of projects are identified. These are shown on the table below:

Municipality	Heritage and Architecture	Natural and Environment	Crafts, Cuisine and Other
Laingsburg	Laingsburg flood history and	Star-gazing, nature reserves,	Craft shopping and overnight
	Karoo architecture	and Floriskraal Dam	accommodation

#### 6.5.2 Agriculture

The agriculture, forestry and fishing sector is one of the main contributing sectors to employment in the CKD. The sector contributed 25.7 per cent to employment in the CKD in 2016. In the Laingsburg and Prince Albert municipal areas, this sector contributed 32.7 per cent and 37 per cent respectively to employment in 2016.

### 6.5.3 Agri-Tourism

Agri-Tourism has showed a growth in the agricultural sector, providing into the need of people from the cities wanting a need in unwinds and enjoy the country life. The following table gives an indication how farms have developed and add value to the Tourism Sector.

Туре	Count	% of CKD
4x4	22	46
Accommodation	31	24
Birding	21	42
Camping	13	38
Conference/Function Venue	5	23
Ecotourism	13	25
Fishing	10	43
Farm Stall	1	8,3
Hiking	24	33
Horse Riding	5	23
Mountain Biking	19	35
Quad Biking	4	24
Restaurant	2	11

Table 6.25: Laingsburg Agri-tourism composition (Source: MERO 2018)

Adventure Tourism is the biggest in the municipal area, providing 4X4, accommodation, Birding, camping, hiking and mountain biking as the major activities provided for.

## 6.5.4 Impact of Climate Change

Given the background of the Laingsburg local municipal area economy being predominantly dependent on agriculture as its economic base, the risks that climate change can potentially have on this agricultural production area is of great concern.

The main expected features of climate change is the long term rise in temperature, variability in precipitation, changes in precipitation patterns, changes in the growing season etc. Therefore, the aforementioned variables will definitely impact on the availability of water, for both rain fed and irrigated agricultural production. Water availability is the most important limiting factor for crop production in the Laingsburg area. Furthermore, animal production is also adversely affected in the light of dryer periods throughout the year. Given the extent of production in this area it could have implications in terms of food security.

#### 6.5.5 Building Materials and Mining

The Map shows the distribution of mining applications within the Municipality. Applications have been issued to mine uranium on 50159ha and mining applications are in process on 7644ha. South Africa has the 4<sup>th</sup> largest uranium reserves in the world but is only ranked 12th in terms of production suggesting there could be considerable upside potential in mining this commodity if there is sufficient demand. (OECD NEA & IAEA, Uranium 2007: Resources, Production and Demand ("Red Book") World Nuclear Association)



#### 6.5.6 Employment

	Contribution to employment (%)	Number of jobs	Tr	end		Employr	ment (net o	change)	
Sector	2016	2016	2006 - 2016	2013 - 2017e	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017e
Primary Sector	32.7	927	-393	-125	49	-53	212	-26	-25
Agriculture, forestry and fishing	32.7	927	-393	-125	49	-53	212	-26	-25
Mining and quarrying	0.0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Secondary Sector	7.94	225	92	4	8	16	8	22	7

Manufacturing	0.3	9	-4	-1	0	0	-1	1	0
Electricity, gas and water	1.3	37	20	-1	2	1	1	3	2
Construction	6.3	179	76	0	6	15	8	18	5
Tertiary Sector	59.4	1 682	455	61	52	60	53	29	43
Wholesale and retail trade, catering and accommodation	18.6	526	61	3	8	9	22	8	17
Transport, storage and communication	3.0	86	30	2	3	0	2	4	0
Finance, insurance, real estate and business services	4.8	135	50	12	6	4	6	-1	5
General government	16.6	470	170	18	5	33	1	13	-7
Community, social and personal services	16.4	465	144	26	30	14	22	5	28
Total Laingsburg	100	2 834	154	-60	109	23	273	25	25

The sector which reported the largest increase in jobs between 2006 and 2016 was general government (170), community, social and personal services (144), followed by construction (76), wholesale and retail trade, catering and accommodation (61), finance, insurance, real estate and business services (50) and transport, storage and communication (30).

The majority of workers in the Laingsburg labour force in 2016 was dominated by semi-skilled workers (49.7 per cent) and only 16.0 per cent were skilled.

(LSEP, 2018)

### 6.5.7 Labour

Formal employment	Skill level contribution (%)
by skill	2016
Skilled	16.0
Semi-skilled	50.0
Low skilled	34.0
Total Laingsburg	100

The number of skilled workers grown and show that the market demanded for more skilled workers. Formal employment growth grew by 2.1% between 2015-2019

#### Unemployment

The current unemployment rate is currently at 17%, this could be due to windfarm construction projects in the area. The majority of the wages are from the Agricultural sector with more than one thousand job opportunities from the sector these stats to be updated with next review.

#### 6.5.8 Property market patterns and growth pressures

The following average property / sale value are currently being experienced in the rural areas. Dryland grazing land: 1 000/ha
Dryland agricultural land: 80 000/ha
Irrigated agricultural land: 140 000/ha

#### 6.5.9 Tourism

The tourism industry plays a key role in the South African economy, both from its contribution to GDP and from its contribution to employment; tourism is dependent on both domestic and foreign visitors both in the sense of domestic to the Laingsburg and Western Cape and also in the sense of national as well as international visitors

Laingsburg has a number of heritage sites and as a Municipality has numerous opportunities for the enhancement of its heritage and tourism opportunities. The N1 Freeway as it passes through Laingsburg presents with itself automatic patrons to tourism opportunities. These opportunities are generally limited to activities that are directly exposed to the N1 Freeway. This also includes activities located deeper in the municipality. The SDF review data 2017 noted that approximately 14 000 vehicles pass through Laingsburg every day. This traffic in itself provides a great opportunity for tourism and the economy of Laingsburg.

Laingsburg also has a strong national and international iconic status in South Africa in that it was the place of the largest natural disaster, namely the great flood that happened in 1981. This presents tourism opportunities. However, the tourism opportunities and activities need to be diversified. In this regard the traffic safety measures in Laingsburg town, such as the line

of New Jersey barriers along the intersection with the N1 Freeway and Humphrey Street require amelioration.

Matjiesfontein village is known for its Victorian architecture and has approximately about 10 000 visitors per year. (IDP2017) However, these visitors to Matjiesfontein are essentially one day visitors with possible overnight stay opportunities. The aim should be to lengthen their stay, not only in Matjiesfontein, but also in the Municipality.

There is a need to enhance tourism industry by developing aspects such as skills development in the hospitality industry. Other aspects such as marketing and creating widespread awareness of the area and its opportunities are also required.

The Floriskraal Dam has been identified as an opportunity for development for the tourist economy in the area. Further investigation is required around whether there is an SUP for the area around the dam. This is to ensure the maximum economic, social and tourism benefit is obtained from the dam whilst preserving the integrity of the ecological functions of the dam. This should also be done for the Gamkaspoort dam from which Laingsburg Municipality as well as Prince Albert Municipality can benefit. The municipality could also potentially have a number of agri-tourist opportunities. These are as follows:

The historic urban character, reflecting a typical Karoo character, has developed over the years and has been retained in certain areas. This provides another opportunity for tourist attraction. It is therefore necessary that appropriate architecture is encouraged in the building and extension work and that any new developments in do not detract from the town's urban landscape.

#### 6.5.10 Regional Economic Development

Laingsburg as part of three towns plays a particular role in the regional economy, although with little change over time in the nature and extent their economies. However, the introduction of renewable energy generation and the Square Kilometre Array project in the greater Karoo region, as well as possible exploration for shale gas, will add value to the GDP within certain economic sectors and, by implication, change the composition and character of the towns. (CKDM, 2017: 9)

CKDM (2017; 14) states that the two key structuring elements of the economy for the region are the national road and the railway line that bisects the area in a northern and southern segment of equal proportion. These transport corridors are regarded as the conduit of activity to and from municipal areas.

The Agri-parks programme initiated by the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform (DRDLR) focus on the agricultural production and the value adding thereof. Beaufort West will be the Agri-Parks Hub and Farmer Production Supports Units within each municipality in the district which will support the hub.

## 6.6 Institutional and Service Delivery Analysis

The chapter aims to provide an analysis of Laingsburg Municipality, its financial position and status of service delivery.

6.6.1 Institutional Analysis

The following section focuses on the factors contributing to the sustainability of the municipality ranging from continuity of the prevailing political environment and the internal capacity of the municipality, particularly in relation to personnel and the systems used within the municipality.

#### 6.6.2 Political Environment

The council performs both legislative and executive functions. They focus on legislative, oversight and participatory roles, and have delegated its executive function to the Executive Mayor and the full council. Their role is to debate issues publicly and to facilitate political debate and discussion. The council plays a very active role in the operations of the Municipality. Apart from their functions as decision makers, councillors are also actively involved in community work and the various social programmes in the municipal area.

The Council of the Laingsburg Municipality comprises of 7 Councillors. The portfolio committees are made up of councillors drawn from all political parties. Below is a table that categorised the councillors within their specific political parties and wards:

Name of councillor	Capacity Political Party		Ward representing or proportional	
Cllr Mike Gouws	Councillor	ANC	4	
Clir. Irene Brown (Ms)	Councilor	ANC	Proportional	
Cllr. Ricardo Louw	Mayor	КОР	Proportional	
Cllr. Susanna Maritz	Councillor	ANC	Proportional	
Cllr. Lindi Potgieter (Ms)	Speaker / Chairperson	DA	3	
Cllr Bertie Van As	Deputy Mayor / Councillor	DA	1	
Cllr. Wihelm Theron	Councillor	DA	2	

Table 6.35: Composition of Council

#### 6.6.3 The Executive Mayoral Committee

Due to the small size of the Laingsburg Municipality and its Council, there is no Mayoral Committee as it would not be practical to have such a committee.

The portfolio committees' as at 14 December 2020 primary responsibility is to exercise oversight over the executive arm of the municipality's governance structure. These committees monitor the delivery and outputs of the executive and may request Directorates to account for the outputs of their functions. Councilors' account for executive decisions and operations performed in general policy framework agreed to by Council and although the portfolio committees play an oversight role, they have limited decision-making powers. These committees are responsible for submitting their reports to Council.

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Finance and Administration				
M Gouws	Chairperson			
M. Daniëls (F)	Councillor			
l Brown (F)	Councillor			
W. Theron	Councillor			
R Louw	Councillor			
B. van As	Councillor			
L. Potgieter (F)	Councillor			
Technical S	ervices			
R Louw	Chairperson			
M Gouws	Councillor			
l Brown (F)	Councillor			
M. Daniëls (F)	Councillor			
L. Potgieter (F)	Councillor			
W. Theron	Councillor			
B. van As	Councillor			
Community	Services			
l Brown (F)	Chairperson			
M Gouws	Councillor			
M. Daniëls	Councillor			
R Louw	Councillor			
L. Potgieter (F)	Councillor			
W. Theron	Councillor			
B. van As	Councillor			

Table 6.36: Composition of Portfolio Committees

Salga Standing Committees					
Community Development & Social Cohesion	L. Potgieter & W. Theron (Secundi)				
Economic Empowerment & Employment Creation	B. van As & L. Potgieter (Secundi)				
Environmental Planning & Climate Resilience	B. van As & R. Louw (Secundi)				
Public Transport and Roads	B. van As & W. Theron(Secundi)				

#### Table 6.37: The Management Structure

The administrative arm of the Municipality is headed by the municipal manager. The municipal manager as head of the administration is responsible and accountable for tasks and functions as provided for in Section 55 of the MSA, other functions/tasks as provided for in legislation as well as functions delegated to her by the Executive Mayor and Council. He is supported by a team of managers.

The municipality consists of five departments namely Development Services; Finance and; Corporate Services; Infrastructure Services and Community Services.

Capacity of Staff is limited and key staff has more than one portfolio to execute and at the same time also

take responsibility for it.



The municipality is sufficiently staffed for the implementation of its integrated development plan.

Management is comprised of skilled and suitably qualified people to manage and monitor implementation of the municipality's plans and programs for the current five year period.

The overall organizational structure of the municipality which is under the review process is constructed so that all functions can be performed properly. With the review process, a Supply Chain Manager will be appointed and asset management will form part of his/her duties. The Management team is supported by the following staff structure:

Occupational Levels		M	ale			Fen	nale		Foreign N	ationals	Total
	Α	С	I	w	A	С	I	w	Male	Female	
Top management	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Senior management	1	1	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	4
Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management	1	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	3
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen, and superintendents	0	18	0	0	1	15	0	1	0	0	35
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making	0	3	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	7

Final Integrated Development Plan 4 <sup>th</sup> Review											
Unskilled and defined decision making         0         17         0         0         3         0         0         0         20											
onskiled and defined decision making	U	17	U	Ū	Ū	5	Ū		Ū	Ŭ	20
TOTAL PERMANENT	2	40	0	1	1	24	0	2	0	0	70
Temporary employees	0	3	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	7

Table 6.39: Staff complement

# 6.6.5 Municipal Administrative and Institutional Capacity

The municipality has the following policies, service delivery improvement plans and systems to support

the workforce in delivering on the strategic objectives and to promote institutional viability and cohesion:

Name of policy, plan, system	Status	Responsible Directorate
Delegations of power	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Performance policy framework	Approved	Development Services
Employment equity plan	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Organisational structure	Under Review	Finance & Corporate Services
Employee assistance programme policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
HIV/AIDS policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
HIV / AIDS / TB Plan	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Youth, gender and disability policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Overtime policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Youth development strategy	To be developed	Development Services
Acting policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Cellular telephone policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Leave policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Language policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Housing allowance/subsidy policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Work place skills plan	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Scarce skills policy	To be developed	Finance & Corporate Services
	To be developed	
Name of policy, plan, system	Status	Responsible Directorate
		-
Name of policy, plan, system	Status	Responsible Directorate
Name of policy, plan, system Protective clothing policy	Status Approved	Responsible Directorate Infrastructure Services
Name of policy, plan, system Protective clothing policy Recruitment and selection policy	Status Approved Approved	Responsible Directorate         Infrastructure Services         Finance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policy	Status Approved Approved Approved	Responsible Directorate         Infrastructure Services         Finance & Corporate Services         Finance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, system         Protective clothing policy         Recruitment and selection policy         Travelling and subsistence policy         Training and development policy	Status Approved Approved Approved Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate ServicesFinance & Corporate ServicesFinance & Corporate ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policy	Status Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policies	Status         Approved         Approved         Approved         Approved         Approved         Approved         Approved         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety plan	Status Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial plan	Status         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial planIndigent and social support policy	Status         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial planIndigent and social support policyInformation technology policy	Status         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial planIndigent and social support policyInformation technology policyCredit control policy	Status         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial planIndigent and social support policyCredit control policyAsset management policy	Status         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services
Name of policy, plan, systemProtective clothing policyRecruitment and selection policyTravelling and subsistence policyTraining and development policyInternship and experiential policyStaff and external bursary policiesOccupational health and safety planLong term financial planIndigent and social support policyCredit control policyAsset management policyProperty rates policy	Status         Approved         Approved	Responsible DirectorateInfrastructure ServicesFinance & Corporate Services

Budget policy	Approved	Finance & Corporate Services
Early childhood development strategy	To be developed	Development Services
Sport development plan	To be developed	Community Services
Libraries: Rural outreach strategy	Approved	Community Services
Vehicle impound policy	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Tree policy	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Procurement policy	Approved	Financial Services
Disaster management & contingency plans	Approved	Community Services
Risk management policy and strategy	Approved	Internal Auditor
Audit committee charter	Approved	Internal Auditor
Spatial development framework	Approved	Development Services
Integrated infrastructure maintenance plan	Approved (June 2016)	Infrastructure Services
Integrated infrastructure investment plan	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Water services development plan	To be rewied	Infrastructure Services
Integrated waste management plan	To be reviewed	Infrastructure Services
Water Masterplan	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Water demand management policy	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Storm water master plan	Approved	Infrastructure Services
Community Safety Policy	Approved	Community Services

Table 6.40: Schedule of policies and systems

It is Council's intention to develop a schedule of all policies and by-laws that will indicate an annual rotation plan for reviewing all policies and by-laws. This process will assist the municipality to be developmental and innovative in doing business. The systems are continuously updated to ensure that it supports the administration. The municipality is currently in process to review the IT platform and the integration of IT systems.

**Financial Analysis** 

#### 6.6.6 Income and Expenditure Pattern

This section is based on the financial records provided by the Municipality for the period of 2017/18 -

2018/19 and are analysed.

	2018/2019	2017/2018
Income		83 116 524
Expenditure	89 019 00	74 302 276

Table 6.41: Income and expenditure patterns

The municipality is more reliant on grants to finance expenditure than other municipalities with the same nature, due to our limited revenue raising capacity.

Grants	2018/2019	2017/2018
Grants	43 626 000	30 961 213

Table 6.42: Grants

The reliance on grants and subsidies is concerning and will need to be addressed in a long term financial

plan.

### 6.6.7 Outstanding Rates and Services

Outstanding consumer debt has increased for the period across all sectors.

Outstanding debtors	2018/2019	2017/2018
Rates	1 932 000	2 276 000
Elec & Water	2 356 000	1 146 000
Sew & Refuse	1 628 000	924 000
Housing	802 000	550 000
Other	128 000	75 000

Table 6. 43: Debtors

### 6.6.8 Liquidity ratio

The ratio indicates that the municipality is not favorable position to meet its short term liabilities. The

ratio is currently below the national norm of 1.5:1.

Description	Basis of Calculations	2017/18	2018/19
Current Ratio	Current Assets/Current Liabilities	1.16	1.55
Current Ratio adjusted for aged	Current assets less debtors > 90 days/Current Liabilities	0.67	1.39
debtors			
Liquidity Ratio	Cash and equivalents/Trade creditors and short terms	0.49	0.46
	borrowing		

Table 6.44: Liquidity (LLM Annual Report 2018/2019)

### 6.7 Infrastructure Analysis

#### 6.7.1 **Transportation**

Laingsburg Municipality is bisected by the N1 Freeway and the main railway line aligned from east to west. These routes connect the Municipality to Worcester, Cape Town and Beaufort West. These routes are the main lifeline of the Municipality.

The two main settlements in the Municipality are Laingsburg town, which is the main settlement connected via the N1 Freeway, and Matjiesfontein situated approximately 700m from the N1 Freeway.

The N1 Freeway represents both a major opportunity and source of conflict. It has to accommodate large volumes of noisy passing traffic particularly heavy trucks through the middle of the town. The approach from the east is down a hill generally requiring the use of noisy exhaust brakes on large trucks. Some efforts have been made to calm traffic and improve safety but a lot more needs to be done.

The 2017 SDF noted that approximately 14 000 vehicles pass through Laingsburg per day during festive seasons. The Laingsburg Local Integrated Transport Plan (2009- 2013) notes that the N1 carries about 3 365 vehicles per day in both directions. The comparison between the two either reflects a major drop in road traffic or a miscount. Notwithstanding the discrepancy the traffic volumes, although bringing limited economic benefits, also create a traffic hazard in the centre of town.

The railway line connects Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg to places further away such as Cape Town and Johannesburg. The railway line is used for both sleeper passenger and goods services including the prestigious Blue Train. The Shosholoza Meyl sleeper passenger train between Cape Town and Gauteng stops at Matjiesfontein. The latter has no other public transport.

There are important gravel roads in the Municipality including the R354 north from Matjiesfontein to Sutherland and the R323 southwards to the R62. There have been equests

to tar this road which is supported by the Integrated Transport Plan (CSIR, 2009) except for the section through the Seweweekspoort. The ITP suggests this should remain gravel for tourism and scenic purposes. However, the District Municipality motivates that this road is the preferred road favourable geometrics.

#### 6.8.1.1 Non-Motorised Transport

Laingsburg town residents generally travel on foot. Pedestrians have to walk long distances up to

from the newly developed Bergsig to the west. Goldnerville is better located. A pedestrian and cycle pathway has been constructed from Bergsig into town and also links the school and the hospital.

#### 6.8.1.2 Air

There is one landing strip in the Municipality located close to Laingsburg town situated next to the Bergsig residential area.

#### 6.8.1.3 Public Transport

There is no public transport system in the area to assist the residents of Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein. A scholar service operates between Matjiesfontein and Touwsriver, however the plan will be reviewed in the 2019/2020 book year for other opportunities. Laingsburg is a major stop for long distance buses and approximately 118 buses make scheduled stops in the town each week.

The following issues / proposals were identified by during the drafting of the IDP:

- The appointment of tenders of Maintenance Contractors of the N1 national road
- Empower local contractors in the appointment of tenders and not only local labour through the EPWP programme.
- Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg were previously linked via a scenic district council road following the rail line. Gates along this route have been locked in a number of places but have the potential to a scenic route alternative to the N1 Freeway between Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg.
- To the south along the foot of the Swartberg, another scenic district council road used to link Seweweekspoort and Prince Albert until it was cut off by the Gamkaspoort dam. Continuing this route, possibly via a pond across the dam (already proposed) could help considerably with the tourism strategy whose main principle is to try and encourage visitors to spend as much time in an area as possible.
- Laingsburg town's existing refreshment station status can be built upon and strengthened.
- Its proximity to national road (N1) and rail routes (Cape Town / Gauteng) means it potentially enjoys far better links to the SA national capitals than many other Karootowns.
- The school bus service should provide other off-peak commuter transport services.
- A key goal for tourism strategies is to prolong the number of nights visitors stay in an area. This requires a wide range of attractions linked by a network of scenic routes. Laingsburg Municipality has a number of existing roads that could be upgraded into scenic routes suitable for sedan cars, 4x4s, and OMTBs including:

- o Moordenaars Karoo
- o Old road between Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg
- Possible river bank route to Floriskraal dam
- Laingsburg to Prince Albert through the Klein Swartberg via a future pond over the Gamkaspoort dam.
- Road to Zoar linking Laingsburg to the R62 Tourism Route
- o Road to Ladismith linking Laingsburg to the R62 Tourism Route

#### 6.8.1.4 Transport Improvement Proposals

The Municipality has maintenance responsibility of approximately 23,22km and 1,65km of streets that are in Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein, respectively. (CSIR, 2009) The same study also shows that there are about 272 parking bays in good tarred condition (except for 30 gravel bays in Goldnerville) in Laingsburg town. R354 north from Matjiesfontein to Sutherland and the R323 southwards are important from an economic stimulation perspective and need to be tarred. The District Municipality noted that it is not viable to upgrade these two roads.

#### 6.7.2 Solid Waste Management

Household refuge in the Laingsburg Municipality is collected on a weekly basis. Domestic refuge includes refuse from gardens and builders rubble. Commercial refuse removal is collected on a bi-weekly basis.

The refuse from Matjiesfontein is disposed of at a landfall site west of Laingsburg town. The waste generation for Laingsburg, obtained from the Integrated Waste Management Plan, prepared in 2005, is based on the 2001 population survey figures. The waste generated in Laingsburg is 1.2kg per person per day resulting in 5.4 tons per day. The waste for Matjiesfontein is 0.5kg per person per day resulting in 0.15 tons per day. Therefore, the waste generation in the Municipality is approximately 20.4 tons per week during the peak and 16.9 tons during off-peak periods.

Laingsburg has one landfill site that was permitted in 1997 with a classification of General Waste, Communal Landfill and no significant leachate produced (GCB). This site is approximately 5 hectares and does not have any groundwater monitoring. It receives garden refuse, building rubble and domestic waste and put it into trenches at the landfill site. At 2005, the site had approximately 10 years left. The landfill site must to be upgraded urgently to increase the airspace capacity during 2019/20.
Medical waste is transported to Beaufort West by means of a private company. No medical waste was seen in the landfill site in 2005 and it is assumed that it is well managed. The closest hazardous waste site is in Vissershok outside Cape Town. This makes it very problematic for Municipality to transport all of its hazardous waste to that facility.

The table below specifies the different refuse removal service delivery levels per households for the financial years 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 in the areas in which the municipality is responsible for the delivery of the service:

	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19			
Description	Actual	Actual	Actual			
Househ	<u>old</u>					
<u>Refuse Removal:</u> (N	/linimum level)					
Removed at least once a week	1 358	1 358	1358			
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total	1 358	1 358	1358			
Minimum Service Level and Above percentage	100%	100%	100%			
<u>Refuse Removal:</u> (Belov	<u>Refuse Removal:</u> (Below minimum level)					
Removed less frequently than once a week	-	-	-			
Using communal refuse dump	-	-	-			
Using own refuse dump	-	-	-			
Other rubbish disposal	-	-	-			
No rubbish disposal	-	-	-			
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total	-	-	-			
Below Minimum Service Level percentage	0%	0%	0%			
Total number of households	1 197	1 358	1358			

Table 6.45: Refuse removal service delivery levels (Source: LLM Final 2018/19 Annual Performance Report)

Non-financial Census of municipalities	2007	2017	Change 2007 - 2017	Average annual change 2007 - 2017
Domestic and non-domestic refuse removal services per consumer/ billing unit	1 129	1 502	373	2.9%
Indigent support for refuse services	736	693	-43	-0.6%

Table 6.46: Refuse removal service delivery levels (Source: LSEP 2018)

#### 6.7.3 Water

Laingsburg receive its sources of water from the three existing rivers, Soutkloof Spring, reservoirs and a number of boreholes. These are: Wilgehout River, Bobbejaan River, Buffels River, New Town Reservoir and Goldnerville Reservoir, Soutkloof fountains, Soutkloof boreholes.



Map 6.10: Water Supply Infrastructures

Water from Soutkloof is supplied to New Town Reservoir where it is distributed to households. Buffels River is used as a supplementary source of water. Most of the water used is from the underground water system. The size of the available water reserve in the aquifer needs to be determined. Matjiesfontein is serviced from two boreholes from the Lord Milner Hotel. Two new boreholes were drilled and commissioned. (SDF Review, 2017) In With the drought however the yield of the boreholes are not sustainable and in order to secure more water, groundwater exploration in the municipal area must be implemented as soon as possible.

**Climate Change and more regular droughts highlight possible decrease in groundwater levels and water scarcity in future.** Waste water are currently being recycled to a point where it can be used for Lucerne and the Matjiesfontein Sport field irrigation. The municipality must investigate the possibility of extending it to Laingsburg Sport Facilities and the golf course and even for human consumption in the future.

According to the 2017/18 Municipal Annual Report the municipality is unable to account for 50% of water that was recorded as water losses. The municipality must also find ways to minimise the huge % of unaccounted water which include, Investigations, replacement of aging pipelines and the development and implementation of an integrated resource management plan. The table below specifies the different

water service delivery levels per households for the financial years 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 in the areas in which the municipality is responsible for the delivery of the service. The municipality does not provide services in rural (farming) areas:

	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19				
Description	Actual	Actual	Actual				
Household							
<u>Water:</u> (above	e minimum level)						
Piped water inside dwelling	1 370	954	954				
Piped water inside yard (but not in dwelling farms)	630	416	416				
Using public tap (within 200m from dwelling )	-	-	-				
Other water supply (within 200m)	-	-	-				
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total	1 370	1 370	1370				
Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage	100%	100%	100%				
<u>Water:</u> (belov	v minimum level)						
Using public tap (more than 200m from dwelling)	-	-	-				
Other water supply (more than 200m from dwelling	-	-	-				
No water supply	-	-	-				
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total	-	-	-				
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage	-	-	-				
Total number of households (formal and informal)	1 370	1 370	1370				

Table 6.47: Water service delivery levels (Source: LLM Annual Report 2018/19)

The table below shows the water service delivery levels per total households and the progress per year, an increase of 1.0 percent was recorded since 2011. (LSEP, 2017)

## **SERVICE STANDARD DEFINITION:** Households with access to piped water insider the dwelling or yard or within 200 metres from the yard.

Area	2011	2016	Total increase 2011 - 2016	Average annual increase 2011 - 2016	Average annual growth 2011 - 2016
Laingsburg	99.4%	88.1%	127	25	1.0%
Central Karoo District	99.4%	95.1%	1 930	386	2.0%

Table 6.48: Water service delivery levels (Source: LSEP 2017)

The following issues were identified during the drafting of the IDP:

- recycle the waste water for industrial use and identification of viable water sources for the future
- purify the water for Matjiesfontein
- drill a new borehole to provide Matjiesfontein with water
- continuous reviewing of our Water Services development plan
- Laingsburg town needs to investigate additional sources of water if it intends toattract major developments to its region.

## 6.7.4 Waste Water Treatment (Sanitation)

There are two waste water treatment plants; one in Matjiesfontein and one in Laingsburg. Waste Water Treatment for Laingsburg is above and for Matjiesfontein is below the Basic RDP standards. Not true, Water Affairs approved and issued a license for package plant.



Map 6.11: The sewer plan

The table below specifies the different sanitation service delivery levels per households for the financial years 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 in the areas in which the municipality is responsible for the delivery of the service:

	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Description per households	Actual	Actual	Actual
	Household	·	
Sanitation/sewerage:	(above minimum level)		
Flush toilet (connected to sewerage)	1 317	1 241	1 241
Flush toilet (with septic tank)	30	68	68
Chemical toilet	-	-	-
Description per households	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
	Actual	Actual	Actual
Pit toilet (ventilated)	-	-	-
Other toilet provisions (above minimum service level)	-	-	-
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total	1 317	1 317	1317

112

Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage	100%	100%	100%		
<u>Sanitation/sewerage:</u> (	Sanitation/sewerage: (below minimum level)				
Bucket toilet	-	-	-		
Other toilet provisions (below minimum service level)	-	-	-		
No toilet provisions	-	-	-		
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total	-	-	-		
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage	0	0	0		
Total number of households	1 317	1 317	1317		

Table 6.49: Sanitation service delivery levels (Source: LLM Annual Report 2018/19)

There was an increase of 338 domestic and non-domestic consumer/billing units for sanitation services over the 2007 – 2017 period, recording an average year on year growth of 2.5 per cent over this 10-year period

Non-financial Census of municipalities	2007	2017	Change 2007 - 2017	Average annual change 2007 - 2017
Domestic and non-domestic sanitation services per consumer/billing unit	1 210	1 548	338	2.5%
Indigent support for sanitation services	736	680	-56	-0.8%

Table 6.50: Sanitation Service Delivery Levels (Source: LSEP 2018)

## 6.7.5 Energy

Local Government plays a very important role in the provision of electricity. Section 153 of the Constitution places the responsibility on municipalities to ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner for economic and social support. There are three main east to west power lines cutting through the Municipality. The first and southern-most, generally in line with the N1 Freeway, is cutting across the N1 Freeway. The second one, north of the N1 Freeway is running parallel to the N1 Freeway, cutting across to Merweville which is outside of the study area. There is also a north-south running power line connecting these two sets of lines into Laingsburg and then south towards Rouxpos.

The table below indicates the different service delivery level standards for electricity in the areas in which

# 113

	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19					
Description	Actual	Actual	Actual					
House	<u>hold</u>							
<u>Electricity:</u> (above m	<u>Electricity:</u> (above minimum level)							
Electricity (at least minimum service level)	894	894	894					
	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19					
Description	Actual	Actual	Actual					
Electricity - prepaid (minimum service level)	212	212	212					
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total	837	632	632					
Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage	100%	100%	100%					
<u>Energy:</u> (below r	ninimum level)							
Electricity (< minimum service level)	-	-	-					
Electricity - prepaid (< min. service level)	-	-	-					
Other energy sources	-	-	-					
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total	-	-	-					
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage	0%	0%	0%					
Total number of households	837	837	837					

Table 6.50: Electricity service delivery levels (Source: LLM Annual Report 2018/19)

## Electricity services per consumer/billing unit declined by 47 units between 2007 and 2017 at an average annual rate of 0.3 per cent.

Non-financial Census of municipalities	2007	2017	Change 2007 - 2017	Average annual change 2007 - 2017
Domestic and non-domestic electricity services per consumer/billing unit	1 482	1 435	-47	-0.3%
Indigent support for electricity services	736	691	-45	-0,6%

Table6.51: Electricity Service Delivery Levels (Source: LSEP 2018)

The following issues were identified through public participation:

- Availability of Eskom Electricity for Göldnerville and Matjiesfontein Customers
- Development of an Eskom Maintenance programme in partnership with Municipality
- Solar energy is the appropriate alternative, which could be used locally.
- Wind energy can also work within certain areas within Laingsburg

• Bio-Gas is the best alternative energy and can work within the Karoo and it doesn't need water to grow.

#### 6.7.6 **Telecommunications**

The telecommunication plan for the Municipality reflects the existing pattern of infrastructure shows that the central east-west band of the Municipality has generally good access for both MTN and Vodacom networks. The Vodacom network increases its scope in the southern areas down to the Anysberg Nature Reserve whereas the MTN increases its coverage northward between Koringplaas, Vleiland and Merweville.

Both networks do not cover the Koringplaas (Moordenaars Karoo). This is particularly concerning as people in those areas would not have access to cellular phone networks. The

National fibre-optic broadband cable has been laid up the N1. This has the advantage of being able to bring very high levels of interconnectivity to settlements along the N1 like Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg.

#### 6.7.7 Stormwater

With the memories of the 1981 flood still fresh in people's minds stormwater management is an important concern in Laingsburg. The current stormwater system for Laingsburg is not sufficient to control the runoff from major storms, and therefore, it requires upgrading and maintenance on a regular basis.

Matjiesfontein has no stormwater management system and has problems with stormwater overflow during the rainfall season. The IDP must make provision for a stormwater overflow system in Matjiesfontein.

A comprehensive Laingsburg Stormwater Master Plan was completed in 2010 which included estimates for the 1:2 year, 1:5 year, 1:50 and 1:100 year stormwater events. The latter seems to be similar to the 1:150 year flood and it is noted that particular significance under this 1:100 year flood conditions is the potential for flooding along the main drainage canal through Goldnerville and Oudorp. An accurate flood line determination is required in this regard.

With regard to the 1:50 year storm a number of potential flooding areas have been identified, namely, Acacia Park behind and adjacent to Acacia School, Fabriek Street, Voortrekker Street and Shell Garage.

The Master Plan identifies a number of projects which requires detailed surveys and assessments to address the abovementioned potential flooding areas as well as the determination of the 1:100 year flood

line.

#### 6.7.8 Housing

The Western Cape Department of Human Settlements (WCDoHS) developed and approved a set of guidelines to assist municipalities to adopt a holistic approach in developing Human Settlements Plans (HSPs) in 2019. The focus has shifted towards creating human settlements that are economically, environmental and financially sustainable for the municipality and affordable for residents.

Laingsburg Municipality has a current Human Settlements Plan (HSP) dated 2012-17. There are however, certain important issues not covered in the plan, for example inadequate provision for farmworkers, Gap Housing and acquisition of land. The Municipality recognises that human settlement plans have a key role to play in the effort to address poverty, improve employment, improve socio-economic conditions and create sustainable communities. This reviewing Laingsburg outdated HSP the municipality intents to improve existing and creating new settlement conditions that promote both socio and economic conditions.

Housing development in Laingsburg is important for the following reasons;

- Lack of housing have an impact on hiring prospects, a bigger investment in development could attract more skill workers to the municipality.
- Improving quality of life and investment.
- Builds the Economy. Housing development can help in many ways. There is not only the immediate effects such as building material revenue that are pumped into town, but also lasting effects such as additional property tax.
- This plan will give planning and implementation guidance to various stakeholders that have a role to play in Laingsburg Municipality's goal of achieving integrated, sustainable and resilient human settlements.

TOWN	BACKYARDS (WCHDDB ON 1 FEBRUARY 2021)	BACKYARDERS MUNICIPAL SURVEY CONDUCTED IN APRIL 2021
LAINGSBURG	29	145
MATJIESFONTEIN	6	29
TOTAL	35	174

#### **Backyard Dwellers**

Backyard dwellings have become a dominant, fast growing type of informal rental in Laingsburg. In Laingsburg different forms of rental housing emerged in response to the needs and circumstance of the people.

The rising demand for backyard dwelling is based on a number of factors;

- Household overcrowding (young families and adults seeking accommodation)
- Housing shortage
- The rising demand for housing has encouraged enterprising homeowners to subdivide their properties to generate some income.
- However, poor property owners out of sheer necessity subdivide their properties to generate income for basic household needs. The renting is part of their hand to mouth survival strategy
- Most tenants built their own shelter, so they are really renting only the space.

The table below is an extract from the Housing Department Database (WCHDDB February 2021)

		HOUSING	YEARS ON THE DATABASE		
TOWN	HOUSING DEMAND	DEMAND %	3 - 9	MORE THAN	LESS THAN
		DEIMAIND /0	YEARS	10 YEARS	3 YEARS
LAINGSBURG	721	91,15	173	290	258
MATJIESFONTEIN	68	8,60	7	33	28
OTHER/RURAL	2	0,25	1	0	1
TOTAL	791	100,00	181	323	287

The table above shows that the biggest backlog for housing is in Laingsburg.

Housing Challenges:

- Municipal Reliance on Grants
- Limited revenue raising capacity
- Outstanding Rate and services
- Municipal Rentals are occupied rent free
- Demand for skill workers (a large portion of economically active population are unskilled best employment prospects are in agriculture and service industries eg. Tourism)

#### 6.7.9 Cemeteries

Laingsburg town has four cemeteries and Matjiesfontein has one. These cemeteries are deemed as adequate to meet the needs of the Municipality. The Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein cemeteries both needs upgrades as the municipality is heading for a shortfall on land.

Laingsburg town cemeteries are distinctively landscaped with the main roadways lined with Cyprus trees. A need was identified that the old cemeteries in Göldnerville, Bo Dorp and Nuwe Dorp must be renovated because it is dilapidated and the some areas has not been restored after the devastating flood in 1981. A similar, strong approach to landscaping should be extended to the CBD and other parts of town. Matjiesfontein Graveyard needs to be registered and renovated.

#### 6.7.10 Sports Facilities

Sports facilities are located in Matjiesfontein, Laingsburg and Vleiland. These facilities need to be maintained, upgraded and a need for further expansion is needed for more sport codes for example;

- Netball in Vleiland
- Cricket Pitches for Vleiland, Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein
- More netball courts for Laingsburg
- Squash Wall for Laingsburg
- Public Swimming Pools in Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein

Assistance for the maintenance of school facilities was also identified during public participation. Playgrounds within Ou Dorp and Acacia Park within the Laingsburg area was also raised because there is no playground for children in this area.

## Strategy

7

Strategic Planning is central to the long term sustainable management of a municipality. The municipality, therefore, has to compile a 5-year IDP as part of an integrated system of planning and delivery, which serves as a framework for all development activities within the municipal area and which accordingly informs the annual budget of the municipality; the budgets and investment programmes of all sector departments (national and provincial) which implement projects or provide services within the municipality; the business plans of the municipality; land-use management decisions; economic promotion measures; the municipality's organisational set-up and management systems; and the monitoring and performance management system.

Consequently, the municipality *is the major arena of development planning*. It is at this level of government where people's needs and priorities and local conditions have to be linked, with national guidelines and sectoral considerations, to specific projects and programmes. The Laingsburg Municipality therefore developed a 5-year strategic plan.

## **Laingsburg Vision**

A destination of choice where people comes first 'n Bestemming van keuse waar mense eerste kom"

## **Laingsburg Mission**

To function as a community-focused and sustainable municipality by:

- Rendering effective basic services
- Promoting local economic development
- Consulting communities in the processes of Council
- Creating a safe social environment where people can thrive

## Laingsburg Values

Our leadership and employees will ascribe to and promote the following six values:

Transparency	Accessibility
Accountability	Responsiveness
Excellence	Integrity

## 7.1 SWOT Analysis

The strategic session was held with Council and senior management where the major challenges the municipality was facing were identifies. There was strong agreement amongst all that poverty and its attendant conditions pose the greatest external threat to the municipality and the shortage of staff and its effects on the ability of the municipality to fulfil its constitutional mandate pose the greatest internal threat. The municipality conducted this analysis to identify the municipal competitive advantages which can be used to change the local landscape and use the municipal strengths and opportunities to minimise the impacts and effects of the municipal weaknesses and threats.

Peo ple

Building

Strenghts

## **STRENGTH**

- Stability
- Excellent location: Road & Rail
- Service Delivery driven
- Good infrastructure in place
- Nice clean town
- Rich in geological phenomena
- Open spaces/Solar/Climate
- Peoples Focused Municipality
- Strong administration with professional assertiveness
- Good public participatory & ward committee system
- No external loans
- Established tourism office
- Thusong Service Centre
- Special historical features

## **OPPORTUNITIES**

- Establishment of economic development infrastructure
- Development of light industrial area
- Value-adding to primary products
- Employment creation
- Adventure and eco-tourism also linked to sport
- Mineral mining
- Green Energy
   Gap housing
- Karoo meat (Laingsburg Karoo Lamb)
- Karoo Festival
- Training and Skills Development
- Establishment of organised Business sector
- Revenue assessment

## **WEAKNESSES**

- Small Income basis
- Small Business Sector
- Organisational structure
- Inter-departmental cooperation
- Silo's Culture (defaulting strategic cohesion)
- Working Relationships

## **THREATS**

- Buffels river flooding
- Outdated municipal infrastructure
- N1 Hazmat/ Chemical substance pollution
- Drought
- Ground water availability
- Grant dependency
- Skills Shortage
- Personal shortage
- EIA's restrict development (costs and time)
- Early School leavers & Low literacy levels
- Distances to bigger town
- Degrading gravel roads
- Retaining scares skills
- Economic leak (Local business support)

12

- Illegal trade
- High water losses

Figure 7.1 SWOT Analysis

This analysis illustrate that the municipality has the ability to bring about change and develop the municipality and bring about change. Considering at this, the municipal vision is achievable. The municipality however must built on the strengths and utilise the opportunities and plan effectively on how and when what will be implemented.

The municipality can also through effective planning manage the threats in a manner that the identified threats can be reduced and turned around by means of a turn-around strategy.

## 7.2 Strategic focus areas and priorities

The following objectives, priorities, strategies and outcomes have been developed to address the challenges identified during the IDP development process. The strategic objectives agreed are linked to service areas and departmental objectives. The information will be used in the IDP implementation plan (*i*MAP) to finalise the predetermined objectives (PDO) and align it with the municipal budget and performance system.

Strategic Objective 1	Developing a safe, clean, healthy and sustainable environment for Communities			
Outcome	Pleasant li	ving envir	ving environment Safe roads in the municipal area Available Sport facilities Conserved	
	Environment			
	Clean and	Health aw	vare Town	
Key Performance Indicators	Implemen	t IDP appr	oved greening and cleaning initiatives	
	Host publi	c safety co	ommunity awareness days as per the programed approved in the IDP	
	Participate	e in the pr	ovincial traffic departments public safe initiatives as approved in the IDP	
Municipal Function	Technical	Services, S	trategic Services Administration	
Alignment with District, Natio	nal and Prov	vincial Stro	itegies	
Sphere Ref Description		Description		
National KPA		NKPA	Basic Service Delivery	
National Outcome		NO	All people in south Africa protected and feel safe	
National Development Plan (2	030)	NDP	Building safer communities	
Provincial Strategic Plan		SG4	Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment	
Provincial Strategic Objective		PSO	Sustain ecological and agricultural resource-based	
			Improve Climate Change Response	
District Strategic Objective		CKDM	SG 1: Promote Safe, Healthy and Socially stable communities through the provision	
		IDP	of a sustainable environmental health service	
			SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve	
			public safety in the region	

Table 7.1: Municipal PDO 1

Strategic			
Objective 2	Promote local economic development		
Outcome	Enhanced job creation		
Кеу	Assist businesses with business and CIDB registration		
Performance	Host Events	s as identified in the IDP in support of LED within the Municipal Area Create job	
Indicators	opportuniti	ies through EPWP and infrastructure projects	
Municipal	Strategic Se	ervices	
Function	Community	/ Services	
	Infrastructu	ure Services	
Alignment with Natio	onal and Pro	ovincial Strategies	
Sphere	Ref	Description	
National KPA	NKPA	Local Economic Development	
National Outcome	NO	Decent employment through inclusive economic growth	
National	NDP	An economy that will creates more jobs	
Development Plan		Inclusive rural economy	
(2030)			
Provincial	SG1	Creating opportunities for growth and jobs	
Strategic Plan			
(2040)			
Provincial	SGO	Project Khulisa ("to grow")	
Strategic		Renewables	
Objective		• Tourism	
		• Oil & Gas	
		• BPO	
		• Film	
		Agri-processing	
District Strategic	CKDM		
Objectives	IDP	G7: Promote regional economic development, tourism and growth opportunities	

Table 7.2: Municipal PDO 2

Strategic Objective 3		Improve the living environment of all people in Laingsburg		
Outcome		values of the community, increased Skills levels, illiteracy reduced Decrease, n Crime		
		es, Reduction in Teenage Pregnancies Reduction in new HIV/Aids infections Reduction		
	-	pendencies Increased Housing Opportunities		
		Enhance access to Free Basic Services		
Кеу	Provide financial	assistance to council approved tertiary students		
Performance	Provide public saf	ety awareness days as per the programed approved in the IDP		
Indicators	Participate in the provincial traffic departments Public Safety initiatives as approved in the IDP 80% of			
	approved capital	pudget spent		
	Provide free basic	services to indigent households (Water, electricity, sanitation and refuse		
	Removal)			
Municipal	Strategic Services	Financial Services Technical Services & Public Safety		
Function				
		Alignment with National and Provincial Strategies		
Sphere	Ref	Description		
National KPA		Basic Service Delivery		
	NKPA			
National Outcome	NO	Increasing social cohesion		
National Developmer	nt NDP	Social Protection		
Plan (2030)				
Provincial Strategic PSG1 PSG3		33 Improve Education outcomes and opportunities for youth development		
Plan	PSG4	Increase wellness, safety and tackle social ills		
(2040)		Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment		
Provincial	PSO's	Improve the Levels of language and math's		
Strategic		Increase the number and quality of passes in the NSC		
Objective		Increase the quality of education provision in poorer		
		communities Provide more social and economic opportunities		
		for our youth		
		Improve family support to children and youth and facilitate development		
		Healthy Communities, Families, youth and children		
		Create better living conditions for households especially low income and poor		
		households		
		Sustainable and integrated Ural and rural settlements		
District Strategic	CKDM IDP	SG 1: Promote Safe, Healthy and Socially stable communities through the provision of		
Objective CKDM IDP		a sustainable environmental health service		
Objective				
		SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities		
		SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public safety		

Strategic Objective 4		Provision of Infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business		
Outcome	Maintai	Maintained municipal roads Improved waste		
	manage	ement Improved provision for storm water		
	Enhance	ed service delivery Improved electricity		
	service	Improved sanitation service Improved water		
	provisio	provision		
	Improve	ed Integrated Transport		
Key Performance	80% of	approved capital budget spend		
Indicators		r of formal residential properties connected to the municipal services (Water, electricity,		
malcators		on and refuse removal		
Municipal Function	Infrastr	ucture Services		
	Finance	Finance and Corporate Services		
Alignment with National and	Provincial St	ovincial Strategies		
Sphere	Ref	Description		
National KPA	NKPA	Basic Service Delivery		
National Outcome	NO	An effective, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network		
National Development	NDP	Improved infrastructure Economic		
Plan (2030)		Infrastructure		
Provincial Strategic	PSG 4	Sustainable and integrated urban and rural settlements Create better living		
Plan (2040)	PSG 5	conditions for households especially low income and poor households		
		Sustain ecological and agricultural resource-base		
Provincial Strategic	PSO	Integrating service delivery for maximum impact Increasing access to safe		
Objective		and efficient transport		
District Strategic	CKDM	SG 3: Improve and maintain district roads and promote safe road transport		
Objective	IDP	SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and		
		se in revent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and		

Table 7.4: Municipal PDO 4

Strategic	To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional services		
Objective <b>5</b>	to its clientele guided by municipal values		
Outcome	Less than 10 % va	cancies at any time	
	Sound HR practices		
	Skilled workforce		
	Reaching of employment equity targets		
Кеу	Limit vacancy rate	e to less than 10% of budgeted posts 1% of	
Performance	the operating bud	lget spent on training	
Indicators	Develop a Risk Ba	sed Audit Plan and summit it to the audit committee for consideration	
	Employ people fro	om the employment equity target groups in the three highest levels of management	
	in compliance wit	h the municipal approved employment equity plan	
	Achieve a unquali	fied audit opinion	
Municipal	Finance and Corpo	orate Services	
Function			
Alignment with Natio	onal and Provincia	l Strategies	
Sphere	Ref	Description	
National KPA	NKPA	Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development	
National Outcome	NO	A skilled and capable workforce to support inclusive growth	
National	NDP	Improving the quality of education, training and innovation	
Development Plan		Reforming the public service	
(2030)			
Provincial	PSG3	Increase wellness, safety and tackle social ills	
Strategic Plan (2040)	PSG5		
		Embedded good governance and integrated service delivery through partnerships and	
		spatial alignment	
Provincial	PSO	Healthy Workforce	
Strategic		Enhance Governance	
Objective		Inclusive Society	
		Integrated Management	
District Strategic	CKDM IDP	SG 2: Build a well capacitated workforce, skilled youth and communities SG 5:	
Objective		Deliver a sound and effective administrative and financial to achieve	
		sustainability and viability in the region.	

Table 7.5: Municipal PDO 5

Strategic	To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	
Objective 6		
Outcome	Financial Viability	
	Clean Audit Report	
Кеу	Financial viability me	easured in terms of the municipality's ability to meet its service debt obligations
Performance	Financial viability as	
Indicators		easured in terms of the outstanding service debtors
		easured in terms of the available cash to cover fixed operating expenditure Achieve a
	debtors payment %	01 00%
	Finance	
Municipal	Finance	
Function		
Alignment with Nat	ional, Provincial and L	District Strategies
Sphere	Ref Description	
National KPA         NKPA         Munic		Municipal Financial Viability and Management
National Outcome	NO	A responsive and, accountable, effective and efficient local government system
National Developme	ent NDP	Transforming Human Settlements
Plan (2030)	INDP	
Provincial Developn	nent PSG5	Embedded good governance and integrated service delivery through partnerships
Plan		and spatial alignment
(2040)		
Provincial PSO		Integrated Management
Strategic		Enhanced Governance
Objective		
District Strategic	CKDM IDP	
Objective		SG 5: Deliver a sound and effective administrative and financial to achieve
		sustainability and viability in the region.

Table 6.6: Municipal PDO 6

Strategic			
Objective 7	Effective Main	tenance and management of municipal assets and natural resources	
Outcome	Climate Change a	daptation Water	
	Conservation Biod	liversity	
	Conservation Imp	roved Disaster	
	Management Her	itage	
	Conservation Mar	agement of	
	Energy		
	Improved Land m	anagement	
Кеу	70% of the approv	ved maintenance budget spent	
Performance	Limit the % of ele	ctricity unaccounted for to less than 20%	
Indicators	Maintain the qual	lity of waste water discharge as per SANS 241-2006 Limit	
	the % of water un	accounted for to less than 40%	
	Maintain the wate	er quality as per the SANA 241-1:2001 criteria	
Municipal	Strategic Services	S	
Function	Technical Services	S	
	Financial Services	S	
	Administration		
	Community Servio	ces	
Alignment with Natio	onal, Provincial & I	District Strategies	
Sphere	Ref	Description	
National KPA	NKPA	Basic Service Delivery	
National Outcome	NO	All people in south Africa protected and feel safe	
National	NDP	Environmental Sustainability and resilience	
Development Plan			
(2030)			
Provincial	PSG4	Enable a resilient, sustainable, quality and inclusive living environment Embedded	
Strategic Plan	PSG5	good governance and integrated service delivery through	
(2040)		partnerships and spatial alignment	
Provincial	PSO	Sustainable ecological and agricultural resource-based	
Strategic		Improved Climate Change Response	
Objective		Improve Better living conditions for Households, especially low income and poor	
		households	
		Sustainable and Integrated urban and rural settlements Integrated	
		Management	
		Inclusive society	
District Strategic	CKDM IDP	SG 4: Prevent and minimise the impact of possible disasters and improve public	
Objective		safety in the region	
• Table 6.7: Munici			

Table 6.7: Municipal PDO 7

## 8 Action Planning

This chapter identifies the key actions for each of the seven Strategic Objectives as the municipality wants to ensure that each objective is implemented during the 2017 – 2022 IDP period. The figure below illustrates the process followed to confirm alignment and those actions are developed for each objective.



Figure 8.1 IDP & Budget Alignment

## 8.1 Project Prioritization

The municipality identified the need for a project prioritisation model and implemented a model that can be summarised as follows:

- Project prioritisation is required in order to guide project implementation and the allocation of funding to each project. The project prioritisation model is applied to projects and programmes funded from municipality's own funding.
- Projects funded by external service providers (e.g. MIG) do not require prioritisation by the Laingsburg Municipality for funding and implementation.

		Score
Criteria	Description	(yes = 1, No =0)
Legal Requirement	Is the project legally required by legislation?	
Contractually committed	Has the project already commenced and were appointments	
	done to date	
Safety / Basic Need	Will the postponement of the project create a safety risk to the	
	community and is the project addressing a basic need	
Maintenance Cost	Will the maintenance cost for the project be affordable in the future	
Total		

Table 8.1: Project prioritization model

Projects identified by the Community, Ward Committees and IDP Representative Forum can't always be

executed by the municipality on its own and the municipality embarked on innovative ways to deliver on the greatest needs of the community and wishes to attract investors and partners in development to help the municipality to develop the municipality.

## 8.2 Community Priorities

The municipality embarked on a community ward based planning on ward level which was captured in ward plans. The ward plan prioritised projects as well as projects identified in the IDP Representation Forum where various structures including the Laingsburg Business Chamber, Laingsburg Small Business Association (LSBA), Ward Committees, NGO's, CBO'S, community leaders and even sector department are partaking were captured. Internal departments within the municipality including council identified projects which should be captured within the municipal IDP for planning purposes.

The community was consulted during the process as the IDP Time Schedule and ward community system. The following table outlines dates and numbers.

It should be noted due to the National Lockdown caused by the COVID 19 pandemic outbreak ward committee meetings were not held as planned

No.	Type of Meeting	Date	Venue	Attendance
1	IDP REP Forum	17-Sept-20	EE Centre	33
2	IDP REP Forum	19-Nov-20	EE Centre	19
3	IDP REP Forum	25-Feb-21	EE Centre	24
Ward 1				
4	Ward Committee Meeting	31-Aug-20	Ward Councillor Office	8
5	Ward Committee Meeting	8 – Sep- 20	Ward Councillor Office	13
6	Ward Committee Meeting	6 – Oct - 20	Ward Councillor Office	14
7	Ward Committee Meeting	3– Nov- 20	Bergsig Hall	14
8	Ward Committee Meeting	14 – Dec - 20	Ward Councillor Office	10
9	Ward Committee Meeting	20 -Jan-21	Ward Councillor Office	10
10	Ward Committee Meeting	15 – Feb-21	Ward Councillor Office	10

	Final Integrated Dev	/elopment Plan 4	<sup>th</sup> Review	
11	Ward Committee Meeting	2-Mar-21	Ward Councillor Office	13
12	Ward Committee Meeting	6 April 21	Ward Councillor Office	9
13	Ward Committee Meeting	5 May 21	Ward Councilor	14
Ward 2				
14	Ward Committee Meeting	1 – Sep- 20	Auditorium	12
15	Ward Committee Meeting	8 -Oct -20	Auditorium	9
16	Ward Committee Meeting	5 – Nov - 20	Auditorium	12
17	Ward Committee Meeting	03-Dec-20	Auditorium	8
18	Ward Committee Meeting	15- Feb - 21	Auditorium	8
19	Ward Committee Meeting	11- Mar-2021	Auditorium	9
20	Ward Committee Meeting	15 April -21	Auditorium	9
21	Ward Committee Meeting	6 May -21	EE Centre	10
Ward 3				
17	Ward Committee Meeting	7 – Sep- 20	Auditorium	12
18	Ward Committee Meeting	5– Oct - 20	Auditorium	11
19	Ward Committee Meeting	2 – Nov- 20	Auditorium	13
20	Ward Committee Meeting	7-Dec-20	Auditorium	14
21	Ward Committee Meeting	27-Jan-21	Auditorium	13
22	Ward Committee Meeting	15-Feb-21	Auditorium	15
23	Ward Committee Meeting	24 – Mar- 21	Auditorium	11
24	Ward Committee Meeting	12- Apr- 21	Auditorium	10
25	-	-		
	Ward Committee Meeting	10- May - 21	Auditorium	12
Ward 4 26	Ward Committee Meeting	7-Sep-20	Ward Office	11

27	Ward Committee Meeting	20-Oct-20	Ward Office	13
28	Ward Committee Meeting	17-Nov-20	Ward Office	9
29	Ward Committee Meeting	3-Dec-20	Ward Office	14
30	Ward Committee Meeting	18-Jan-21	Ward Office	12
31		17– Feb - 21	Ward Office	11
51	Ward Committee Meeting	17- Feb - 21	Ward Office	
	Ward Committee Meeting	17 – Mar – 21	Ward Office	12

Table 8.2 IDP Consulting Report

The following table highlight the needs as identified through all structures and platforms which are unfunded;

	Wyk 1	Wyk 2
1) 2) 3) 4) 5) 6) 7) 8)	Pyplyn vanaf riooldamme (Sportvelde) Befondsing vir Dappermuis (Wykskomitee) Beligting van hele Wyk en Varkhokke Solar Panels Sport Ontwikkeling Opgradering van huidige speelpark Draadspan Projek (N1) Opgradering van Rioolstelsel	Matjiesfontein         1.       Toilette aansluit Ou Huise         2.       Erwe         3.       Ou Huise opgradeer         4.       Strate en Stormwater         5.       Plafonne Huise         6.       Sportveld Opgradeer         7.       Ontspannings terrein         8.       Gimnasium         9.       Spoedwalle         10.       Sypaadjies         11.       Struktuur vir huidige kleuterskool         12.       Kliniek         13.       Begraafplaas opgradeer – Water en bome         14.       Openbare vervoer          Landelike Gebied         1.       Toilette met Septiese tenke (VIP)         2.       Paaie Opgradeer en onderhoud         3.       Sonkrag Plaaswerker huise         4.       Son Warmwater stelsels         5.       Rekenaar Fasiliteit – Vleiland         6.       Kleuterskool – Vleiland
	Wyk 3	Wyk 4
1)	Beligting van hele Wyke	1) Acacia Park Gemeenskapsaal
2)	Opgradeer van Storm water (Breekwater &	2) Speelpark (Acacia Park)
	Mure)	3) Jeug Ontwikkeling
3)	Mandela Park Opgradering	4) Karoolelies en Gestremdes (Plek / Fasiliteit)
4)	Jeug Ontwikkeling	5) Stormwater Opgradering
5)	Speelpark (Baraks)	6) Nood Uitgang (Göldnerville / Acacia Park) / Additional
6)	Solar Heaters	7) Behuising
7)	Opgradeer van JJ Ellis	8) Solar Heaters
		9) Verskuiwing van Toiletgeriewe (Ou Skema Huise)
		10) Begrafplaas Projek

## 132

## 9 Sector Planning

## 9.1 Internal Sector Plans

This section outlines the status of Plans and Policies within the municipality. The blue indicates approved, the green indicates in process, the orange indicates that it was done in collaboration with Central Karoo District Municipality and the red indicates that it needs to be developed.



LLM Communication Strategy

Diagram 8.1: Municipal Sector Plans

## Final Integrated Development Plan 4<sup>th</sup> Review External Sector Plans and Programs

## 9.2

Strategic Obi	ective: To	increase wellness in t	he province					
Strategic Obj	ective. 10			Budget(Thousands)				
Project Programm	ne Name	Infrastructure Type	Nature of Investment	2021/22 MTEF	2022/223 MTEF	2023/24	TOTAL 3 Yea	
aingsburg Clinic- nd Additions	HT- Upgrade	Health Technology	Non- Infrastructure	429	806	0	1235	
aingsburg Ambu IT- Upgrade and Alpha)		Health Technology	Non- Infrastructure	300	0	0	300	
aingsburg Clinic- Ipgrade and Add		PHC-Clinic	Upgrades and Additions	100	0	0	100	
aingsburg Ambu pgrade and Add			Upgrades and Additions	867	1066	49	1982	
epartment o								
		<u> </u>	e in which you can live, work, lear		1			
roject Name	Project / Pr			Municipal Area	Year			
nitiatives	Neighbourh and Religior Developme	ood watch, Chrysalis Youth E	t Code, Community Safety Kiosk, Development Programme, Youth Policing Needs Priorities, Youth ngsburg Local Library	Whole District including Laingsburg	2017 - 2022			
	Basket Sevio	ces		Laingsburg	<b>2020/202</b> 47 000	1 2021/20 48 000	<b>22 2022/202</b>	
	Safety Proje	ects (Ward based)	Laingsburg (All Ward)	0	400 000	0		
Department o	of Social De	velopment						
trategic Objectiv	e: Social Welf	fare Services and Community	y Development					
Project Name		Project / Programme		Municipal Area		Year		
Velfare Organisa	tions	Older Persons, ECD, Child	ren	Laingsburg		2017 - 2	2022	
Others		Building Resilient Familie Substance Abuse, Crime I						
Department o	of Culture a							
trategic Objectiv	e: To facilitat	e the development, preserva	ation and promotion of arts and c	ulture in the Western Ca	pe			
Project Name		Project / Programme		Municipal Area		Year		
Conditional Grant	ts	MRF (Library)		Laingsburg		2017 - 2	2022	
AOD Centres		Acacia PS & Laingsburg	HS	Laingsburg			2017 - 2022	
Arts and Culture		Funding and Transfers		District			2022	
rts and Culture		Initiation Programme		District		2017 - 2	2022	
ports Developm		Club Development		Laingsburg		2017 - 2	2022	
Department o		re ties for growth development	in rural areas					
Project Name		ogramme		Municipal Area		Year		
/arious Programr		stainable Resource Managem	District		2017 - 2022			
-	Far	mer Support & Developmen	t	District	2017 - 2	2017 - 2022		
	Vet	terinary Services		District		2017 - 2	2017 - 2022	
	Teo	chnology Research and Devel	opment	District		2017 - 2	2017 - 2022	
		ricultural Economic Services	District			2017 - 2022		
		uctural Agricultural Educatio	District			2017 - 2022		
Rural Development Coordination		District		2017 - 2	2017 - 2022			
Others	Agı	ri-processing & Skills Develop	Laingsburg 2017 - 2022					
Depart of Hun								
		d Approve specific Housing F		Maar			unities.	
Project Name		oject / Programme 9 Housing units	Municipal Area Ward 4	Year Completed		Opport 157	unities	
Söldnerville (163)		a housing units	walu 4	completed		121		
Göldnerville (163)		0						

## Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

Department of Environmental and De	evelopment Plan	ning					
trategic Objective: to provide leadership an	d innovation in envir	ronmental man	agement and In	tegrated D	evelopment Planning		
Programme			-	et Area		Year	
Air Quality Management Plan						Completed	
ntegrated Waste Management Plan, Worksh	hop & Support		LLM			On-going	
ntegrated Pollutant and Waste Information				/unicipaliti	es	On-going	
Aonitor Waste Management Facilities for Co	•			/unicipaliti			
-	omphance			•		On-going	
andfill operator Training				All Municipalities		On-going	
Aethane Gas Determination Project				/lunicipaliti		On-going	
Determination of the Municipal Integrated V	Vaste Infrastructure		All I	/lunicipaliti	es	On-going	
PLUMA /LUPA / Change Management Strat	egy		All I	/lunicipaliti	es	On-going	
Department of Education							
trategic Objective: Improved literacy and nu	umeracy in primary s	chools & Impro	ved number an	d quality of	f passes in the NSC		
roject Name	Project / Prog			ipal Area	Year		
ersonnel Budget	Salaries and a	1 7		1, 2, 3 & 4			
onditional Grants	Including Infra			1,2,3 & 4	2017 - 2022		
lorms and Standards allocations	Public ordinar	,		1,2,3 & 4	2017 - 2022		
earner Transport Schemes	Scholar Trans		Ward		2017 - 2022		
ubsidies		Independent Schools		Wards 1,2,3 & 4 2017 - 2022			
ubsidies		Special Education Needs		1,2,3 & 4	2017 - 2022		
ubsidies	Gr R Learners			s 1,2,3 & 4 2017 - 2022			
nfrastructure	Conditional G	rants	Wards	1,2,3 & 4	2017 - 2022		
Department of Transport and Publi trategic Objective: Creation of a highly effec	ctive department	1					
roject Name		Municipality Municipal Ar				Budget	
efurbishment and rehabilitation	District				2017/18 – 2019/20	R 35 500 000.00	
roperty	LLM		) Accounts)		2017/18 - 2019/20		
PWP Department of Environmental Affai trategic Objective: Pro-actively plan, manag contribute to sustainable development, livel nd employment creation.	e and prevention of	pollution and e		egradation		R 2 196 000	
Project Name	Municipality		Municipal Area	1	Year	Budget	
obs on Waste	LLM		Whole Area		2016/17	Completed	
aingsburg Integrated Waste Management acility	LLM		Ward 1 ( Whol	e Area)	Finalisation Stage	R 10 500 000.00	
xpansion of Laingsburg Landfilsite	LLM		Whole Area		2019/2020	R 15 000 000.00	
eclamation plant	LLM		Whole Area		2019/2020	R 12 000 000.00	
oggeveld Windfarm					2019/2020 -		
oetwater / Karusha Windfarm					2019/2020 -		
uture new Windfarm Projects Brandvalley Wind Farm – 140MW (Laingsburg and Witzenberg LM). Karrebosch Wind Farm – 140MW (Laingsburg and Karoo Hoogland LM). Rietkloof Wind Farm – 140MW (Laingsburg LM). Witberg Wind Farm – 120MW (Laingsburg	7						
<ul> <li>www.uberg.www.raitin = TZOIMIAA (raitibabilita</li> </ul>	5		1		1	1	

Final Integrated Development Plan 4 <sup>th</sup> Review								
Road Upgrade & Improvement Facilities	Anysberg Nature Reserve	Wards 1,2,3 & 4	2017/18/19/20	Completed				
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform								
Strategic Objective: Rural Development &								
Project Name	Municipality	Municipal Area	Year	Budget				
Matjiesfontein Water Reservoir	LLM	Matjiesfontein	Completed	R 1 236 000.00				
Early Childhood Development Centre	LLM	Matjiesfontein	Implementation long	R 650 000.00				

Table 8.1: Municipal Sector Plans

## 9.3 Provincial Strategic Plan, 2019-2024

The Western Cape Government has identified the following strategic goals in its Provincial Strategic

Plan (Figure 2.3.7.1):



## VISION-INSPIRED PRIORITY 1: SAFE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITIES by:

- Enhanced capacity and effectiveness of policing and law enforcement
- Strengthened youth-at-risk referral pathways and child- and family-centred initiatives to reduce violence
- Increased social cohesion and safety of public spaces
- •

## VISION-INSPIRED PRIORITY 2: GROWTH AND JOBS by:

- Increasing investment
- Building and maintaining infrastructure
- Growing the economy through export growth
- Creating opportunities for job creation through skills development
- Creating an enabling environment for economic growth through resource resilience

## VISION-INSPIRED PRIORITY 3: EMPOWERING PEOPLE by:

- Increasing Access to Quality Early Childhood Development Initiatives
- Ensuring evidence-based care and services are provided to vulnerable Families
- Implementing the Youth in Service programme and ensuring youth programme quality across the WCG
- Effectively identifying youth at risk and placing them in targeted programmes
- Expanding and entrenching After School Programmes
- Improving wellness through prevention and healthy lifestyles programmes
- Improve health systems and infrastructure reform

## VISION-INSPIRED PRIORITY 4: MOBILITY AND SPATIAL TRANSFORMATION by:

- Better linkages between places through public transport and mobility systems that work together
- Creating spatially and economically vibrant growth points
- More opportunities for people to live in better locations
- Improving the places where people live

#### VISION-INSPIRED PRIORITY 5: INNOVATION AND CULTURE by:

• Create capacitated leaders to sustain the desired culture through leadership maturity development using a value-based leadership development programme

- Enable sustained vision clarity and passion for the purpose of the WCG through leader-led and vision-inspired engagement processes
- Align the mindsets, competencies of WCG employees and WCG work practices to enable collaboration, ongoing learning, and adaptation at inter-departmental and intergovern-mental levels
- Develop and implement an employee value proposition to affirm the WCG as an employer of choice
- Develop an integrated employee engagement, organisational culture, and citizen satisfaction index to facilitate alignment between the WCG service commitment and the citizen/user experience
- Innovation for impact
- Implemented Integrated Work Plan and annual Integrated Implementation Plan through the JDA
- Citizen Empowerment
- Strengthening and maintaining governance and accountability

## 9.4 OneCape 2040 Vision

The PSP is guided by the longer-term OneCape 2040 vision which was adopted by the Western Cape Government and other key institutions in the Province in 2013. OneCape 2040 envisages a transition towards a more inclusive and resilient economic future for the Western Cape region. It sets a common direction to guide planning, action and accountability. To this end, it identifies six transitions: Educating Cape; Enterprising Cape; Green Cape; Connecting Cape; Living Cape; and Leading Cape, as set out in figure 8.2 below.

Educating Cape	- Knowledge Transition
Enterprising Cape	- Economic Access Transition
Green Cape	- Ecological Transition
Connecting Cape	- Cultural Transition
Living Cape	- Settlement Transition - to high opportunity working & living environments
Leading Cape	- Institutional Transition

Figure 9.2 OneCape 2040 Vision (PSP, 2014/19)

The department identified the Joint Planning Initiative (JPI), where the whole of the Western Cape government get together and plan as a collective and identified game changes that will have catalytic effects on the Western Cape as a whole and bring about change.

Laingsburg Municipality identified game changes that will assist the municipality to become sustainable as well as realising the municipality, the district, the provincial as well as the vision of the country.

Projects identified were named JPI Projects, the following JPI Projects is identified for

Laingsburg and the Central Karoo District.

JPI Number	Lead Department /	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting Departments
	Municipality		
1_006	Department of	Economic Growth Initiatives	DEDAT, Laingsburg Municipality, Central Karoo
-	Agriculture		District Municipality, Beaufort West Municipality &
			Prince Albert Municipality
PSG 1: Cre	ate opportunities g	rowth and jobs	
Agreed JPI Ou	tcomes/ Objectives		
Integrated Dis	strict Agri- processing Hub	-Establishing an Agri-park (Beaufort West-Agri hub connect	ed with Farmer Support Units' in
Laingsburg, P-	Albert and Beaufort West	t municipalities)	
		1. Cold Storage	
	Projects	2. Meat processing	
		3. Leather tannery	
		4. Wool to garment	
		5. Seed Farming and processing	
		6. Multi Skills development	
	Progress	Lead Department / Municipality	
			Supporting Buddies
La	test Update	No new Updates on Agri Processing	DEDAT, Laingsburg Municipality, Central Karoo
			District Municipality, Beaufort West Municipality &
			Prince Albert Municipality

Table 9.2: JPI 1\_006: Central Karoo District Agri-processing

140

JPI Number	Lead	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting Departments		
	Department/				
	Municipality				
1_026	Laingsburg	Education and Skills Development	DoE		
	Municipality		DSD		
			DoHE		
	PSG	2: Improve Education outcomes and opportunities	for youth development		
Agreed JPI Ou	tcomes/ Objectives				
learning progr	ammes (Second ch	ance learning)			
		Access to community learning programmes (Second chance learning	g)		
Projects		1. Skills development			
		2. Training (non-accredited and relevant to area/context)			
Progress		Lead Department / Municipality			
			Supporting Buddies		
Latest Update		9 May 2019			
			Agree		

Table 9.3: JPI 1\_026 Laingsburg Education and Skills Development

JPI Number	Lead Department / Municipality	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting Departments
1_046	DLG:	Governance	Laingsburg Municipality
	Communications	(Integrated Planning and Budgeting)	Government Communication Information Systems
PSG 5: Emb	ed good governanc	e and Integrated Service Delivery through particular	rtnerships
Agreed JPI Out	comes/ Objectives: Initiati	ve to empower families to participate in society and govern	ment programmes.
		Initiative to empower families to participate in society and	d government programmes.
Projects		1. Public Participation and Communication Strategy	и.
Progress		Lead Department / Municipality	Supporting Buddies
Latest Update		DLG: Note:	9 May 2019
		- The Municipality should take note that the	Mr. Williams the Municipal Manager suggested in a
		Independent Communications Authority of South Africa	meeting that Laingsburg have their own Radio station, but it's not something that a department should decide
		has (as communicated in notice 918 of 2015) placed a	An email was sent to all government departments.
		Moratorium in respect of applications for class	There was very little people at the meeting held with the community to discuss the matter. Only 16 people at the
		community sound broadcasting service license and	meeting. Door to door visits were conducted with the
		applications for radio frequency spectrum for purposes	official of G.C.I.S within the Laingsburg and Matjiesfonte area to get the input of communities regarding the radi
		of providing a community broadcasting service. Thus	station . 100 Questionnaires were completed. Second
		the Municipality will be unable to initiate its own local	activity is to have a community meeting, at that meetir a committee will be formed.
		radio station.	Radio station can be registered as an NPO or a PTY ( LT
		For further assistance the Municipality is requested to	That will be decided at the meeting. ICASA & MDDA wi assist with the registration process. Next session might
		contact Mr. K Langenhoven (	a 2 – 3 day workshop (ICASSA & DDA) GCIS already had
		Keith.Langenhoven@westerncape.gov.za) (Tel: 021	discussion with MDDA. That person will assist in the process. All local businesses will be invited to the
		483 3492)	workshop in order to get their buy inn to the radio statio

Table 9.4: JPI 1\_046 Public Participation & Communication

JPI Number	Lead	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting					
	Department /		Departments					
	Municipality							
1_075	DTPW	Investment in Bulk Infrastructure)	Laingsburg					
			municipality					
			DEDAT					
PSG 4: Enab	le a resilient, s	ustainable, quality and inclusive living environment						
Agreed JPI Outo	omes/ Objectives :	Additional Access to Goldnerville						
	Additional Acc	ess to Goldnerville						
Projects	1. Elev	vate the need for additional access road to Goldnerville to PSG4 N1 Corridor working grou	ıp and SANRAL.					
	2. The	2. The tarring of R315 and TR 83/2						
	3. Elev	3. Elevate the need for tarring of R315 and TR 83/2 to PSG4 N1 Corridor working group and SANRAL.						
	4. Fun	4. Funding application for business case.						
Progress	Lead Departm	Lead Department / Municipality						
			Supporting Buddies					
Latest Update	29 Aug 2016: This matter was addressed with SANRAL who are the Road Authority. SANRAL are not 12 October 2016 Mun							
	able to provide	will do some planning and						
	municipality w	municipality will have to provide access via the inner municipal street network.						
			will than with the assistance of					
	The CKDM are	DTPW to obtain an additional						
	this must first be motivated for priority and then put on to the budget plan. Layer works are needed- access to Goldnerville. The							
	i.e. not just a straight forward seal but subgrade, sub-base and base need to be prepared and Conversation about the							
	constructed. F	constructed. Furthermore, Global Consulting will be appointed for flood damage repairs of economic roads in Laingsburg						
	Seweweekspoort Road. remain a priority and we							
	A Special Purpose Vehicle or consultant may be needed to champion and manage this process. The requested that all the							
	municipality m	municipality must arrange a meeting of minds – i.e. DEADP project initiation office, DEA and stakeholders attend the session						
	Tourism, DLG,	Tourism, DLG, Agriculture and DTPW including the CKDM will be required. so that we as a						
	Though there	Though there are no new updates the Municipality will engage with SANRAL again regarding the collective can plan together as						
	access roads.		Special Purpose Vehicle.					

Table 9.5 JPI 1\_075 Bulk Road Infrastructure

# 142
La	itest Update	Sport and Recreation with DCAS have different after school activities which include Sport, Homework , reading etc	Coach appointed at Matjiesfontein Primary in 2016 still active with MOD Activities
	Progress	Lead Department / Municipality	Supporting Buddies
	Projects	Afterschool care support centres 1. MOD Centres 2. AFTER School Centres 3. Homework Hubs	
		chool care support centres	
PSG 2: PSG	3: Increase Wellnes	s, safety and reducing social ills	
1_095	DCAS	Social Initiatives	DoE DSD
	Municipality		Departments
JPI Number	Lead Department /	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting

Table 9.6: JPI 1\_095 Afterschool Programme

JPI Number	Lead Department /	ЈРІ Туре	Supporting Departments
	Municipality		
1_095	DoC's	Social Initiatives	SAPS & Laingsburg Municipality
PSG 3: Incr	ease Wellness, safet	ty and reducing social ills	
Agreed JPI Out	comes/ Objectives		
Reviewing and	implementing the existing	g crime prevention (safety promotion)strate	gy
		Reviewing and implementing the existin	g crime prevention (safety promotion)strategy
Projects		1. Alignment of Crime Prevention	n strategy with NDP Outcomes and provincial strategy linking existing
		local substance abuse forum t	o provincial substance abuseforum
Progress		Lead Department / Municipality	Supporting Buddies
l atast l Indata		UPDATE : Municipality	Municipality registered a Neighborhood watch and Law
Latest Update			
Latest Opuate			Enforcement Programme with EPWP. Projects are budget

Table 9.7: JPI 1\_095 Community Safety

## **10** Long Term Planning

The Long Term Financial Planning is aimed at ensuring that the Municipality has sufficient and cost- effective funding in order to achieve its long term objectives through the implementation of the medium term operating and capital budgets. The purpose of the Long Term Financial Planning is therefore to:-

- Ensure that all long term financial planning is based on a structured and consistent methodology in order to ensure the long term financial sustainability of the Laingsburg Municipality.
- Identify capital investment requirements and associated funding sources to ensure the future sustainability of the Municipality;
- Identify revenue enhancement and cost saving strategies in order to improve service delivery at affordable rates; and;
- Identify new revenue sources as funding for future years.

## 10.1 Financial strategies

An intrinsic feature of the LTFP give effect to the municipality's financial strategies. These

strategies include:

- a) Increasing funding for asset maintenance and renewal;
- b) Continuous improvement of its financial position;
- c) Ensuring affordable debt levels to fund the capital budget;
- d) Maintaining fair, equitable and affordable rates and tariff increase;
- e) Maintaining or improving basic municipal services;
- f) Achieving and maintaining a breakeven/surplus Operating budget; and
- g) Ensuring full cost recovery for the provision of internal services.

## 10.2 Non – financial strategies

The LTFP is a key component for achieving the goals listed in the IDP of the Municipality. The

LTFP consider the following non – financial strategic strategies:

- a) The Laingsburg Municipality Strategic Key Performance Areas;
- b) Infrastructure led growth strategies; and
- c) The Municipality's Spatial Development Framework.

The Laingsburg Municipality has a small revenue base and is largely dependent on grant funding to sustain its day to day operations. For this reason it is critical that own generated resources be optimised. This could only be achieved by employing effective credit control and debt collection procedures. Furthermore, the provision of indigent support should be managed efficiently.

Financial Management is the cornerstone of the municipality, therefore controls and policies are put in place to achieve sound financial management. As part of the IDP, all financial regulations and policies were reviewed to ensure that all legal, internal control and social requirements are met. The Laingsburg Municipality has recognised that in order to remain viable and sustainable, the IDP is linked to an achievable financial plan that includes a credible multi-year budget

#### 10.3 Revenue Raising Strategy

The main sources of revenue for the Laingsburg Municipality are state provided grants and own generated revenue from the provision of municipal services such as electricity, water, sewage and refuse removal. Property Rates also provide a further source of revenue. In order to increase the revenue base and also assist with alleviation of unemployment, Council should attempt to attract investors to the municipal area.

#### 10.4 Asset Management Strategy

A GRAP compliant asset register forms the back bone to any system of asset management. In addition to an effective maintenance program, it is also critical that adequate, comprehensive insurance coverage is in place at all times. The municipality will be examining all its inventory and equipment to ensure that redundant and unused items are disposed of according to prescription. This will ensure a more accurate asset register as well as reduce risk and therefore insurance costs. In order to comply with audit and financial disclosure requirements, often used items and consumables will be taken onto inventory and managed accordingly.

#### 10.5 Capital Projects Financing Strategy

The municipality does not currently have any long term debt and intends to maintain the status quo as it is believed that the municipality does not have the ability to service loans at present. All capital projects will therefore be financed from own operating funds, contributions from the Capital Replacement Reserve and grants received from National and Provincial Government. The possibility of raising loans to provide or improve infrastructure is not totally excluded, but Council has committed to following a very conservative approach towards loan funding.

#### 10.6 Operating Capital Financing Strategy

Excellent working capital management is of paramount importance to ensure that municipal service provision can continue uninterrupted. Positive cash flow is the life blood of any organisation and the use of effective credit control and debt collection processes can

therefore not be over emphasized. As mentioned above, council does not have any long term

debt at present and it is also policy that operational expenses be financed from own revenue on a cash backed basis. The use of bridging finance for operational purposes will only be considered as an absolute last resort.

#### 10.7 Cost Effectiveness Strategy

The strive for cost effective operations is an integral part of any organisation, even more so in a municipality that operates by using public funds. The municipality will therefore strive to foster an attitude of prudence, transparency and accountability amongst all staff and councilor alike

An important factor in this regard is the demonstrable ability to practice financial discipline, adhere to legislative requirements and constantly provide uninterrupted, good quality services to its clientele. The budget estimates to ensure sustainability only by aligning all municipal activity with the IDP, Budget, SDBIP and Performance Agreements of Managers will the predetermined objectives be achieved and will service delivery to the community of Laingsburg Municipality be ensured.

#### 10.8 Municipal Budget

The budget is aligned with the 1<sup>st</sup> four years of the IDP and give an indication on the municipal financial position and how the budget will be spent.

# 146

#### WC051 Laingsburg - Table A1 Budget Summary

Description	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		Current Ye	ear 2020/21			ledium Term F nditure Frame	
R thousands	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Original Budget	Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Pre-audit outcome	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year +1 2022/23	Budget Year +2 2023/24
Financial Performance	outcome	outcome	outcome	Duager	Dudger	TOTOCASE	outcome	LULIVEL	.12022/23	12 2023/24
Property rates	3 521	3 910	4 174	4716	5 0 0 4	5 004	5 004	4 699	4 9 1 5	5 141
Service charges	17 548	17 161	18 835	25 060	21 060	21 060	21 060	23 287	26 220	29 400
Investment revenue	686	856	599	673	485	485	485	673	538	430
Transfers recognised - operational	21 703	21 464	25 278	27 558	28 219	28 219	28 219	28 931	28 351	28 689
Other own revenue	32 198	35 660	34 860	35 554	29 379	29 37 9	29 37 9	35 640	36 4 54	37 275
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers and	75 657	79 052	83 746	93 561	84 147	84 147	84 148	93 230	96 478	100 935
contributions)										
Employee costs	21 306	23 261	25 550	29 0 34	28 954	28 954	28 954	29 661	29 007	30 540
Remuneration of councillors	2 758	3 032	3 129	3 300	3 286	3 286	3 286	3 300	3 4 6 4	3 6 3 6
Depreciation & asset impairment	6 569	6 410	5 951	5711	5 7 0 9	5 709	5 709	6 053	5 574	5 5 2 8
Finance charges	16	86	2 357	795	21	21	21	773	796	796
Inventory consumed and bulk purchases	8 962	10 103	11 974	10 9 30	10 6 1 9	10 619	10 619	12 740	13 323	13 934
Transfers and grants	291	84.2	455	605	650	650	650	605	633	662
Other expenditure	37 222	45 241	41 877	48 532	48 2 2 4	48 224	48 224	46 692	49 047	51 324
Total Expenditure	77 124	88 975	91 292	98 908	97 462	97 462	97 462	99 824	101 844	106 420
Surplus/(Deficit)	(1 467)	(9 923)	(7 546)	(5 347)	(13 315)	(13 315)	(13 315)	(6 594)	(5 366)	(5 4 8 4)
Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary allocations) (National / Provincial and District)	8 295	19 268	5 148	10 006	27 723	27 723	27 723	13 879	21 555	19 342
Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary allocations) (National / Provincial Departmental Agencies, Households, Non-profit Institutions, Private Enterprises, Public Corporatons, Hgher Educational Institutions) & Transfers and subsidies - capital (inkind - all)										
	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Surplus/(Deficit) after capital transfers &	6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 6 5 9	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 857
contributions										
Share of surplus/(deficit) of associate	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year	6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 6 5 9	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 857
Capital expenditure & funds sources										
Capital expenditure	16 579	27 917	6 946	10 006	25 4 22	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 0 4 4	8 526
Transfers recognised - capital	16 579	27 917	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 0 4 4	8 526
Borrowing	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Internally generated funds	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total sources of capital funds	16 579	27 917	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 0 4 4	8 526
Financial position										
Total current assets	24 654	21 864	26 081	24 392	11 557	11 557	11 557	12 912	25 866	39 049
Total non current assets	183 762	192 687	186 043	201 502	205 7 55	205 755	205 755	213 582	219 051	222 049
Total current liabilities	19 824	14 112	43 362	15 292	30 917	30 917	30 917	32 610	34 630	36 741
Total non current liabilities	11 988	14 490	4 354	16 948	5 0 0 0	5 000	5 000	5 203	5 4 1 7	5 630
Community wealth/Equity	176 605	185 950	164 407	193 654	181 395	181 395	181 395	188 681	204 870	218 727
Cash flows								40.050	00.450	04.057
Net cash from (used) operating Net cash from (used) investing	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	13 856 (6 338)	23 453 (4 634)	21 857 (8 467)
Net cash from (used) investing Net cash from (used) financing	-	-	-	_	-	-		(0.330)	(4034)	(0 407)
Cash/cash equivalents at the year end	_	-	_	_	-	_	-	5 777	24 596	37 986
	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3111	24 330	31 300
<u>Cash backing/surplus reconciliation</u> Cash and investments available	10 170	6 552	12 092	9 2 3 8	(1 740)	(1 740)	(1 740)	(1 667)	10 820	24 210
Application of cash and investments	18 172	12 262	19 378	11 405	5 311	5 311	5 311	(2 421)	(2 569)	(2 3 15)
Balance - surplus (shortfall)	(8 0 0 2)	(5 710)	(7 286)	(2 168)	(7 051)	(7 051)	(7 051)	(2 421) 755	13 388	26 525
Asset management Asset register summary (WDV)	183 762	192 687	186 043	201 502	205 755	205 755	205 755	213 582	219 051	222 049
Asset register summary (WDV) Depreciation	183 /62 6 569	6 410	5 951	201 502	205 7 55 5 7 09	205755 5709	205755	6 053	219 051	222 049 5 528
Deprectation Renewal and Upgrading of Existing Assets	0 509 1 459	410	5 351	5711	5103	5103	5105	0.000	5514	J J J ZO
Repairs and Maintenance	1 088	2 027	1 052	2 1 36	1 7 14	1 714	1 714	2 132	2 2 2 3	2 3 1 9
	1 000	2 021	1 002	2130	1.1.14	1 1 1 4	1714	2 1.32	2 2 2 2 3	2 3 13
Free services	_	-		_	-	_		-	-	-
Cost of Free Basic Services provided	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	40.070	0	0
Revenue cost of free services provided	4 550	11 964	12 170	12 299	12 299	12 299	13 370	13 370	13 985	14 628
Households below minimum service level										
Water:	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Sanitation/sewerage:	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
En erg y:	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-		-
Refuse:					-					

## 10.9 Expenditure Analysis

A three year preview of ensuring maintenance of existing assets with regards to municipal spending on repairs and maintenance. Setting priorities for the renewal of existing infrastructure as per the budget motivations. It also includes capital expenditure.

Functional Classification Description	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	Cu	rrent Year 2020	/21		ledium Term R nditure Frame	
		Audited	Audited	Audited	Original	Adjusted	Full Year	Budget Year	Budget Year	Budget Yea
R thousand	1	Outcome	Outcom e	Outcome	Budget	Budget	Forecast	2021/22	+1 2022/23	+2 2023/24
Revenue - Functional					-	-				
Governance and administration		28 038	39 987	29 905	37 868	54 465	54 465	42 872	51 021	49 135
Executive and council		7 659	905	2 405	-	-	-	-	3 000	4 000
Finance and administration		20 379	39 082	27 500	37 868	54 465	54 465	42 872	48 021	45 135
Internal audit		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Community and public safety		33 196	34 965	31 969	34 764	28 648	28 648	34 935	35 651	36 367
Community and social services		3 830	1 274	1 266	1 412	1 415	1 415	1 583	1 612	1 640
Sport and recreation		2	4	1	4	1	1	4	4	5
Public safety		29 360	33 670	30 689	33 335	27 213	27 213	33 335	34 022	34 709
Housing		13	16	12	12	17	17	12	13	13
Health		(8)	2	0	0	2	2	0	0	0
Econom ic and environmental services		1 740	1 100	1 312	1 337	1 470	1 470	1 183	87	90
Planning and development		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Road transport		1 740	1 100	1 312	1 337	1 470	1 470	1 183	87	90
Environmental protection		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Trading services		21 814	22 342	25 709	29 598	27 288	27 288	28 119	31 274	34 686
Energy sources		13 750	14 443	14 523	16 847	14 934	14 934	18 604	21 313	24 256
Water management		2 879	2 922	4 755	7 033	8 798	8 798	4 067	4 263	4 468
Waste water management		2 788	2 731	2 900	2 873	1 829	1 829	3 187	3 334	3 488
Waste management		2 397	2 247	3 531	2 845	1 726	1 726	2 261	2 365	2 474
Other	4	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Revenue - Functional	2	84 788	98 394	88 895	103 567	111 871	111 871	107 109	118 033	120 277
Expenditure - Functional										
Governance and administration		25 482	28 618	28 201	33 667	35 761	35 761	34 031	35 579	38 497
Executive and council		5 954	8 133	7 042	8 903	8 356	8 356	8 641	8 967	9 306
Finance and administration		19 528	20 485	21 159	24 764	27 405	27 405	25 390	26 612	29 190
Internal audit		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Community and public safety		26 962	33 652	32 426	34 547	29 792	29 792	34 762	35 122	35 886
Community and social services		919	1 180	1 193	1 731	1 554	1 554	1 513	1 432	1 501
Sport and recreation		476	169	220	256	272	272	255	268	280
Public safety		25 545	32 090	30 703	32 046	27 375	27 375	32 672	33 073	33 763
Housing		7	209	227	500	490	490	299	325	318
Health		14	4	82	14	101	101	22	23	24
Economic and environmental services		8 700	10 002	11 823	12 343	13 652	13 652	12 650	11 255	11 688
Planning and development		945	329	414	1 394	3 255	3 255	1 058	1 125	1 190
Road transport		7 754	9 673	11 408	10 949	10 397	10 397	11 592	10 130	10 499
Environmental protection		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Trading services		16 766	16 768	18 774	18 295	18 185	18 185	18 274	19 775	20 231
Energy sources		7 833	8 511	10 826	10 388	10 273	10 273	11 293	12 175	12 563
Water management		3 158	4 525	3 908	3 893	3 828	3 828	3 423	3 586	3 625
Waste water management		4 238	2 044	2 600	1 980	1 932	1 932	1 594	2 0 3 2	2 045
Waste management		1 537	1 688	1 440	2 034	2 152	2 152	1 963	1 981	1 998
Other	4	28	10	68	56	72	72	108	113	118
Total Expenditure - Functional	3	77 938	89 049	91 292	98 908	97 462	97 462	99 824	101 844	106 420
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year		6 851	9 345	(2 398)	4 659	14 408	14 408	7 286	16 189	13 858

WC051 Laingsburg - Table A2 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by functional classification)

Vote Description	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	<b>C</b>	rrent Year 2020	101	2021/22 N	ledium Term F	Revenue &
vole bescription	r.ei	2017/10	2010/19	2019/20	Gu		21	Expe	enditure Frame	work
D the second		Audited	Audited	Audited	Original	Adjusted	Full Year	Budget Year	Budget Year	Budget Year
R thousand		Outcome	Outcome	Outcome	Budget	Budget	Forecast	2021/22	+1 2022/23	+2 2023/24
Revenue by Vote	1									
Vote 1 - MAYORAL & COUNCIL		7 659	905	2 405	-	-	-	-	3 000	4 000
Vote 2 - MUNICIPAL MANAGER		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 3 - CORPORATE SERVICES		2 462	2 480	2 780	2 528	2 350	2 350	2 616	2 584	2 585
Vote 4 - BUDGET & TREASURY		17 917	36 603	24 720	35 340	52 115	52 115	40 257	45 437	42 550
Vote 5 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 6 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES		3 822	1 276	1 267	1 413	1 417	1 417	1 584	1 612	1 640
Vote 7 - SPORTS AND RECREATION		2	4	1	4	1	1	4	4	5
Vote 8 - HOUSING		13	16	12	12	17	17	12	13	13
Vote 9 - PUBLIC SAFETY		29 360	33 670	30 689	33 335	27 213	27 213	33 335	34 022	34 709
Vote 10 - ROAD TRANSPORT		1 740	1 100	1 312	1 337	1 470	1 470	1 183	87	90
Vote 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT		2 397	2 247	3 531	2 845	1 726	1 726	2 261	2 365	2 474
Vote 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT		2 788	2 731	2 900	2 873	1 829	1 829	3 187	3 334	3 488
Vote 13 - WATER		2 879	2 922	4 755	7 033	8 798	8 798	4 067	4 263	4 468
Vote 14 - ELECTRICITY		13 750	14 443	14 523	16 847	14 934	14 934	18 604	21 313	24 256
Vote 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Revenue by Vote	2	84 788	98 394	88 895	103 567	111 871	111 871	107 109	118 033	120 277
Expenditure by Vote to be appropriated	1									
Vote 1 - MAYORAL & COUNCIL		4 125	5 097	4 452	5 206	4 949	4 949	5 131	5 368	5 612
Vote 2 - MUNICIPAL MANAGER		1 829	3 035	2 590	3 697	3 407	3 407	3 510	3 599	3 694
Vote 3 - CORPORATE SERVICES		7 481	8 414	8 089	7 572	9 515	9 515	8 554	8 042	8 437
Vote 4 - BUDGET & TREASURY		12 063	12 081	13 130	17 236	18 814	18 814	17 706	18 671	20 859
Vote 5 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT		945	329	414	1 394	3 255	3 255	1 058	1 125	1 190
Vote 6 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES		934	1 184	1 276	1 745	1 655	1 655	1 535	1 455	1 525
Vote 7 - SPORTS AND RECREATION		489	169	220	268	302	302	267	281	293
Vote 8 - HOUSING		7	209	227	500	490	490	299	325	318
Vote 9 - PUBLIC SAFETY		25 545	32 090	30 703	32 046	27 045	27 045	32 345	33 073	33 763
Vote 10 - ROAD TRANSPORT		7 754	9 673	11 408	10 949	9 845	9 845	11 144	10 130	10 499
Vote 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT		1 537	1 688	1 440	2 034	2 152	2 152	1 963	1 981	1 998
Vote 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT		4 238	2 044	2 601	1 980	1 932	1 932	1 594	2 032	2 045
Vote 13 - WATER		3 158	4 525	3 916	3 893	3 828	3 828	3 423	3 586	3 625
Vote 14 - ELECTRICITY		7 833	8 511	10 826	10 388	10 273	10 273	11 293	12 175	12 563
Vote 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]		-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-
Total Expenditure by Vote	2	77 938	89 049	91 292	98 908	97 462	97 462	99 824	101 844	106 420
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year	2	6 851	9 345	(2 398)	4 659	14 408	14 408	7 286	16 189	13 858

## W C051 Laingsburg - Table A3 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal vote)

Description	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		Current Ye	ar 2020/21			ledium Term R	
Decemption		201110	2010110	2010120		o un one re			Expe	nditure Frame	work
R thousand	1	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	A udited O utco me	Original Budget	Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Pre-audit outcome	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year +1 2022/23	Budget Year +2 2023/24
Revenue By Source											
Property rates	2	3 521	3 910	4 174	4 716	5 004	5 004	5 004	4 699	4 915	5 141
Service charges - electricity revenue	2	12 449	11 861	13 419	15 788	14 934	14 934	14 934	17 391	20 044	22 929
Service charges - water revenue	2	1 833	2 014	2 223	5 836	2 564	2 564	2 565	2 870	3 010	3 158
-	2						1 836	1 836		1 947	2 038
Service charges - sanitation revenue	2	1 736	1 803	1 763	1 625	1 836			1 861		
Service charges - refuse revenue	2	1 530	1 484	1 431	1 811	1 726	1 726	1 726	1 165	1 219	1 275
Rental of facilities and equipment		1 980	1 354	1 482	1 139	1 670	1 670	1 670	1 213	1 286	1 362
Interest earned - external investments		686	856	599	673	485	485	485	673	538	430
Interest earned - outstanding debtors		504	362	480	762	-	-	-	773	809	846
Dividends received		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Fines, penalties and forfeits		27 727	33 342	30 177	32 410	26 936	26 936	26 936	32 410	33 042	33 670
Licences and permits		1 354	226	513	927	277	277	277	927	982	1 041
Agency services		159	151	132	166	212	212	212	166	176	187
Transfers and subsidies		21 703	21 464	25 278	27 558	28 219	28 219	28 219	28 931	28 351	28 689
Other revenue	2	474	226	2 020	150	284	284	284	150	159	169
Gains		-	-	55	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers	-	75 657	79 052	83 746	93 561	84 147	84 147	84 148	93 230	96 478	100 935
and contributions)											
-											
Expenditure By Type Employee related costs	2	21 306	23 261	25 550	29 034	28 954	28 954	28 954	29 661	29 007	30 540
Remuneration of councillors	2	2758	3 032	3 129	3 300	3 286	3 286	3 286	3 300	3 464	3 636
Debt im pairment	3	20 587	25 589	27 297	27 277	24 246	24 246	24 246	25 341	26 739	28 000
Depreciation & asset impairment	2	6 569	6 410	5 951	5711	5 709	5 709	5 709	6 053	5 574	5 528
Finance charges	-	16	86	2 357	795	21	21	21	773	796	796
Bulk purchases - electricity	2	7 317	7 872	9 888	9 150	8 735	8 735	8 735	10 463	10 944	11 448
Invertory consumed	8	1 646	2 231	2 086	1 780	1 884	1 884	1 884	2 276	2 379	2 486
Contracted services		4 629	8 614	5 445	7 145	10 440	10 440	10 440	7 145	7 444	7 780
Transfers and subsidies		291	842	455	605	650	650	650	605	633	662
Other expenditure	4, 5	11 506	10 990	9 126	14 110	13 538	13 538	13 538	14 206	14 864	15 545
Losses		500	49	8	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Expenditure		77 124	88 975	91 292	98 908	97 462	97 462	97 462	99 824	101 844	106 420
Surplus/(Deficit)		(1 467)	(9 923)	(7 546)	(5 347)	(13 315)	(13 315)	(13 315)	(6 594)	(5 366)	(5 484)
I ransfers and subsidies - capital (monetary											
allocations) (National / Provincial and District)		8 295	19 268	5 148	10 006	27 723	27 723	27 723	13 879	21 555	19 342
Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary											
allocations) (National / Provincial Departmental											
Agencies, Households, Non-profit Institutions,											
Private Enterprises, Public Corporations, Higher											
	6										
Educational Institutions)	0	-									
Transfers and subsidies - capital (in-kind - all)											
Surplus/(Deficit) after capital transfers &		6 02 0	0.244	(2.20.0)	4 65 0	4 4 40.0	44 40.0	44.400	7 205	46 400	42 057
contributions		6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 65 9	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 85/
Taxation											
Surplus/(Deficit) after taxation		6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 659	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 857
Attributable to minorities		0.020	3 344	(2 330)	403	14 400	14 400	14 400	1 200	10 109	13 03/
Surplus/(Deficit) attributable to municipality		6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 65 9	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 857
Share of surplus/ (deficit) of associate	7	0.02.0	5 344	(£ 330)	4 03 3	14 400	14 400	17 700	1 203	10 103	13 03/
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year	r	6 828	9 344	(2 398)	4 659	14 408	14 408	14 408	7 285	16 189	13 857
ourproactbenency for the year		0.020	3 344	(2 330)	4039	14 400	14 400	14 400	1 200	10 109	13 03/

#### WC051 Laingsburg - Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure)

Table A5 Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, functional classification and funding

Vote Description	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		Current Ye	ar 2020/21		Expe	ledium Term F nditure Frame	work
R thousand	1	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Original Budget	Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Pre-audit outcome	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year +1 2022/23	Budget Year +2 2023/24
Capital expenditure - Vote											
Multi-year expenditure to be appropriated	2										
Vote 1 - MAYORAL & COUNCIL		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 2 - MUNICIPAL MANAGER Vote 3 - CORPORATE SERVICES		-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 3 - CORPORATE SERVICES Vote 4 - BUDGET & TREASURY		-	-	- 72	_	-	-	-	-	_	_
Vote 5 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT			_	-			_		_	_	_
Vote 6 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES		-	-	130	1 110	1 289	1 289	1 289	-	-	_
Vote 7 - SPORTS AND RECREATION		318	-	-	717	717	717	717	-	-	-
Vote 8 - HOUSING		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 9 - PUBLIC SAFETY		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 10 - ROAD TRANSPORT		840	602	-	-	-	-	-	1 448	7 377	3 774
Vote 11 - WAST E MANAGEMENT		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT		-	-	2 070	-	4 996	4 996	4 9 96	3 996	-	1 215
Vote 13 - WATER		8 365	18 802	847	7 779	18 420	18 420	18 4 20	8 435	1 667	1 538
Vote 14 - ELECTRICITY		7 056	8 5 1 3	3 827	400	-	-	-	-	2 000	2 000
Vote 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Capital multi-year expenditure sub-total	7	16 579	27 9 17	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526
Single-year expenditure to be appropriated	2										
Vote 1 - MAYORAL & COUNCIL		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 2 - MUNICIPAL MANAGER		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 3 - CORPORATE SERVICES		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 4 - BUDGET & TREASURY		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 5 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 6 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 7 - SPORT S AND RECREATION Vote 8 - HOUSING		-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	_	-
Vote 9 - PUBLIC SAFETY		-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	_	-
Vote 10 - ROAD TRANSPORT		_	-	_	_	_	-	-	_	_	_
Vote 11 - WAST E MANAGEMENT		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Vote 12 - WAST E WATER MANAGEMENT		_	-	_	_	_	-	-	-	_	-
Vote 13 - WATER		_	-	_	_	_	-	-	-	_	-
Vote 14 - ELECTRICITY		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Vote 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Capital single-year expenditure sub-total		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Capital Expenditure - Vote		16 579	27 917	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526
Capital Expenditure - Functional											
Governance and administration		-	-	72	_	_	-	-	-	_	-
Executive and council		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Finance and administration		-	-	72	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Internal audit		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Community and public safety		318	-	130	1 827	2 006	2 006	2 0 0 6	-	-	-
Community and social services		-	-	130	1 110	1 289	1 289	1 289	-	-	-
Sport and recreation		318	-	-	717	717	717	717	-	- 1	-
Public safety		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Housing		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Health Economic and environmental services		- 840	602	-	-	-	-	-	- 1 448	7 377	3 774
Planning and development		040	002	-	-	-	-	-	1 440		3114
Road transport		840	602				-		1 448	7 377	3 774
Environmental protection		-	- 002	_	_	_	_	_			
Trading services		15 421	27 3 15	6 744	8 179	23 416	23 416	23 4 16	12 431	3 667	4 753
Energy sources		7 056	8 513	3 827	400	-	-	-	-	2 000	2 000
Water management		8 365	18 802	847	7 779	18 420	18 420	18 4 20	8 435	1 667	1 538
Waste water management		-	-	2 070	-	4 996	4 996	4 9 96	3 996	-	1 215
Waste management		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Other		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Capital Expenditure - Functional	3	16 579	27 9 17	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526
Funded by:											
National Government		16 579	25 3 09	6 542	6 279	20 282	20 282	20 282	13 880	11 044	7 547
Provincial Government		-	2 6 0 7	404	3 727	5 139	5 139	5 1 3 9	_	-	980
District Municipality		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary											
allocations) (National / Provincial											
Departmental Agencies, Households, Non-											
profit Institutions, Private Enterprises, Public											
Corporatons, Higher Educational Institutions)		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Transfers recognised - capital	4	16 579	27 9 17	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526
Borrowing	6	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
				_			_	_			_
Internally generated funds	7	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	

10.10 Borrowing (Schedule to be included in final)

The municipality does not have any loans.

WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table	SA17	Borrowing									
Borrowing - Categorised by type	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	Cu	rrent Year 2020	//21	2021/22 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework			
R thousand		Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Original Budget	Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year +1 2022/23	Budget Year +2 2023/24	
Parent municipality											
Annuity and Bullet Loans											
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)											
Local registered stock											
Instalment Credit											
Financial Leases		90	23	0	23	23	23	26	25	24	
PPP liabilities											
Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier											
Marketable Bonds											
Non-Marketable Bonds											
Bankers Acceptances											
Financial derivatives											
Other Securities											
Municipality sub-total	1	90	23	0	23	23	23	26	25	24	
Entities											
Annuity and Bullet Loans											
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)											
Local registered stock											
Instalment Credit											
Financial Leases											
PPP liabilities											
Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier											
Marketable Bonds											
Non-Marketable Bonds											
Bankers Acceptances											
Financial derivatives											
Other Securities											
Entities sub-total	1	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Entres sub-total		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_		
Total Borrowing	1	90	23	0	23	23	23	26	25	24	
Unspent Borrowing - Categorised by type											
Parent municipality											
Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance)											
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)											
Local registered stock											
Instalment Credit											
Financial Leases											
PPP liabilities											
Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier											
Marketable Bonds											
Non-Marketable Bonds Bankers Acceptances											
Financial derivatives											
Other Securities											
Municipality sub-total	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Entities											
Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance)											
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)											
Local registered stock											
Instalment Credit											
Financial Leases											
PPP liabilities											
Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier Marketable Bonds											
Non-Marketable Bonds											
Bankers Acceptances											
Financial derivatives											
Other Securities											
Entities sub-total	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Total Unspent Borrowing	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	

#### WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA17 Borrowing

## 10.11 Transfers and grants

#### The municipality is dependent on transfers and grants.

WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA18 Transfers and grant receipts

Description	Ref	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	Cur	rent Year 2020	/21		ledium Term F Inditure Frame	
		Audited	Audited	Audited	Original	Adjusted	Full Year	Budget Year	Budget Year	
R thousand		Outcome	Outcome	Outcome	Budget	Budget	Forecast	2021/22	+1 2022/23	+2 2023/24
RECEIPTS:	1, 2									
Operating Transfers and Grants										
National Government		16 578	18 539	21 500	26 021	23 434	23 434	27 223	26 616	26 927
Local Government Equitable Share		13 576	15 000	16 574	22 239	19 652	19 652	23 289	24 521	24 779
Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP)		1 031	1 000	1 238	1 252	1 252	1 252	1 098	-	-
Financial Management Grant (FMG)		1 800	2 395	3 688	2 200	2 200	2 200	2 500	1 750	1 800
Integrated National Electrification Programm Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)	5	- 75	_	_	330	330	330	336	345	348
Municipal Disaster Relief Grant		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Manage	ment	96	144	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Provincial Government:		5 094	2 885	3 778	1 537	4 384	4 384	1 708	1 735	1 762
Community Development Workers (CDW)		93	-	186	94	94	94	94	94	94
Department of Water Affairs (DWA)		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Human Settlement Development Grant		-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-
Libraries Services Conditional Grant		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Maintenance of Road Infrastructure Municipal Accreditation Assistance		42	_	-	50 _	50 	50 	50	50 	50 
Municipal Electrical Master Plan Grant			_	_		_		_	1 - 1	
Westem Cape Financial Management Capac	ity Bu	2 757	1 308	1 251	1 393	1 506	1 506	1 564	1 591	1 618
Western Cape Financial Management Suppo			1 577	-	-	1 000	1 000	-	-	-
Municipal Service Delivery and Capacity Bui	ding (		-	400	-	403	403	-	-	-
Sport and Recreation		1 063	-	56 _	-	42	42	-	-	-
Municipal Disaster Relief Grant SMME Booster Fund		_	_		_	1 289	1 289	_	_	_
COVID19		-	-	268	-	-	-	-	-	-
Drought Support		-	-	1 423	-	-	-	-	-	-
District Municipality:		_	_	_	_	400	400	-	_	_
Central Karoo District Municipality - COVID19		-	-	-	-	400	400	-	-	-
Other grant providers:		1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Non-profit Institutions		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
National Departmental Agencies - Public Se	ctor S	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Operating Transfers and Grants	5	21 673	21 424	25 278	27 558	28 219	28 219	28 931	28 351	28 689
Capital Transfers and Grants										
National Government		8 295	19 268	4 742	10 006	21 489	21 489	13 879	21 555	19 342
Integrated National Electrification Programme G	ant (	ll	2 157	2 372	-	-	-	-	3 000	4 000
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)		6 295	17 111	2 370	10 006	13 993	13 993	6 383	6 555	6 621
Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Water Services Infrastructure Grant		-	-	-	-	7 496	7 496	7 496	12 000	8 721
Other capital transfers/grants [insert desc]										
Provincial Government:		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Other capital transfers/grants [insert description]										
District Municipality:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Central Karoo District Municipality - COVID1	2									
or										
Other grant providers: Non-profit Institution		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Non-proint Institution										
Total Capital Transfere and Grants	5	8 295	19 268	4 742	10 006	21 489	21 489	13 879	21 555	19 342
Total Capital Transfers and Grants	0									
TOTAL RECEIPTS OF TRANSFERS & GRANTS		29 968	40 692	30 020	37 564	49 708	49 708	42 810	49 906	48 031

154

WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA18 Transfers and grant receipts

## 10.12 Municipal Accounts

Description		2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	Cur	rrent Year 2020	//21	2021/22	Medium Term I Fram		benditure
Description	Ref	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Audited Outcome	Original Budget	Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year 2021/22	Budget Year +1 2022/23	Budget Year +2 2023/24
Rand/cent								% incr.			
Monthly Account for Household - 'Middle	1										
Income Range'											
Rates and services charges:											
Property rates		456.67	517.18	517.18	553.14	553.14	553.14	6.0%	586.25	622.21	662.17
Electricity: Basic levy		303.10	320.17	352.57	361.00	361.00	361.00	14.5%	528.00	559.70	593.30
Electricity: Consumption		1 403.70	1 695.70	1 695.70	1 801.20	1 801.20	1 801.20	14.6%	2 064.00	2 188.00	2 319.00
Water: Basic lev y		107.02	125.22	125.22	133.04	133.04	133.04	-	133.04	141.00	149.50
Water: Consumption		86.16	92.66	101.84	220.32	220.32	220.32	5.9%	199.20	214.80	226.80
Sanitation		115.79	125.00	132.17	140.00	140.00	140.00	6.2%	148.70	157.60	167.10
Refuse removal		90.35	97.00	97.00	113.22	113.22	113.22	6.0%	120.00	129.60	137.40
Other		30.33	31.00	51.00	113.22	113.22	113.22	0.070	120.00	12.3.00	137.40
sub-total		2 562.78	2 972.92	3 021.68	3 321.92	3 321.92	3 321.92	13.8%	3 779.19	4 012.91	4 255.27
Sub-total VAT on Services	l	2 562.78	29/2.92	3 021.68	3 321.92 415.32	3 321.92 415.32	3 321.92 415.32	13.8%	3 779.19 478.94	4 012.91	4 255.27
								40.001			
Total large household bill:		2 857.64	3 316.73	3 397.36	3 737.24	3 7 37.24	3 737.24	13.9%	4 258.13	4 521.52	4 794.24
% increase/-decrease			16.1%	2.4%	10.0%	-	-		13.9%	6.2%	6.0%
Monthly Account for Household - 'Affordable	2										
Range'											
Rates and services charges:											
Property rates		323.33	366.18	366.18	391.64	391.64	391.64	6.0%	415.08	440.54	468.83
Electricity: Basic levy		207.00	250.00	264.00	264.00	264.00	264.00	14.5%	305.00	323.30	342.70
Electricity: Consumption		701.85	749.85	847.85	900.00	900.00	900.00	14.6%	1 032.00	1 094.00	1 159.50
Water: Basic levy		107.02	125.22	125.22	133.04	133.04	133.04	-	133.04	141.00	149.50
Water: Consumption Sanitation		68.21	73.34	73.36	87.02	87.02	87.02	5.9%	164.85	177.80	187.80
Refuse removal		115.79 90.35	125.00 97.00	132.17 97.00	140.00	140.00 113.22	140.00	6.2%	148.70 120.00	157.60 129.60	167.10
Other		90.50	97.00	97.00	113.22	113.22	113.22	6.0%	120.00	129.60	137.40
sub-total		1 613.55	1 786.58	1 905.77	2 028.92	2 028.92	2 028.92	14.3%	2 318.67	2 463.84	2 612.83
VAT on Services		180.63	198.86	230.94	245.59	245.59	245.59	14.070	285.54	303.50	321.60
Total small household bill:		1 794.18	1 985.44	2 136.71	2 274.51	2 274.51	2 274.51	14.5%	2 604.21	2 767.34	2 934.43
% increase/-decrease			10.7%	7.6%	6.4%	-	-		14.5%	6.3%	6.0%
Monthly Account for Household - 'Indigent'	3										
Household receiving free basic services	Ľ										
Rates and services charges:											
Property rates		20.00	22.65	22.65	24.23	24.23	24.23	6.0%	25.68	27.25	29.00
		20.00	221.00	159.43	168.00	168.00	168.00	14.5%	194.06	205.70	23.00
Electricity: Basic levy										1	
Electricity: Consumption		210.56	224.96	254.36	270.18	270.18	270.18	14.6%	309.60	328.20	347.85
Water: Basic levy		107.02	125.22	125.22	133.04	133.04	133.04	-	133.04	141.00	149.50
Water: Consumption		14.36	15.44	15.44	22.00	22.00	22.00	5.9%	22.88	24.80	26.40
Sanitation	l	115.79	125.00	132.17	140.00	140.00	140.00	6.2%	148.70	157.60	167.10
Refuse removal		90.35	97.00	97.00	113.22	113.22	113.22	6.0%	120.00	129.60	137.40
Other		(590.35)	(643.20)	(598.61)	(644.32)	(644.32)	(644.32)		(699.00)	(743.30)	(787.95)
su b-to tal		174.73	188.06	207.66	226.35	226.35	226.35	12.6%	254.96	270.85	287.30
VAT on Services		21.66	23.16	27.75	30.32	30.32	30.32		34.39	36.54	38.75
Total small household bill:		196.39	211.22	235.42	256.66	256.66	256.66	12.7%	289.35	307.39	326.05
% increase/-decrease	l		7.5%	11.5%	9.0%	-	-		12.7%	6.2%	6.1%

#### WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA14 Household bills

## **11** Performance Management

This Chapter deals with the implementation and monitoring of the IDP projects and programs aimed at achieving the vision and objectives of the municipality as set out in this document. The IDP and Budget are implemented through a Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP). The Top Layer SDBIP is used as a scorecard to measure, monitor, evaluate and report on institutional performance (monthly, quarterly, bi-annual and annual basis). The Departmental SDBIP measures the performance of the departments and performance agreements and plans are used to measure the performance of employees.

#### 11.1 Performance Management system

The Performance Management System implemented at Laingsburg Municipality is intended to provide a comprehensive, step by step planning system that helps the municipality to manage the process of performance planning and measurement effectively. The PM System serves as primary mechanism to monitor, review and improve the implementation of the municipality IDP and eventually the budget. The performance management policy framework was approved by Council which provided for performance implementation, monitoring and evaluation at organizational as well as individual levels. The Performance Management Framework of the Municipality is reflected in the diagram below:



Figure 11.1: Performance Management system

#### 11.2 Organizational Level

The organizational performance of the municipality is evaluated by means of a municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP) at organizational level and through the service delivery budget implementation plan (SDBIP) at directorate and departmental levels. The Top Layer SDBIP set out consolidated service delivery targets and provides an overall picture of performance for the municipality as a whole, reflecting performance on its strategic priorities.



Figure 11.2: Organizational Performance

The departmental SDBIP capture the performance of each defined department which reflects on the strategic priorities of the municipality. The SDBIP provides detail of each outcome for which the senior management is responsible for, in other words a comprehensive picture of the performance of that directorate/sub-directorate.

#### 11.3 Individual Level

The municipality is in process of implementing a performance management system for all staff. This has led to a specific focus on service delivery and means that:

- Each manager has to develop a scorecard which is based on the balanced scorecard model.
- At the beginning of each financial year all the senior managers (Section 57 employees) sign Performance Agreements.

## 11.4 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Section 38 (a) of the Systems Act requires Municipalities to set appropriate key performance indicators as a

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 3rd Review

yardstick for measuring performance, including outcomes and impact, with regard to the community development priorities and objectives set out in its Integrated Development Plan. Section 9 (1) of the Regulations to this Act maintains in this regard, that a Municipality must set key performance indicators, including input indicators, output indicators and outcome indicators in respect of each of the development priorities and objectives.

Every year, as required by Section 12 (1) of the Regulations to the Systems Act, the Municipality also set performance targets for each of the key performance indicators. The IDP process and the performance management process are therefore seamlessly integrated.

#### 11.5 Performance Reporting

Performance is reported on a regular basis and it includes the evaluation of performance, the identification of poor performance and corrective actions to improve performance.

#### 11.6 Quarterly Reports

Reports on the performance in terms of the Top Level SDBIP are generated from the system and submitted to Council. This report is published on the municipal website on a quarterly basis.

#### 11.7 Mid-Year Assessment

The performance of the first 6 months of the financial year should be assessed and reported on in terms of section 72 of the MFMA. This assessment must include the measurement of performance, the identification of corrective actions and recommendations for the adjustments of KPI's, if necessary. The format of the report must comply with the section 72 requirements. This report is submitted to Council for approval before 25 January of each year and published on the municipal website.

#### 11.8 **Performance Report**

In terms of section 46(1)(a) a municipality must prepare for each financial year a performance report reflecting the municipality's and any service provider's performance during the financial year, including comparison with targets of and with performance in the previous financial year. Strategic performance indicates how well the municipality is meeting its objectives and which policies and processes are working.

#### 11.9 The IDP and the budget

The draft reviewed IDP and the budget for 2020/21 implementation 2021/2022 was approved by Council on 30 March 2021. The IDP process and the performance management process are integrated. The IDP fulfills the planning stage of

#### Final Integrated Development Plan 4th Review

performance management. Performance management in turn, fulfills the implementation management, monitoring and evaluation of the IDP.

## 11.10 The Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan

The organizational performance is evaluated by means of a municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP) at organizational level and through the service delivery budget implementation plan (SDBIP) at directorate levels.

## 11.11 The municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP)

The municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP) consolidate service delivery targets set by Council / senior management and provide an overall picture of performance for the municipality as a whole, reflecting performance on its strategic priorities.

## 11.12 Actual performance

The performance is monitored and evaluated via the SDBIP system. The web based system sent automated e-mails to the users of the system as a reminder to all staff responsible for updating their actual performance against key performance indicator targets every month for the previous month's performance. The Top Layer (strategic) SDBIP is the municipality's strategic plan and shows the strategic alignment between the different documents, IDP, Budget and Performance Agreements. In the paragraphs below the performance achieved is illustrated against the Top Layer SDBIP according to the IDP (strategic) objectives.

The following table explains the method by which the overall assessment of actual performance against targets set for the key performance indicators (KPI's) of the SDBIP is measured:

Category	Colour	Explanation
KPI Not Yet Measured	n/a	KPI's with no targets or actuals in the selected period
KPI Not Met	R	0% > = Actual/Target< 75%
KPI Almost Met	0	75% > = Actual/Target < 100%
KPI Met	G	Actual/Target = 100%
KPI Well Met	G2	100% > Actual/Target < 150%
KPI Extremely Well Met	В	Actual/Target > = 150%

SDBIP Measurement Categories

Table 11.1: KPI Measurements

The municipality show an improvement in Performance Monitoring for the last two years, moving from an AG disclaimer in performance to two years in a row an Unqualified audit report. Down scaling performance from the top level started in 2016 /17 financial year and the municipality want to improve on it to achieve performance and organisational excellence. The municipality are recorded in the 1PSS system to be still the compliance phase but must start moving into the excellence phase.

## 11.13 Key Performance indicators

Pre-determined Objectives	Municipal	КРІ	Cycle	to Date
	КРА		Year 3	Year 4
Developing a safe, clean, healthy and sustainable environment for communities	Environmental & Spatial Development	Implement IDP-approved greening and cleaning initiatives by 30 June	3	3
Promote local economic development	Local Economic Development	Host events as identified in the IDP in support of promotion of LED within the Municipal area by 30 June	0	0
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	Develop a Risk Based Audit Plan and submit to the audit committee for consideration by 30 June	0	1
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	People employed from employment equity target groups in the three highest levels of management in compliance with a municipality's approved employment equity plan	0	0
Promote local economic development	Local Economic Development	Assist SMME's with business and/or CIDB registration by 30 June	4	4
Create an environment conducive for economic development	Local Economic Development	Provide financial assistance via Municipal financial aid scheme to accepted tertiary student candidates by 31 March	0	20
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	The Top Layer SDBIP is approved by the Mayor within 28 days after the Main Budget has been approved	1	1
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	Annual Review of IDP and approved by Council before the end of May	1	1
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	Submit final Annual Report and oversight report of council before legislative deadline	1	1
Effective Maintenance and manage of municipal assets and natural resources	Basic Service Delivery	Limit the % electricity unaccounted for to less than 15% by 30 June [(Number of Electricity Units Purchased - Number of Electricity Units Sold) / Number of Electricity Units Purchased ) × 100]	10%	10%
Effective Maintenance and manage of municipal assets and natural resources	Basic Service Delivery	Percentage of the total approved repair and maintenance budget spent by 30 June [(Actual amount spent on repair and maintenance of assets/ Total amount budgeted for asset repair and maintenance)x100]	80%	80%
Create an environment conducive for economic development	Local Economic Development	Create job opportunities through EPWP projects by 30 June 20	160	160
Effective Maintenance and manage of municipal assets and natural resources	Basic Service Delivery	Obtained compliance of waste water discharge quality in terms of Green Drop Requirements for Effluent Quality Compliance by 30 June	91%	91%
Effective Maintenance and manage of municipal assets and natural resources	Basic Service Delivery	Limit the % water unaccounted for to less than 50% by 30 June [(Number of Kilolitres Water Purchased or Purified - Number of Kilolitres Water Sold) / (Number of Kilolitres Water Purchased or Purified) × 100]	50%	50%
Effective Maintenance and manage of municipal assets and natural resources	Basic Service Delivery	Obtain compliance of water quality in terms of SANS 241 -Water Quality criteria by 30 June	95%	95%
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business	Basic Service Delivery	Number of formal residential properties connected to the municipal electrical infrastructure network (Laingsburg credit and pre-paid electrical meters)(Excluding Eskom areas) as at 30 June	680	680

# 160

Improve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg	Social Development	Provide 50kwh free basic electricity to registered indigent accountholders in terms of the equitable share requirements (excluding ESKOM area) as at 30 June	680	680
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business	Basic Service Delivery	The percentage of the municipal capital budget actually spent on capital projects by 30 June (Actual amount spent on capital projects /Total amount budgeted for capital projects)X100 by 30 June	85%	85%
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Institutional Transformation	Percentage of municipality's personnel budget actually spent on training by 30 June 2019 ((Total Actual Training Expenditure/ Total personnel Budget)x100))	1%	1%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Financial viability measured in terms of the municipality's ability to meet its service debt obligations at 30 June {Debt to Revenue (Short Term Borrowing + Bank Overdraft + Short Term Lease + Long Term Borrowing + Long Term Lease) / Total Operating Revenue - Operating Conditional Grant}	65%	65%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Financial viability measured in % in terms of the total amount of outstanding service debtors in comparison with total revenue received for services at 30 June {Net Service debtors to revenue – (Total outstanding service debtors minus provision for bad debt)/ (revenue received for services) x100}	28%	28%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Financial viability measured in terms of the available cash to cover fixed operating expenditure at 30 June 2016 {Cost coverage ((Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unspent Conditional Grants - Overdraft) + Short Term Investment) / Monthly Fixed Operational Expenditure excluding (Depreciation, Amortisation, and Provision for Bad Debts, Impairment and Loss on Disposal of Assets))}	1	1
To create an institution with skilled employees to provide a professional service to its clientele guided by municipal values	Financial Viability	Limit vacancy rate to less than 5% of budgeted posts by 30 June [(Number of funded posts vacant / total number of funded posts)x100]	5%	5%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Collect percentage of financial years billed revenue by 30 June {Debtors payments received during period/Billed Revenue for period x 100}	60%	60%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Operational conditional grant spending measured by the percentage (%) spent	90%	90%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	Capital conditional grant spending measured by the percentage (%) spent	90%	90%
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	The main budget is approved by Council by the legislative deadline	1	1
To achieve financial viability in order to render affordable services to residents	Financial Viability	The adjustment budget is approved by Council by the legislative deadline	1	1
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business	Basic Service Delivery	Number of formal residential properties for which refuse is removed once per week as at 30 June	1348	1348
Improve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg	Social and Community Development	Provide free basic refuse removal to registered indigent accountholders in terms of the equitable share requirements as at 30 June	680	680
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business	Basic Service Delivery	Number of formal residential properties connected to the municipal waste water sanitation/sewerage network for sewerage service, irrespective of the number of water closets (toilets) as at 30 June	1300	1300
Improve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg	Social and Community Development	Provide free basic sanitation to registered indigent accountholders in terms of the equitable share requirements as at 30 June	680	680
Provision of infrastructure to deliver improved services to all residents and business	Basic Service Delivery	Number of formal residential properties which receives piped water (Laingsburg credit and pre-paid water meters) and is connected to the municipal water infrastructure network as at 30 June	1339	1339
Improve the standards of living of all people in Laingsburg	Social and Community Development	Provide 6kl free basic water to registered indigent accountholders in terms of the equitable share requirements as at 30 June	680	680
Developing a safe, clean, healthy and sustainable environment for communities	Social and Community Development	Participate in the provincial traffic department public safety initiatives as approved in the IDP by 30 June	0	2

Table 10.2: SDBIP

# 12 Strategic Alignment

The budget and IDP must be aligned to ensure the implementation of the IDP to achieve organisational excellence.

healthy and sustainable Dev en vironment for communities	Goal vironmental & Spatial velopment al Economic Development	Goal Code SO1	Ref	2017/18 Audited Outcome 506	2018/19 Audited Outcome 203	2019/20 Audited Outcome 246	Cur Original Budget 278	rrent Year 2020 Adjusted Budget	Full Year Forecast	Expe	edium Term R nditure Frame Budget Year +1 2022/23	work
Developing a safe, clean, Env healthy and sustainable Dev en vironment for communities	velopment			Outcome	Outcome	Outcome	Budget	Budget	Forecast			
Developing a safe, clean, Env healthy and sustainable Dev en vironment for communities	velopment											
en vironment for communities								274	274	284	300	313
	al Economic Development											
Create an environment Loc	al Economic Development											
		SO2		1 258	3 180	1 742	2 105	2 074	2 074	1 951	892	933
conductive for economic												
de velopment		503		3 90 9	3 848	4 828	4 7 26	4 657	4 657	5 1 26	4 998	5 294
of all people in Laingsburg	cial Development	503		3 90 9	3 040	4 020	4 / 20	4 05/	4 657	5120	4 996	5 294
Provision of infrastructure to Infra deliver improved services to all residents and business	astructure Development	SO4		11 325	12 322	11 712	14 305	14 096	14 096	15 7 39	16 156	16 92 3
		SO5		19 584	22 275	24 877	27 7 69	27 364	27 364	28 0 24	29 468	30 88 6
skilled employees to prived a Goo professional service to its	od Governance											
	ancial Development	SO6		28 408	33 671	32 611	34 986	34 475	34 475	33 0 26	34 763	36 35 1
in order to render affordable service to residents												
Effrective maintenance and Infra management of municipal assers and natural resources	astructure Development	SO7		12 135	13 476	15 278	14 7 37	14 522	14 522	15 673	15 268	15 719
Allocations to other priorities												
Total Expenditure References			1	77 124	88 975	91 292	98 908	97 462	97 462	99 824	101 844	106 420

WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA5 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (operating expenditure)

<u>Heterences</u> 1. Total expenditure must reconcile to Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure)

WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA5 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (operating expenditure)

Strategic Objective	Goal	Goal Code	Ref	2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Current Year 2020/21 Expenditure			ledium Term R nditure Frame	work				
				Audited	Audited	Audited	Original	Adjusted	Full Year	Budget Year		Budget Year
R thousand Developing a safe, clean,	Environmental & Spatial	S01		Outcome	Outcome	Outcome	Budget	Budget	Forecast	2021/22	+1 2022/23	+2 2023/24
	Development	301										
en vironment for communities												
Create an en viron ment	Local Economic Development	SO2		-								
conductive for economic												
de velop ment												
Improve the Standard of living	Social Development	SO3		10	(0)							
of all people in Laingsburg												
	Infrastructure Development	S04		16 568	27 917	6 946	8 179	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526
deliver improved services to all residents and business												
		005			0		1.007					
To create an institution with skilled employees to prived a	Institutional Development &	SO5		-	(0)		1 827					
professional service to its	Good Governance											
and a second second	Financial Development	SO6		_								
in order to render affordable	r manadar beverupment											
service to residents												
Effrective maintenance and	Infrastructure Development	S07		-								
management of municipal												
assers and natural resources												
		н										
		- I										
		J										
		к										
		'n										
		L										
		М										
		N										
		0										
		Р										
Allocations to other prioritie	5		3									
Total Capital Expenditure			1	16 579	27 9 17	6 946	10 006	25 422	25 422	13 880	11 044	8 526

#### WC051 Laingsburg - Supporting Table SA6 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (capital expenditure)

## **13 High Level Spatial Development Framework**

The SDF was already amended in 2017 and no current review or update is in progress however one may follow in the 2019/20 financial year based on MISA's assistance. Public participation was held with ward committees and the municipal IDP Representative Forum and the SDF Steering Committee meeting. The SDF will be a MSA approval and all sector departments are part of this process.

## 13.1 Urban Settlements and Hierarchy



Map 12.1: Hierarchy of Settlement, Linkages and investment priority

## 13.2 Hierarchy and Role of the Settlements

The municipality has one main settlement, Laingsburg town and one secondary settlement, Matjiesfontein.



Map 12.2: Laingsburg Town (Source Laingsburg Municipal 2017 Revised SDF)

#### LAINGSBURG

They are connected via the N1 Freeway and the main Cape Town to Gauteng railway line. Laingsburg town serves as the main service centre, providing medical, educational, as well as limited commercial activities as well as administrative services.

Other smaller rural farm settlements include Vleiland in the south-east and Rouxpos. Vleiland has a church and a shop. They are essentially farming communities south of Laingsburg along the R323. This area contains the most arable land in the municipality and receives the highest rainfall. The farm size is much denser with smaller "watererven" to increase the level of access to arable land and water. North of the N1 Freeway is Hillandale and Koringplaas which are large farm homesteads.

Laingsburg is strategically situated on the N1 Freeway road and rail transport corridor between Gauteng and Cape Town in a pass through the mountains at a crossing over the Buffels, Witteberge and Baviaans rivers. Thus, commercial and private traffic along the N1 Freeway provides a captive market to Laingsburg at the end or beginning of the 200km stretch of road to Beaufort West.

Laingsburg town is also the set of local government and is a minor agricultural service centre. Matjiesfontein's economic base is essentially a single tourist resort comprising a Victorian village across the railway line. The population largely comprises hotel staff and a few government employees.

#### 13.2.1 Public Open Space

Municipal nature areas

- i. Establish a 30m ecological buffer around all river corridors
- ii. Do not permit any urban development below the 1:50 year flood line or in this ecological buffer.
- iii. There should be no ploughing and careful management of livestock grazing and watering points in this zone.

#### 13.2.2 Urban Restructuring

Focal point intersections and gateways

The Conceptual Development Framework shows a number of focal point intersections in Laingsburg. These intersections should receive special treatment to enhance the quality of the

urban environment around them.

These intersections, that need to be enhanced, include:

- Intersection off N1 Freeway to Bergsig (south of N1);
- Intersection off Voortrekker Road to Moordenaars Karoo;
- Intersection of Voortrekker Road at Shell garage;
- Voortrekker and Humphrey Roads intersection (road to Seweweekspoort); and
- Voortrekker Road/ N1 Freeway and Hugo Street intersection (entrance to Göldnerville)

The gateway areas along the N1 Freeway signal the entrance into the town, a different environment. These gateway areas and the above-mentioned focal point intersections should be appropriately landscaped and the design of buildings around them should be managed to a common design theme to create high quality environments.

#### 13.2.3 Road improvements

- i. Rehabilitate the old Matjiesfontein road as a scenic route to encourage visitors and tourists and to promote the integration of business between Bergsig and the town; and between Laingsburg and Matjiesfontein.
- Promote the old Matjiesfontein Road as a secondary activity street by encouraging small business along it: the renovation of building frontages (to acceptable urban design guidelines); and through improved pavement treatment and landscaping.
- iii. Promote Voortrekker Road as the primary activity street and maximize the exposure of buildings and activities to passing traffic. Ensure a high quality environment that is guided by urban design guidelines and supported by landscaping.
- iv. Upgrade the identified bridges, and the following intersections to the truck stop;
   Humphrey and Voortrekker Roads; and the Moordenaars Karoo.

#### 13.2.4 Focal points and gateways

- i. Prepare urban design frameworks for the N1 Freeway through Laingsburg and for the gateway precincts.
- ii. Waste water treatment work
- iii. CBD
- iv. Improve signage in the centre of town.
- v. Observe the required 400m buffer from the waste water treatment works, west of

Bergsig. Do not permit any residential development in this buffer zone.

vi. Promote the CBD as the heart of Laingsburg. This will require increasing the attractiveness of the area to tourist traffic, paying special attention to the removal of the New Jersey barriers, and providing sufficient and attractive signage, landscaping, urban design/building management, etc.

#### 13.2.5 Urban Edge

Proposed alignment indicated;

Urban Edge is aligned to limit further outward expansion, except for the proposed future eastward expansion area.

#### 13.2.6 Urban expansion

Seven areas have been identified as future development areas. These areas are shown in the municipal SDF. These areas amount to a total of 69,61ha. This is to encourage the infill and integration of the town before permitting the outward expansion of the town.

#### 13.2.7 Heritage Area

Confirm the delineation of the heritage area in the centre of town with Heritage Western Cape.

- i. Market Garden/ eco-agricultural / Retirement village
- ii. Investigate the potential of the established township south of Laingsburg to be a market garden/ eco- agricultural/ retirement village. This area is suitability located along the river for this purpose.
- iii. Investigate the viability of making the abovementioned proposed development independent

MATJIESFONTEIN



Map13.3: Matjiesfontein (Source Laingsburg Municipal 2017 Revised SDF)

#### 13.2.8 Public Open Space

Municipal nature areas

i. Establish a 30m ecological buffer around all river corridors

- ii. Do not permit any urban development below the 1:50 year flood line or in this ecological buffer.
- iii. There should be no ploughing and careful management of livestock grazing and watering points in this zone.

#### 13.2.9 Urban Restructuring

Focal Points and Gateways

- Improve the signage and the sense of gateway at the intersection off the N1 Freeway towards Matjiesfontein.
- ii. The gateway areas along the N1 Freeway signal the entrance into the town a different environment. These gateway areas and the abovementioned focal point intersections should be appropriately landscaped and the design of buildings around them should be managed to a common design theme to create high quality environments.
- iii. Plan trees to screen off the noise from the N1 Freeway and to create an improved visual perspective of Matjiesfontein.

#### 13.2.10 Road Improvements

Close the existing level crossing over the railway bridge to improve road safety. This is due to the increase number of accidents at level crossings.

- Upgrade the existing single culvert under the railway line to a double culvert to encourage vehicular movement. Increase the height, if necessary. This is to permit a stronger integration between the two components of the town, support Logan Road and provide a safer access solution to the southern components.
- Strengthen the High Street as the main access route into Matjiesfontein.
- Improve the landscaping and enhance the "outspan feeling" of the High Street Focus Area. Possibly retain the gravel feel.
- Create a scenic link road between Matjiesfontein and Laingsburg.

#### 13.2.11 Urban Edge

Proposed alignment indicated;

- i. Limit and future urban growth within the proposed urban edge.
- ii. Urban expansion
- iii. SDF identified for future expansion areas.
- iv. Promote the development of an Area of approximately 4,3ha, for a retirement village
- v. Promote the development of an Area of approximately 2,2ha, for additional NBG

housing opportunities, if required.

vi. Investigate the development of an Area of approximately 17ha for market gardening and / or residential development.



#### SWARTBERG / VLEILAND

Figure 13.3: Vleiland (Source Laingsburg Municipal 2017 Revised SDF)

#### 3.2.12 Public Open Space

Municipal nature areas

I. Establish a 30m ecological buffer around all river corridors.

II. Do not permit any urban development below the 1:50 year flood line or in this ecological buffer.

III. There should be no ploughing and careful management of livestock grazing and

watering points in this zone.

#### 12.2.13 Urban Restructuring

Focal Points and Gateways; Encourage the development of a tourist facility at the intersection of the R353 to Calitzdorp and the Road to Rouxpos. The area serves as a gateway area and signals the entrance to the proposed "new town" area. This area should be appropriately landscaped and trees planted to an acceptable theme.

## 12.2.14 Urban Edge

Proposed alignment indicated; Limit and future urban growth within the proposed urban edge

#### 12.2.15 Urban expansion

Develop a new town/ Agri- village at the location identified. This location is preferred for two

reasons. It is closer to existing community facilities: school, church, crèche, sports complex and community hall than the existing Vleiland community. Second, because all the land at the existing Vleiland location are privately owned, hampering BNG projects. The land for the proposed agro-village is owned by the Municipality.

- i. Confirm the area identified in the proposed urban edge suffices for the anticipated need in the area. At this stage approximately 30 households are envisaged at 100m<sup>2</sup> per plot. This configuration may change depending on the confirmed demand.
- ii. A future expansion area (7.92 ha) is indicated but should only be developed if there is a need, i.e. the already indicated plots have been taken up.

#### 12.2.16 Market Gardening/ Agriculture

In the interim, develop the future potential expansion area for market gardening. The area north of the proposed residential area is allocated for stock farming.

## **13** Disaster Management

The dedicated Disaster management official is Mr. Neil Hendrikse with cross functional influences within disaster management. Laingsburg Municipality in cooperation with the Central Karoo District municipality play a pro-active role in risk reduction to serve the communities as well as damage to property, environment and infrastructure in this area of responsibility. Disaster Management focus on Hazards, Risk Identification, Risk Assessment, Risk Reduction, Mitigation Measures, Risk Response and Recovery. Risk reduction programmes must be support by the budget of each municipality it is of outmost important that specific risks form part of the daily planning through the IDP. This will help to provide democratic and accountable government but will also ensure service delivery in a sustainable manner.

The Disaster Management Act (sec 53) stipulates that each Municipality must prepare a Disaster Management Plan/Framework for its area according to the circumstances prevailing in the area, after consulting with the District Municipality and other Local Municipalities within the area of the district Municipality.

The formulation and implementation of a Disaster Management Plan forms part of the Municipality's IDP process. The purpose of this Disaster Management Plan [Disaster Management Act 57 Sect 53 (2)] is to ensure that there is Disaster Management at all times enhancing the Municipality's ability to prevent and to deal with disasters and to avoid development that is considered high risk in terms of the potential for disasters.

According to Section 152 and 153 of the Constitution a municipality must give priority to the basic needs of the community, and must promote the social and economic development of communities. Integrated development planning is supportive to the Constitution and further relevant and regulated by other legislation namely:

- Local Government Demarcation Act 27 of 1998
- Municipal Structures Act of 1998
- Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000
- Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003
- Municipal Property Rates Act 6 of 2004
- Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002
- Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act 13 of 2005

At the end of the day the Integrated Development Plan must give a long term vision to each municipality which can be achieved with a proper risk assessment in the area of responsibility.

As mentioned the fact is that this chapter is about Risks in the Central Karoo. It cannot be assume that every hazard is a risk and therefore a proper risk assessment was done for the municipality. To determine such a risk it must be measured by a formula to compare all the risks and priorities them to do good planning for the IDP.

#### The Formula that we use is:



The following diagram will give a better understanding of this process.



Diagram: 14.1 DMS Process

The Corporative Disaster Management Plan (DMP) will include all the different plans from all entities to form the DMP.

RISK	POSSIBILITY	SEVERITY	IMPACT
Droughts	5	5	25
Floods	5	5	25
Windstorms	2	2	4
Poverty	5	5	25
Transport: Roads	5	5	25
Fire: Structural	3	3	9
Fire: Veld	3	2	6
Epidemics	5	5	25

Table: 14.1 Municipal Risks

13.1 Institutional Capacity

Disaster Management Framework will be review every year during April. The DM speaks to the four KPA's and three Enablers and form part and parcel of the Disaster management Plan.

#### **KPA 1: Institutional Capacity**

Disaster Management Advisory Forum: was establish in August 2016 and meet on a quarterly basis. The Forum will give guidance according to the Risks identified. The Municipal Disaster Management Plan was reviewed in April 2018.

#### **KPA 2: Risk Assessment**

A Risk Assessment was done, and will be reviewed on an annual basis. The main risks which was identified are:

- Droughts
- Floods: Heavy Rain/ Thunderstorms
- Windstorms
- Fires
- High/ Low Temperatures.
- Poverty.
- Epidemics: Human TB; HIV ; Animal Sheep Scab; Rift Valley Fever;
- Transport: Road Accidents; Chemical Spills.

#### **KPA 3: Risk Reduction**

The new approach to Disaster Management, a great deal of time and effort went into pre- disaster risk



reduction, therefore this section list and discuss all corporate and departmental risk reduction projects related to the priority risks identified. The following was put in place.

- Contingency plans for all risks identified.
- Risk Reduction plans
- Future plans listed in this IDP

#### **KPA 4: Response and Recovery Plans**

Response and Relief Plans was implemented by Western Cape Provincial Disaster Management and the District developed Response and Relief SOP's, which will assist the municipality to improve Response and recovery from disasters.

The Municipality as part of their Contingency planning made provision for Response and recovery. The following structure will be put in place to manage and coordinate the response during disastrous events: (JOC = Joint Operation Centre; VOC =Venue Operation- Centre; FCP = Forward Control Post). This structure can then be used to upscale or downscale depending on the level of the incident or disaster.

#### Diagram: 14.2: Joint Organising Committee

#### **Enabler 1: Information Management and Communication**

Information management is of cardinal importance throughout the whole IDP/ Risk reduction process. Integrated communication links is established with all three spheres of government with Disaster Management. For compliance purposes with Section 16 and 17 of the Disaster Management Act the **UNITI-System** will be used to communicate, report, capture and record. Otherwise the normal communication lines that do existed must be use. Communication to Councillors will be done through the Advisory Forum on each level of governance. The Advisory Forum will give guidance on what will be communicate and who will talk to the Media.



Diagram: 14.2 Disaster Management Advisory Forum

An **Early Warning and Monitoring System** will follow the same structure as above. Communication with **other emergency** role-players will also follow the same structure to form a combined effort.

#### **Enabler 2: Training Education and Awareness**

The IDP and Disaster Management Plan must promote a culture of risk avoidance among **all stakeholders** in the Municipality by capacitating role-players through **integrated education**, **training and public awareness initiatives and programmes informed by scientific research**. **Education**, **training**, **research and public awareness** will be Streamlined and aligned with National, Provincial, District and Municipal initiatives. It will also be aligned

Links were made with established awareness creation programmes in schools for the purpose of disseminating information on disaster risk management and risk avoidance. Short courses to capacities the community will be rolled out and other mechanisms like exchange visits by groups to communities with success stories in risk reduction implemented within communities.

#### **Enabler 3: Funding**

Sustainable disaster risk mitigation projects is funded in this IDP

## 13.2 DISASTER MANAGEMENT FOR THE YEAR 5 OF 5YEAR IDP

A hazard, Risk and Vulnerability Assessment (HRAVA) has been performed:

For the Municipal Area	YES	NO		
			Yes	
For projects identified in	the IDP		Yes	
Comments:				

Table: 13.1 Hazard, Risk and Vulnerability Assessment

The identified disaster risks have been prevented or mitigated through the implementation of risk reduction programmes:

For the Municipal Area	YES	NO		
			Yes	
For projects identified in t	For projects identified in the IDP			
Comments:				

Table: 13.2 Disaster Risk Prevention and Mitigation

Appropriate disaster preparedness, response and recovery plans have been developed for a risk that cannot be prevented or mitigated:

12.3. For municipal area YE	S NO	0	
		Yes	
12.3.1 For project identified ir	12.3.1 For project identified in IDP		
Comments:			
Table 42.2 Disector December		1.0	

Table: 13.3 Disaster Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plans

The Municipality has instituted the following disaster management requirements:

Established a functional Disaster Management Centre YES NO		
		No
Appoint a Head of Centre		No
Dedicated DM Official Appointed	Yes	
Firefighting Team (Voluntary)	Yes	
Firefighting Equipment	Yes	
A functional Disaster Management Advisory Forum	Yes	
A Disaster Management (DM) Plan has been developed	Yes	
This DM Plan does include Sectorial Plans	Yes	
Comments: Disaster Management Centre is at District Level		
	res	

Table: 13.4 Disaster Management Requirements

Disaster Management has a functional system that complies with the following:

GIS data for disaster management YES NO		
	Yes	
Risk reduction planning	Yes	
Early warning system	Yes	

Preparedness, response and recovery planning (Generic	Ye	
Plan)	S	
Comments:		

Table: 13.5 Disaster Functional System

## These systems are linked to:

YES NO		
Other line functions in the Municipality	Yes	
Other Municipalities	Yes	
Security Forces (SAPS)	Yes	
Provincial EMS	Yes	
Provincial Departments	Yes	
The National Disaster Management Centre	Yes	
Comments: Linked to CKDM		

Table: 13.6 Disaster system Links

The Municipal Disaster Management Plan is completed, submitted and approved by

	YE	S NO
Other Municipalities in District Municipal Area		In
		proc
		ess
District Municipal Disaster Management	Yes	
Centre		
Provincial Disaster Management Centre		
	YES	

Table: 13.7 Disaster Plan Approval and Submission

# 14 **References**

MTREF Budget Municipal Sector Plans 5 Year IDP 2017/2022

Organization Structure IDP Process Plan

2018/2019 MERO

SEPLG 2019/2020

STATS SA

STATS SA Central Karoo Factsheet

## 15 Annexures

MTREF Budget

**IDP Process Plan** 

Organogram